/

£ % M
Tak Sing Alliance Holdings Limited

(Stock Code &fftH% : 00126)

o

ANNUAL REPORT 2009
“RFNAPAER



Financial Highlights

Corporate Information

Chairman’s Statement

Director and Senior Management’s Biographies

Corporate Governance Report

Business Review

Financial Review

Report of the Directors

Independent Auditors’ Report

Consolidated Income Statement

Consolidated Balance Sheet

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

Balance Sheet

Notes to Financial Statements

Schedule of Principal Properties

Notice of Annual General Meeting

MBEHME

>
Il
=
e

BB E

BERMER

8 7 S 5 P S

TEMEME

BRBFREGBEE

TAK SING ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED ## A

13

25

32

34

52

54

55

57

59

61

62

190

196



FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

s E

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY EFERERE
2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
HK$ million  HKS$ million  HK$ million  HK$ million HKS$ million
BEBETL BEBETL BEBT BEBT BEATT
Revenue — Continuing & ¥ HEEK
operations
Restaurant, food BE - -REBEBE 256 287 348 424 475
and hotel
Property investment MEKRERER 39 37 47 267 85
and development
Others Eih 5 - - - -
300 324 395 691 560
Profit Attributable to BRAIKMDIFEA
Equity Holders of JE AR 8
the Parent 41 56 337 229 173
Basic Earnings FRREARZF] ()
per Share (cents) 5.51 7.60 4518 21.62 15.13
Net Assets BEFE 786 1,041 1,403 2,830 2,999
Total Assets BEE 1,459 1,807 2,338 4,241 4,554

Analysis of Revenue -

Analysis of Profit

Continuing Operations Attributable to Shareholders
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

MA, Kai Cheung, PhD, SBS, BBS (Chairman)

MA, Kai Yum, pPhD (Vice Chairman and Managing Director)

NG, Yan Kwong
MA, Hung Ming, John, PhD, BBS
YUEN, Wai Man

Non-Executive Director
YIP, Hing Chung, BBS, MBE, JP
Independent Non-Executive Directors

LO, Ming Chi, Charles, Jp
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WONG, See King

AUDIT COMMITTEE

LO, Ming Chi, Charles, Jp (Chairman)
LO, Man Kit, Sam

YIP, Hing Chung, BBS, MBE, JP
WONG, See King

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

LO, Man Kit, Sam (Chairman)
LO, Ming Chi, Charles, /P
WONG, See King

COMPANY SECRETARY
NG, Yan Kwong
REGISTERED OFFICE

Canon’s Court
22 Victoria Street
Hamilton HM12
Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACES OF
BUSINESS

26/F Phase Il Wyler Centre
200 Tai Lin Pai Road

Kwai Chung

New Territories

Hong Kong

5/F Carrianna Friendship Square
Junction Renmin Road South
and Chunfeng Road

Shenzhen Special Economic Zone
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PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRARS AND TRANSFER
OFFICE
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6 Front Street
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HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRARS AND TRANSFER
OFFICE
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Hong Kong
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COMPANY WEBSITE
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On behalf of the Board of Directors, | am pleased to present to
you the Annual Report of Tak Sing Alliance Holdings Limited for
the financial year ended 31 March 2009.

For the year ended 31 March 2009, the Group’s total turnover
was HK$560,291,000 (2008: HK$691,459,000), decreased
by 19% from last year. The Group's profit attributable to
shareholders was HK$173,127,000 (2008: HK$228,910,000)
decreased by 24% from last year. Despite the effect of world
wide financial tsunami, the Group’s hotel, restaurant and food
business still recorded growth in turnover. However, the reduction
in property sales more than offset this growth and as a result the
overall turnover of the Group reduced from last year. The major
reason for the reduction in profit is the reduction of investment
property revaluation gain by HK$111 million. Take away the
effect of reduction in investment property revaluation gain and
related deferred tax, the reduction in share of profit of associated
company and the operating loss of discontinued garment
operation in last year, profit for the Group from continuing
operation actually increased by HK$19 million.

The Directors have recommended the payment of a final dividend
of HK1 cent per share for the year ended 31 March 2009.

AANERREZEREMBLRRMARZIEK
SEBE_TTNF=A=T—HLUBFED
F-

HE-_ZTAhEF-ZAZ+—HLFE KEH
A ¥ % 5560,291,0008 L (2T )\ 4
691,459,000 L) " MEF M P 19% - K=K
JFE 5 3% F £&173,127,0008 T (Z 2 F N\ F:
228,910,000 7T ) ' Ltk A F R A24% < EEH)E
EOBERERESTSREMAFET IR
BEEBER BEHMEHENKIBRA 35
EEABEER TR RRELEN THREZER
B A% B Y 5 (E KR ~F#111,000,000% 7T
MBREEMF L ERARETERIE e a7
BRAREFERIENKNKERBBESIEERT
BREEB  SEBFECEEBTROREEMN
& B BR b A F 42 HN%719,000,0000 7T ©

EEeEEMBE T NF=A=T—LFE
IR R B ZRBE -
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The Group’s turnover and operating profit from property
business was HK$85,186,000 (2008: HK$267,481,000) and
HK$12,429,000 (2008: HK$164,375,000), reduced by 68% and
92% respectively from last year. Starting from early 2008, the
mainland tightened its financial policy which led to significant
reduction in property sales and prices. Most home buyers and
property investors were observing the market changes and
are not willing to buy. By the end of the year, the government
adopted a different approach in view of the financial tsunami
and release credit in the financial market. However, by financial
year and date, the property market in Hunan had not yet seen
any significant rebound. As a result, our 100,000 sq.m. Phase 1
residential property in Yiyang Grand Lake City, Hunan Province,
still have over 20,000 sq.m. not sold by the end of the financial
year. The initial sale of the 38,000 sq.m. shopping street in Grand
Lake City is also less than expected. As management anticipate
the Hunan property market needs more time to recover, the
completion of the shopping street will be delayed to third quarter
of 2009 and the related sales will be recorded in the coming
financial year. Management expects most of the remaining
residential property and the shopping street will be sold in the
next financial year. In order to make sure we have property sales
income in the year after, the project company is planning to
build 30,000 sg.m. of high rise water front residential property.
Construction is planned to start before the end of 2009.

The Group's 72% owned large scale commercial and logistic
property project in Lianyungang of Jiangsu Province is now under
construction planning stage. Construction will be delayed to
late 2009 or early 2010 due to the impact of financial tsunami.
Last year, the project company acquired 614,000 sq.m. of land
at a low cost of under RMB200 per square meter of gross floor
area. All land cost was paid by shareholders fund and the project
company does not have any bank borrowing. In June 2009,
the central government announced its decision to accelerate
the economic development of coastal cities in Jiangsu Province,
including Lianyungang. As a result of this policy decision,
the market is very optimistic about the economic growth of
Lianyungang. Current land prices are already more than double
the land cost of the project company. Management believes
the Lianyungang property project will bring in good return
to shareholders as a result of accelerated economic growth
supported by the central government.
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During the year, the investment properties of the Group
continued to achieve stable occupancy rate and rental income.

Associated company China South City Group completed 350,000
sq.m. of phase 2 textile market during the year. Another large
complex of 360,000 sg.m. phase 2 leather market has also been
completed in June 2009. Despite the effect of financial tsunami,
initial sales of the shops were satisfactory. For the coming year,
together with the leather market, more shops will be put on
sales in the market. As the Shenzhen property market quickly
recovered, management expect China South City Group to
continue provide good share of profit to the Group.

Looking forward for the coming year, with Grand Lake City
remaining residential property sales and the recognition of sales
income from shopping street together with stable rental income
from investment properties and share of profit from China South
City Group, property business will continue to provide satisfactory
profit to the Group.

During the year, the Group's hotel, restaurant and food business
recorded turnover of HK$475,105,000 (2008: HK$423,978,000),
increased by 12% from last year. Operating profit for the year
was HK$50,971,000 (2008: HK$68,895,000) decreased by 26%
from last year. The increase in profit was due to turnover from
new Carrianna restaurant in Beijing and the new Carrianna
Yiyang International Hotel in Hunan Province and the growth
in turnover of about 6% from the existing hotel, restaurant
and food business. Excluding the initial operating loss of
HK$23,742,000 from the new Beijing restaurant and Hunan
hotel, the operating profit of the division actually increased by
HK$5,818,000 (8%). Under the impact of financial tsunami, such
performance is outstanding and is better than most operators
in the industry. The value of the Carrianna brand together with
our highly effective management team is important assets of
the Group. When the overall economy recovers, those assets will
bring back high growth to the Group as seen in past years.

FRA-KSENEEMEHBEXREESORETR

on

Bt N A [ZEEW ] £ 9 A 5T 350,000F 75 K &)
—H ™5 0 B —1E360,000F HKME E W
HAIR2009F6 AR T - #H AT RSB
2 HHEMEEERAES T FESERK
FmiGHELEZEMEE BERNYMERET
BEBRRR BHERNATFEEERHERITN
BFE R

f B 2R AF - A 1L B B E R B0 A Ko 1T R A
HERIEANR - I EIREHE S WS R BIEERMR
BN HERSHEELAEERERFENE
%ﬁo

FROBE BEREME %% /475,105,000
7 7T (20084 : 423,978,000/ 7T ) * kb = F 1 A1
12%  #& % % ) £50,971,000% 75 (20084 :
68,895,000) B T b A F B D 26% o & HE R I
MEEARFARENAIL RO ESEE R
FOH Y £ 2 0 e 5 B B OO I A 2R B R 3 8
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6% ° 48 & m A INBR AL REEBRE R EZER
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The 5-star standard Yiyang Carrianna International Hotel was
completed during the year and started partial operation in July
2008. The initial occupancy rate was around 30% and gradually
improved to over 60% recently. Following the expansion in sales
network with more regular customers and the recreation facilities
put into service in second half of 2009, occupancy rate and
operating cash will continue to increase. Together with the hotel
in Foshan, these two hotels will provide stable income and good
potential for increase in property value to the Group.

For the coming year, operating environment will continue to be
difficult until market fully recovered. The Group will not invest in
new hotel or restaurant and focus on improvement of operating
efficiency so as to minimize the impact on turnover and profit by
the slow down economy. The food factories in Hainan, Shenzhen
and Kunming are planning to produce more food products in
order to improve profit contribution to the Group. Together
with the hotel in Hunan turning from loss to profit, the overall
prospect of hotel, restaurant and food division for the coming
year is still cautiously optimistic.

I would like to take this opportunity to extend my appreciation to
the Board of Directors, our management team and staff for their
support and dedication to the Group and to our shareholders,
customers, suppliers and other business partners for their

unfailing support.

Dr. Ma Kai Cheung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 July 2009
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MA Kai Cheung, PhD, SBS, BBS, aged 67, is the Chairman
and founder of the Group. Mr. Ma has more than 40 years’
experience in the garment distribution and manufacturing
business, over 20 and 10 years' experience in the restaurant
business and property development respectively. He is responsible
for the strategic planning and business development of the
Group. He is a committee member of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference. He is the President of Shenzhen
Overseas Chinese International Association. Mr. Ma also serves as
President and Standing Committee of Federation of Hong Kong
Guangdong Community Organisations, President of Federation
of Hong Kong Chiu Chow Community Organizations, Permanent
Honorary President of Hong Kong Chiu Chow Chamber of
Commerce Limited and President of Hong Kong & Kowloon Chiu
Chow Public Association. Mr. Ma is a brother of Mr. Ma Kai Yum.

MA Kai Yum, PhD, aged 58, is Vice Chairman and Managing
Director of the Group. He has been a Director of the Group since
1984 and has over 30 years' experience in the garment business.
Mr. Ma is responsible for the daily operations and administration
and, together with Mr. Ma Kai Cheung, for the strategic planning
of the Group. Mr. Ma is a member of Guangdong Provincial
Committee of Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference
and also serves as a Director of the Chinese Manufacturers
Association of Hong Kong, the Federation of Hong Kong Garment
Manufacturers and Permanent Honorary President of Hong Kong
& Kowloon Chiu Chow Public Association. Mr. Ma is a brother of
Mr. Ma Kai Cheung.

NG Yan Kwong, aged 48, is Executive Director, Chief Financial
Officer and Company Secretary of the Group since 2000. He
holds a Bachelor’'s degree in Commerce of the University of
Newecastle in Australia and is a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the CPA Australia.
Before joining the Group, Mr. Ng was the finance director of
a US beverage company operating in Mainland China. Mr. Ng
has more than 10 years corporate and financial management
experience with multinational consumer product companies in
South East Asia and Greater China region. He also has substantial
working experience in public accountancy practice with a major
international accounting firm.
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MA Hung Ming, John, PhD, BBS, aged 42, has been the Managing
Director of Carrianna Holdings Limited since 26th April 2002.
Mr. Ma joined the Group in 1990 and is currently responsible
for the Group’s property development operations. He has
extensive experience in the catering industry, as well as property
management and development. Mr. Ma was awarded the Bronze
Bauhinia Star (BBS) from The Government of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region in 2003 and a Honorary Doctorate
of Philosophy degree by Morrison University in 2004. Mr. Ma
was the Chairman of Tung Wah Group of Hospitals for the year
2002. He is a member of the Standing Committee of Shenzhen
Committee of Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference
and a Director of Hong Kong Chiu Chow Chamber of Commerce
Ltd. He is the son of Mr. Ma Kai Cheung, the Chairman and an
executive director of the Company.

YUEN Wai Man, aged 49, is the general manager of the Group’s
Carrianna brand restaurants in the PRC. He has been serving the
Group since 1991. Mr. Yuen has about 30 years' experience in
restaurant operations and the catering industry.

YIP Hing Chung, 8BS, MBE, JP, aged 87, joined the Group in
1994. Mr. Yip is Chairman and Managing Director of Gemmy
Development Company Limited. Mr. Yip was a committee
member of the Political Consultative Conference of Guangdong
Province. He also serves as a President of the Hong Kong &
Kowloon Chiu Chow Public Association, Honorary Permanent
President of the Hong Kong Chiu Chow Chamber of Commerce
Limited, Honorary-President of the Chinese Manufacturers
Association of Hong Kong and a member of the executive
committee of the New Territories Heung Yee Kuk. Mr. Yip is also
a member of the First and Second Nominating Committee of
the Special Administrative Region of Hong Kong, a committee
member of the National Industrial and Commercial Association
(Guangdong Province) and an Advisory Committee Member of
The Special Economic Zone of Shantou.
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LO Ming Chi, Charles, /7, aged 59, joined the Group in 1991.
Mr. Lo is @ member of the CPA Australia and associate member
of the Financial Services Institute of Australasia. He is Deputy
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Poly Development
Holdings Limited (formerly known as Xin Corporation Limited).
Mr. Lo is also an independent non-executive director of Hembly
International Holdings Limited and Cash Financial Services Group
Limited. He was an independent non-executive director of Artfield
Group Limited from 16 September 1998 to 11 April, 2008, Cash
Retail Management Group Limited (formerly known as Pricerite
Group Limited) from 3 November 2003 to 16 November 2006
and Freeman Corporation Limited from 23 September 2004 to
21 August 2006. He was an Executive Director of New Century
Group Hong Kong Limited from 29 March 1999 to 1 February
2009. All of which are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited. He has more than 20 years of professional and
business experience in financial and investment services in
Australia, Hong Kong and other Asian countries.

LO Man Kit, Sam, aged 48, joined the Group in July 2004.
Mr. Lo is a practising solicitor in Hong Kong and a consultant
of Messrs. C.C. Lee & Co.. He has over 20 years of extensive
experience in the areas of conveyancing, banking and commercial
law. He is also admitted as solicitor in England and Singapore.

Wong See King, aged 48, joined the Group in August 2007.
Mr. Wong is currently a Chief Financial Officer of HAGER Asia
Limited, a subsidiary of the HAGER Group which is a US market
leader of building hardware products and is engaging in a
joint venture in the People’s Republic of China (“China”) to
manufacture mainly hinge hardware products. Mr. Wong had also
worked as financial and business executive in various Australian,
UK and US multi-national companies. He has over 15 years’ of
working experience in the corporate finance, building hardware,
FMCG manufacturing and distribution business in Hong Kong
and China and property development business in Australia. He
holds a bachelor’s degree in Economics from Macquarie University
(Australia) and is a member of the Australian Society of CPAs.
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CHEN Xi Bo, aged 54, is the Vice Chairman of Carrianna
(Hunan) Enterprise Company Limited. He has many years of
experience in commercial business in Shenzhen. Mr. Chen is one
of the founding shareholders of Carrianna (Hunan) Enterprise
Company Limited. Since 1990s, he has been engaging in property
development business.

MA Hung Man, Raymond, aged 33, is the Managing Director
of Carrianna (Hunan) Enterprise Company Limited. Mr. Ma
graduated from the University of California, Davis with a Bachelor
of Science Degree in Civil Engineering and he holds a Professional
Engineer license in Civil Engineering in USA. He has substantial
experience in structural engineering, construction management
and property development. He is the son of Mr. Ma Kai Cheung.

YAU So Kan, aged 38, is General Manager of the Carrianna
Hotel in Foshan, PRC. She has been serving the Group since
2004. Ms. Yau has formed an effective management team
in hotel management since the Company took over the
management of Carrianna Hotel. Ms. Yau has about 10 years’
experience in hotel management and operation.
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The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance as set out in the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “Code”) in Appendix 14 of The Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
which became effective on 1 January 2005. The corporate
governance principles of the Company emphasis a quality board
of directors, sound internal control, principles and practices
and transparency and accountability to all shareholders of the
Company. The Company has complied with the Code throughout
the accounting period covered by this report, except for deviation
in respect of the separation of the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer.

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the code for
securities transactions by Directors of the Company. Following
specific enquiry by the Company, the Directors have confirmed
that they have complied with the required standard under the
Model Code throughout the year.
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The Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) currently
comprises nine Directors and its composition is as follows:

Executive Directors

Ma Kai Cheung (Chairman)

Ma Kai Yum (Managing Director)

Ng Yan Kwong

Ma Hung Ming, John (appointed on 25 May 2009)
Yuen Wai Man (appointed on 25 May 2009)

Non-Executive Director

Yip Hing Chung

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Lo Ming Chi, Charles

Lo Man Kit, Sam

Wong See King

The brief biographical details of the Directors are set out in the
“Director and Senior Management's Biographies” on pages 9 to
12 of this report.

The composition of the Board is reviewed regularly to ensure that

it has a good balance of expertise, skills and experience which
can meet the requirements of the business of the Company.
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The Board is responsible for ensuring continuity of leadership,
development of sound business strategies, availability of
adequate capital and managerial resources to implement the
business strategies adopted, adequacy of systems of financial
and internal controls and conduct of business in conformity with
applicable laws and regulations. All Directors have made full and
active contribution to the affairs of the Board and the Board has
always acted in the best interests of the Group.

The Executive Directors and senior management are delegated
with respective levels of authorities with regard to key corporate
strategy and policy and contractual commitments. Management
is responsible for the day-to-day operations of the Group with
divisional heads responsible for different aspects of the business.

The Board is responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements. The Company has adopted the generally accepted
accounting standards in Hong Kong in preparing the financial
statements, appropriate accounting policies have been adopted
and applied consistently, and reasonable and prudent judgement
and estimates have been made. The publication of the financial
statements of the Group is also in a timely manner.

The Board has reviewed the financial projections of the Group
and the Board is not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions which may cast significant doubt over
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. Accordingly,
the Board has continued to adopt the going concern basis in
preparing the financial statements.
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During the year, the Board met regularly and held six meetings.
The attendance record, on a named basis, at these meetings is set
out in the table on page 23 of this report.

Regular board meetings are scheduled in advance to facilitate all
directors’ attendance. Regular board meetings are scheduled to
be held four times a year at approximately quarterly intervals. At
least 14 days’ notice of a board meeting is given to all Directors
who are given an opportunity to include matters for discussion in
the agenda. If potential conflict of interest involving a substantial
shareholder or a director arises, the matter is discussed in a
physical meeting, as opposed to being dealt with by written
resolution. The directors attend meetings in persons or through
other means of electronic communication in accordance with the
Bye-laws of the Company.

Board papers are circulated approximately three days before
the board meetings to enable the directors to make informed
decisions on matters to be raised. The Company Secretary assists
the chairman in preparing the agenda for meetings and ensures
that all applicable rules and regulations are complied with.
The Company Secretary shall attend all regular board meetings
to advise on corporate governance, statutory compliance,
accounting and financial matters when necessary. Directors
shall have full access to information on the Group and are able
to obtain independent professional advice whenever deemed
necessary by the directors. The Company Secretary shall prepare
minutes and keep records of matters discussed and decisions

resolved at all board meetings.

Each newly-appointed director will be provided with a package of
orientation materials setting out the duties and responsibilities of
directors under the Listing Rules, related ordinances and relevant
regulatory requirements of Hong Kong. Updates are provided to
directors when necessary to ensure that directors are aware of the
latest changes in the commercial and regulatory environment in
which the Group conducts its business.
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According to the code provision A.2.1 of the Code, the roles
of chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual.

Up to the date of this report, the Board has not appointed an
individual to the post of chief executive officer. The roles of the
chief executive officer have been performed collectively by all the
executive directors, including the chairman, of the Company. The
Board considers that this arrangement allows contributions from
all executive directors with different expertise and is beneficial to
the continuity of the Company’s policies and strategies.

Going forward, the Board will periodically review the
effectiveness of this arrangement and considers appointing an
individual to becoming a chief executive officer when it thinks
appropriate.

One of the important roles of the Chairman is to provide
leadership to the Board to ensure that the Board always acts
in the best interests of the Group. The Chairman shall ensure
that the Board works effectively and fully discharges its
responsibilities, and that all key issues are discussed by the Board
in a timely manner. All directors have been consulted about any
matters proposed for inclusion in the agenda. With the support
of the Company Secretary, the Chairman seeks to ensure that
all directors are properly briefed on issues arising at any board
meeting and have received adequate and reliable information in a
timely manner.
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The non-executive directors provide a wide range of expertise
and experience as well as checks and balances to safeguard the
interests of the Group and its shareholders. Their participation
in the board and committee meetings brings independent
judgement on issues relating to the Group’s strategy,
performance, conflicts of interest and management process to
ensure that the interests of all shareholders of the Company have
been duly considered.

The non-executive directors of the Company have been appointed
for a term subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at
the annual general meeting of the Company in accordance with
the Bye-laws of the Company. According to Bye-law 102(A)
of the Bye-laws of the Company, director appointed to fill any
casual vacancy shall hold office only until the next annual general
meeting after their appointment and shall be subject to re-
election by the shareholders of the Company. According to Bye-
law 99 of the Bye-laws of the Company, one-third of the directors
for the time being shall retire from office by rotation (except
Chairman or Managing Director) and shall be eligible for re-
election at each annual general meeting.

The Company has three independent non-executive directors
representing more than one-third of the Board. More than one
of the independent non-executive directors have the appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise. The Board confirms that the Company
has received from each of the independent non-executive
directors an annual confirmation of his independence and
considers that all the independent non-executive directors are
independent under the guidelines set out in Rules 3.13 of the
Listing Rules.
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The Remuneration Committee was established on 1 April 2005
and currently comprises three independent non-executive
directors and its composition is as follows:

Lo Man Kit, Sam (Chairman)
Lo Ming Chi, Charles
Wong See King

During the year, the Remuneration Committee held one meeting.
The attendance record, on a named basis, at this meeting is set
out in the table on page 23 of this report.

The objectives of the Remuneration Committee are to
establish and maintain an appropriate and competitive level of
remuneration to attract, retain and motivate directors and key
executives to run the Company successfully. The Remuneration
Committee also ensures that the remuneration policies and
systems of the Group support the Group's objectives and
strategies. The Committee is provided with other resources
enabling it to discharge its duties fully. A set of written terms
of reference, which described the authority and duties of the
Remuneration Committee, was adopted by the Board on 1 April
2005 and the contents of which are in compliance with the code
provisions of the Code.

The major roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee
are as follows:

(@) to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all remuneration of directors and
senior management and on the establishment of a formal
and transparent procedure for developing policy on such
remuneration;
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to have the delegated responsibility to determine the
specific remuneration packages of all executive directors
and senior management, including benefits in kind,
pension rights and compensation payments, including
any compensation payable for loss or termination of their
office or appointment, and make recommendations to the
board of the remuneration of non-executive directors. The
remuneration committee should consider factors such as
salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment
and responsibilities of the directors, employment conditions
elsewhere in the group and desirability of performance-
based remuneration;

to review and approve performance-based remuneration by
reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved by the
Board from time to time;

to review and approve compensation payable to executive
directors and senior management in connection with any
loss or termination of their office or appointment to ensure
that such compensation is determined in accordance with
relevant contractual terms and that such compensation is
otherwise fair and not excessive for the Company;

to review and approve compensation arrangements relating
to dismissal or removal of directors for misconduct to ensure
that such arrangements are determined in accordance with
relevant contractual terms and that any compensation
payment is otherwise reasonable and appropriate;

to ensure that no director or any of his associates is involved
in deciding his own remuneration and that, as regards the
remuneration of a non-executive director who is a member
of the Committee, his remuneration should be determined
by the other members of the Committee; and

to advise shareholders of the Company on how to vote with
respect to any service contracts of directors that require
shareholders’ approval under Rule 13.68 of Listing Rules.
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During the year 2009, the Remuneration Committee made
recommendations to the Board on executive directors’
remuneration packages and terms of employment. The
Committee also formulated and evaluated the remuneration
policy and structure for the directors and senior management of
the Company.

The Board has not set up a nomination committee in relation
to the appointment of directors. The directors of the Company
are responsible for making recommendations to the Board for
consideration and approval on nominations, appointment of
directors and board succession, with a view to appoint individuals
to the Board with relevant experience and capabilities so as to
maintain and improve the competitiveness of the Company.
The Board formulates the policy, reviews the size, structure and
composition of the Board, and assesses the independence of
its independent non-executive directors in accordance with the
criteria prescribed under the Listing Rules and the Code. The
appointment of new directors will be considered and approved
by the Board and all new directors are subject to re-election by
shareholders at the annual general meeting in the first year of
their appointment pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company.
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The Audit Committee was established on 1 April 1999 and
currently comprises three independent non-executive directors
and one non-executive director. It is chaired by an independent
non-executive director. Its composition is as follow:—

Lo Ming Chi, Charles (Chairman)
Lo Man Kit, Sam

Wong See King

Yip Hing Chung

A set of new written terms of reference, which described the
authority and duties of the Audit Committee, was adopted by
the Board on 1 September 2004 and the contents of which are
in compliance with the Code Provisions and Recommended Best
Practices of the Code.

The Audit Committee is accountable to the Board and the
principal duties of the Audit Committee include the review and
supervision of the Group's financial reporting process and internal
controls. The Committee is also provided with other resources to
enable it to discharge its duties fully.

During the year, the Audit Committee held two meetings and the
external auditors were in attendance. The attendance record, on
a named basis, at these meetings is set out in the table on page
23 of this report.

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management of the
Company and Ernst & Young, the auditors of the Company, the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and
has discussed auditing, internal controls and financial reporting
matters, including the review of the annual report of the

Company for the year ended 31 March 2009.

For the year ended 31 March 2009, the auditors of the Group
received approximately HK$2,160,000 for audit service.
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The auditors shall not take any non-auditing job to keep
its independence. The disclosure regarding the auditors’
remuneration was set out in the note 6 to the financial

statements.

Attendance records at the meetings of the Board of Directors,
Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee held for the year

ended 31 March 2009 are as follows:—

Name

Executive Directors
Ma Kai Cheung

Ma Kai Yum

Ng Yan Kwong

Non-Executive Directors
Yip Hing Chung
Zhang Huagiao

Independent Non-Executive
Directors

Lo Ming Chi, Charles

Lo Man Kit, Sam

Wong See King

“N/A”: Not applicable

“*": In attendance

Notes: Mr. Zhang Huagiao resigned as a Non-Executive Director of the
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In order to develop and maintain continuing relationships with
the shareholders of the Company, the Company has established
various channels to facilitate and enhance communication:

(i) the annual general meeting provides a forum for
shareholders of the Company to raise comments and
exchange views with the Board;

(i) updated key information of the Group is available on the
Company’s website at www.taksing.com.hk to enable the
shareholders of the Company and the investor community
to have timely access to information about the Group; and

(iii) the Company's website offers a communication channel
between the Company and its shareholders and investors.

The Chairman and the directors are available at annual general
meetings to answer questions raised by shareholders of the
Company or other interested parties.

The Board is overall responsible for overseeing the operations of
all the businesses units within the Group. Suitable candidates are
appointed by the Board to join in the boards of all subsidiaries
and associates operating in key business areas, to attend the
board meetings and to oversee the operations of such companies.
The management of each business area is accountable for these
operation and performance of the business under its area of
responsibility.

The Board has conducted bi-annual reviews of internal control
system of the Group pursuant to the Codes and considers that
all the material internal controls in the Group are adequate and
effective during the year.
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The Group's turnover and operating profit from property
business was HK$85,186,000 (2008: HK$267,481,000) and
HK$12,429,000 (2008: HK$164,375,000), reduced by 68% and
92% respectively from last year. Starting from early 2008, the
mainland tightened its financial policy which led to significant
reduction in property sales and prices. Most home buyers and
property investors were observing the market changes and
are not willing to buy. By the end of the year, the government
adopted a different approach in view of the financial tsunami
and release credit in the financial market. However, by financial
year and date, the property market in Hunan had not yet seen
any significant rebound. As a result, our 100,000 sg.m. Phase 1
residential property in Yiyang Grand Lake City, Hunan Province,
still have over 20,000 sg.m. not sold by the end of the financial
year. The initial sale of the 38,000 sq.m. shopping street in Grand
Lake City is also less than expected. As management anticipate
the Hunan property market needs more time to recover, the
completion of the shopping street will be delayed to third quarter
of 2009 and the related sales will be recorded in the coming
financial year. Management expects most of the remaining
residential property and the shopping street will be sold in the
next financial year. In order to make sure we have property sales
income in the year after, the project company is planning to
build 30,000 sq.m. of high rise water front residential property.
Construction is planned to start before the end of 2009.

The Group’s 72% owned large scale commercial and logistic
property project in Lianyungang of Jiangsu Province is now under
construction planning stage. Construction will be delayed to
late 2009 or early 2010 due to the impact of financial tsunami.
Last year, the project company acquired 614,000 sq.m. of land
at a low cost of under RMB200 per square meter of gross floor
area. All land cost was paid by shareholders fund and the project
company does not have any bank borrowing. In June 2009,
the central government announced its decision to accelerate
the economic development of coastal cities in Jiangsu Province,
including Lianyungang. As a result of this policy decision,
the market is very optimistic about the economic growth of
Lianyungang. Current land prices are already more than double
the land cost of the project company. Management believes
the Lianyungang property project will bring in good return
to shareholders as a result of accelerated economic growth
supported by the central government.
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PROPERTY 2

W E A 2= 5 T A LU 9 R Ik
Grand Lake City — Yiyang, Hunan

SEREREN =BT I AN BHEAEETRNFAH I -
The Group is planning to build 30,000 sg.m. of high rise water front
residential property. Construction is planned to start before the end of 2009.

ANNUAL REPORT 2009 “F#f



maRAN

T ETELLL N e

-‘
mH
m "
m .
r'
o .
am
ET
EE
il

FA-SENOKEYPELERREEEHRIFIRE -
During the year, the investment properties of the

Group continued to achieve stable occupancy rate and
rental income.
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Associated company China South City Group completed
350,000 sg.m. of phase 2 textile market during the
year. Another large complex of 360,000 sq.m. phase 2
leather market has also been completed in June 2009.
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During the year, the investment properties of the Group
continued to achieve stable occupancy rate and rental income.

Associated company China South City Group completed 350,000
sq.m. of phase 2 textile market during the year. Another large
complex of 360,000 sg.m. phase 2 leather market has also been
completed in June 2009. Despite the effect of financial tsunami,
initial sales of the shops were satisfactory. For the coming year,
together with the leather market, more shops will be put on
sales in the market. As the Shenzhen property market quickly
recovered, management expect China South City Group to
continue provide good share of profit to the Group.

Looking forward for the coming year, with Grand Lake City
remaining residential property sales and the recognition of sales
income from shopping street together with stable rental income
from investment properties and share of profit from China South
City Group, property business will continue to provide satisfactory
profit to the Group.
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During the year, the Group's hotel, restaurant and food business
recorded turnover of HK$475,105,000 (2008: HK$423,978,000),
increased by 12% from last year. Operating profit for the year
was HK$50,971,000 (2008: HK$68,895,000) decreased by 26%
from last year. The increase in profit was due to turnover from
new Carrianna restaurant in Beijing and the new Carrianna
Yiyang International Hotel in Hunan Province and the growth
in turnover of about 6% from the existing hotel, restaurant
and food business. Excluding the initial operating loss of
HK$23,742,000 from the new Beijing restaurant and Hunan
hotel, the operating profit of the division actually increased by
HK$5,818,000 (8%). Under the impact of financial tsunami, such
performance is outstanding and is better than most operators
in the industry. The value of the Carrianna brand together with
our highly effective management team is important assets of
the Group. When the overall economy recovers, those assets will
bring back high growth to the Group as seen in past years.

The 5-star standard Yiyang Carrianna International Hotel was
completed during the year and started partial operation in July
2008. The initial occupancy rate was around 30% and gradually
improved to over 60% recently. Following the expansion in sales
network with more regular customers and the recreation facilities
put into service in second half of 2009, occupancy rate and
operating cash will continue to increase. Together with the hotel
in Foshan, these two hotels will provide stable income and good
potential for increase in property value to the Group.

For the coming year, operating environment will continue to be
difficult until market fully recovered. The Group will not invest in
new hotel or restaurant and focus on improvement of operating
efficiency so as to minimize the impact on turnover and profit by
the slow down economy. The food factories in Hainan, Shenzhen
and Kunming are planning to produce more food products in
order to improve profit contribution to the Group. Together
with the hotel in Hunan turning from loss to profit, the overall
prospect of hotel, restaurant and food division for the coming
year is still cautiously optimistic.
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T (=ZZ T )\ :423,978,000/ 7T ) * Lt & F 1
IN12% - 4 %% #) A50,971,0008 T (ZFEEN
F 1 68,895,000) BT ' Lk A F A 26% © & HRR
EINRE AR FAREMRNIE RO EEEE R
7 78 7 B0 2 40 2 B B B K U A5 2R 3T 38 4
ELERREEERRRIEENEERIZND
6% o 4% & i FITE HBR A R AE S F5RE K& 5= 55
7 5 B B KO i A W) HA 4G & 5 1814923,742,0007%8
JLig BB K5,818,00087T(8%) © fE & AL
MEET SEFELENBE BAERRME
BINABRGBRIER EE#ETE XELE
AEBHRAEARAER FEHRENIEHED
REBENSREEYREENSEEEE 8
BGEEME BEEAE - BERRMEKE
EAFRaMERE-

FA SETKAERRENZBEZFREE
B YR -_FEZNFLARBRBOHEE AEX
BN =RIERE B ATHEIB/R BERKE
HRMARYESZRAEF MREREHN —F
ZENFTHFRBERARE AMEFXRELERE
BB EREE N ERBLUERBE &8
SERURENANERMERENMEEE
5 o

REXRF LLERFFEFERNY SEHTE
BREMBESEE  EIRFBEREENEE
ME RDIEEREHEEBERNBENTE X
FREMNERE FILEFANRMM R ILE
BENEERmER UHRSHEENENE
B-MEtmBEERERSEERR BBEK
AIRIDARBIRLESE -

TAK SING ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED ## B\ &

29



BUSINESS REVIEW
X155 [0l B

30

HOTEL, RESTAURANT AND FOOD EJE BN BN

7[5 135 25 47 B0 O B
Yiyang Carrianna International Hotel

ANNUAL REPORT 2009 “F#f

FRN-EETKAERFENRGEEMEER
JE - W 20087 BB A M &% BRI AEXE
The 5-star standard Yiyang Carrianna
International Hotel was completed during the
year and started partial operation in July 2008.
Occupancy rate was gradually improved to over
60% recently.
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ESRESROTE T SERBCENAE BB RRGXBHRERE&FEKS,818,0008T(8%)"
BEHGEE EELBRBOHRELBRES -
The operating profit of the existing hotel, restaurant and food business increased by HK$5,818,000 (8%).

Under the impact of financial tsunami, such performance is outstanding and is better than most operators
in the industry.
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The food factories in Hainan, Shenzhen and Kunming are
planning to produce more food products in order to improve
profit contribution to the Group.
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As at 31 March 2009, the Group's consolidated net assets after
deduction of minority interests was HK$2,760,685,000 (2008:
HK$2,583,863,000) and consolidated net assets after deduction
of minority interests per share was HK$2.41 (2008: HK$2.26).

The Group’s free cash and bank balances was HK$125,151,000.
Netting off cash deposits pledged for borrowing, the group’s
net bank and other borrowings was HK$695,898,000.
Net borrowings less free cash and bank balances was
HK$570,747,000, representing 21% (2008: 19%) of the Group's
consolidated net assets after deduction of minority interests. The
Group's borrowings are principally on a floating rate basis.

The Group had no material acquisition and disposal for the year
ended 31 March 2009.

As at the balance sheet date, the Group has major contingent
liabilities relating to guarantee given to bank for mortgage loan
facilities granted to purchasers of properties of approximately
HK$13,101,000 (2008: HK$19,808,000). In addition, the Group
has contingent liabilities relating to guarantee given to a bank
in connection with facilities to an associate of approximately
HK$8,516,000 (2008: HK$9,490,000).
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As at the balance sheet date, certain of the Group’s property,
plant and equipment, investment properties, time deposits,
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, properties
under development, properties held for sale and inventories with
a total carrying value of approximately HK$1,610,487,000 (2008:
HK$1,440,566,000) were pledged to secure general banking,
trade finance and other facilities granted to the Group. In
addition, rental income generated in respect of certain investment
properties of the Group were assigned to bankers to secure loan

facilities granted to the Group.

On 11 July 2007, a 20%-owned associate of the Group, China
South City Group has issued US$125,000,000 secured convertible
notes. In this regard, the Group, being a shareholder of China
South City Group, has entered into a share charge agreement
by pledging 2,040,000 shares of China South City Group and
granting certain indemnities. Further details of the transaction
were disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 11 July
2007.

Major transactions of the Group are denominated in Hong Kong
dollar and Renminbi. The Group has no significant currency

exposure.
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The directors herein present their report and the audited financial
statements of the Company and the Group for the year ended 31
March 2009.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of its subsidiaries comprise the property
investment and development, the operations of hotel, restaurant
and food businesses.

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 March 2009 and the
state of affairs of the Company and the Group at that date are
set out in the financial statements on pages 54 to 189.

The directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK1
cent per ordinary share in respect of the year, payable to the
shareholders on the register of members of the Company on 28
August 2009. This recommendation has been incorporated in the
financial statements as an allocation of retained profits within the
equity section of the balance sheet.

The table set out below summarises the published results, assets,
liabilities and minority interests of the Group for the last five
financial years, as extracted from the audited financial statements
and restated as appropriate. This summary does not form part of
the audited financial statements.
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RESULTS

REVENUE
Continuing
operations
Discontinued
operation

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Attributable to:
Equity holders of

the parent
Minority interests

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND
MINORITY INTERESTS

TOTAL ASSETS
TOTAL LIABILITIES
MINORITY INTERESTS

ES

Y
R

FFEED

F A A
ek -

SFNCI S
FEA
DR

EE -RER
DEBRRERS

HEE
mEE
DERRE S

Year ended 31 March

ZA=t+—ALEE
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
—ERAE -“FT)\F -FTELF -TETAF —FTTEF
FET FAET FAT FHET FHET
560,291 691,459 395,217 324,393 300,059
- 153,860 260,594 270,946 380,936
560,291 845,319 655,811 595,339 680,995
180,676 246,404 343,897 57,896 43,686
173,127 228,910 336,670 56,130 40,680
7,549 17,494 7,227 1,766 3,006
180,676 246,404 343,897 57,896 43,686
4,553,719 4,240,510 2,338,480 1,806,906 1,458,638
(1,554,820) (1,410,731)  (935,979)  (765,788)  (672,329)
(238,214)  (245,916)  (34,191)  (25,014)  (21,614)
2,760,685 2,583,863 1,368,310 1,016,104 764,695
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Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment and
investment properties of the Group during the year are set out in
notes 15 and 16 to the financial statements, respectively.

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital and share
options during the year are set out in notes 34 and 35 to the
financial statements, respectively.

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company's
Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year are set out in note 36(b) to the financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity, respectively.

At 31 March 2009, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the provision of The
Bermuda Companies Act 1981, amounted to HK$110,529,000,
of which HK$11,441,000 has been proposed as a final dividend
for the year. In addition, the Company’s share premium account,
in the amount of HK$1,275,015,000, may be distributed in the
form of fully-paid bonus shares.
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Details of the Group’s contingent liabilities and pledge of assets
are set out in notes 40 and 43, respectively, to the financial
statements.

During the year, the Group made charitable contributions
totalling HK$1,903,000 (2008: HK$140,200).

The directors of the Company during the year were:

Executive Directors:

Ma Kai Cheung

Ma Kai Yum

Ng Yan Kwong

Ma Hung Ming, John (appointed on 25 May 2009)
Yuen Wai Man (appointed on 25 May 2009)

Non-Executive Directors:
Yip Hing Chung
Zhang Huagiao (resigned on 30 September 2008)

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
Lo Ming Chi, Charles

Lo Man Kit, Sam

Wong See King

In accordance with Bye-law 99 of the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr.
Ng Yan Kwong will retire by rotation and, being eligible, will
offer himself for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

In accordance with Bye-law 99 of the Company’s Bye-laws,
Mr. Yip Hing Chung will retire by rotation. Mr. Yip will not
offer himself for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

In accordance with Bye-law 102(B) of the Company’s Bye-laws,
Mr. Ma Hung Ming, John's term will expire on annual general
meeting date, and being eligible, will offer himself for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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In accordance with Bye-law 102(B) of the Company's Bye-laws,
Mr. Yuen Wai Man's term will expire on annual general meeting
date, and being eligible, will offer himself for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

Mr. Ma Kai Cheung had entered into a service contract with the
Company. The contract has no fixed terms of engagement and is
subject to termination by either party giving three months’ notice
in writing.

Mr. Ng Yan Kwong had entered into a service contract with the
Company. The contract has no fixed terms of engagement and is
subject to retirement by rotation as required by the Company’s
Bye-laws and termination by either party giving three months’
notice in writing.

Mr. Ma Kai Yum, Mr. Ma Hung Ming, John and Mr. Yuen Wai Man
had no service contract with the Company at the balance sheet
date.

The non-executive directors of the Company have been appointed
for a term subject to retirement by rotation as required by the
Company’s Bye-laws.

Apart from the foregoing, no director proposed for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
terminable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Directors’ interests
in the securities of the Group”, and in the share option scheme
disclosures in note 35 to the financial statements, at no time
during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a
party to any arrangement to enable the Company's directors,
their respective spouse or minor children to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company or any other body corporate.
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As at 31 March 2009, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) which (a) were
required to be notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the "Stock Exchange”) pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
and short positions which they were taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO); or which (b) were required
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO to be entered in the register
referred therein; or which (c) were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the
“Model Code”) under the Listing Rules, were as follows:

RZBZNF=ZA=1T—H ARBIZEFRT
ZITRABRARFHARBEMEE QT (E
ER (BHFLRBAGEH) EXVER) - RAEERND
REZFTFHEBATEDZLRR - ZFREA()R
(BHFRAEKRD) EXVEETDHBRESH B2
RENEARRFILEBHARZMBR AR ([H

ZAr)) (BfER (B hHEGR) EHEB S
BUERBEAZERZLAR) - ORELHERN (B
R HE GG E32ERTEBTHFEZEM
W R(OBRBLETRAUZ EN AR EFETE

R ZBETA(BRETA ARTHAEARR
B RBE RPN T

(a) The Company (a) ZARA
Underlying
Number of ordinary shares held shares Percentage of
and nature of interest pursuant to the Company's
Personal Family Other  share options issued share
Name of director Capacity interests interests interests (note 1) Total capital
REBREZ EEAT
BELERRABERESZNE HERGO#A BRTRA
Expg L) AARS GRS R s (FzE1) EES Atk
Ma Kai Cheung Beneficial owner, 220,124,172 9,300,000 259,129,025 10,000,000 498,553,197 43.58
BNE interest of spouse, (note 2) (note 3)
beneficiary of trust (M#2) (Hi3)
EREAA RERR
ERAXHEA
Ma Kai Yum Interest of spouse and 41,834,260 3,200,000 101,201,040 10,000,000 156,235,300 13.66
BN beneficiary of trust (note 4) (notes 5 & 6)
REERREAREA (Fizta) (PiE5H06)
Ng Yan Kwong Beneficial owner 11,768,000 - - - 11,768,000 1.03
RBK EREAA
Yip Hing Chung Beneficia\ owner 3,520,000 - - - 3,520,000 0.31
3 ERBEA
Lo Ming Chi, Charles Beneficial owner - - - 450,000 450,000 0.04

CEl

ExEAA
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(a) The Company (continued)

Notes:

(1

The underlying shares represent interests of options granted
to the Directors and senior executive under the Share Option
Scheme to acquire shares of the Company, further details
of which are set out in note 35 to the financial statements
under the section headed “Share Option Scheme”.

The shares were owned by Cheung Lin Kiu, the spouse of Ma
Kai Cheung.

Ma Kai Cheung and his family are the objects of a
discretionary trust which effectively owns the entire issued
share capital of Regent World Investments Limited (“Regent
World"”) and 70% of the entire issued share capital of Bond
Well Investments Limited (“Bond Well”). At the balance sheet
date, Regent World owned 184,121,625 shares and Bond
Well owned 75,007,400 shares of the Company.

The shares were owned by Kwok Kit Mei, the spouse of Ma
Kai Yum.

Ma Kai Yum and his family are the objects of a discretionary
trust which effectively owns the entire issued share capital
of Grand Wealth Investments Limited (“Grand Wealth”) and
Peaceful World Limited (“Peaceful World”). At the balance
sheet date, Grand Wealth owned 74,651,040 shares and
Peaceful World owned 19,050,000 shares of the Company.

Peaceful World owns the entire issued share capital of
Real Potential Limited (”Real Potential”). At the balance
sheet date, Real Potential owned 7,500,000 shares of the
Company. The interests of Real Potential in the Company are
therefore deemed to be the interests of Peaceful World in
which Ma Kai Yum is also deemed to have interests for the
reason as stated in note 5 above.
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(b) Subsidiaries

Name of subsidiary

MEAEERE

Amica Development
Limited
EEMBEREBR DA

Carrianna Chiu Chow
Restaurant (T.S.T.)
Limited

EEF RN ER
(RPMHE)BRAT

Carrianna Chiu Chow
Restaurant (T.S.T.)
Limited

EEMBNEE
(RPHE)BRAF

Ginza Development
Company Limited
SWEERAERAF

Ginza Development
Company Limited
TWEERBERDA

Ginza Development
Company Limited
TV EERBERAF

Name of
director

EEpnA

Ma Kai Yum

AN bk
5Nt

Ma Kai Yum

Yip Hing Chung

RER

Ma Kai Cheung

SNE

Ma Kai Yum

Yip Hing Chung

EER

Capacity

g4

Beneficial owner

EmBEAA

Beneficiary of trust

N

A

XA
g

7t

=11

f

pafllz

Beneficial owner

it
Bl

=
at
>_

Beneficial owner

ESBERA

Beneficiary of trust

(b) HERA

Number of
shares held

PR 40 8 B

10,000

15,000

100,000

15

30

Percentage of the
subsidiary’s issued

Type of share capital
shares (ordinary shares)
EHE D
BERTRABAL
IR 15 8 Bl (HER®D)
Ordinary 10
EEL
Ordinary 1.5
Rl
Ordinary 10
Rl
Ordinary 2.5
LRk
Ordinary 3
EEels
Ordinary 5
Ak
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(b)

In addition to the above, Ma Kai Cheung and Ma Kai Yum have

Subsidiaries (continued)

Name of subsidiary

Chpe PGS

Gartrend Development
Limited
RERERARRAT

Gartrend Development
Limited
RRERARAF

Tak Sing Alliance
Limited

Tak Sing Alliance
Limited

Name of
director

EEpn A

Ma Kai Cheung

BNE

Ma Kai Yum

BN

Ma Kai Cheung

SNE

Ma Kai Yum

BFNR

Capacity

g4

Beneficial owner

EmBEAA

Beneficial owner

BREAA

Beneficial owner

EZBAA

Beneficial owner

non-beneficial personal equity interests in certain subsidiaries
held for the benefit of the Group solely for the purpose
of complying with their minimum company membership
requirements.
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(b) KBIEBRA (&)

Number of
shares held

FrisiR 40 8 B

500,000

500,000

9,000

1,000

B A _EPraish -

Type of
shares

& 40 %8 51

Non-voting
deferred

BRERE
EERR 5

Non-voting
deferred

BREE
R

Non-voting
deferred

BREE
BEERZ

Non-voting
deferred

BREE
EERR A

Percentage of the
subsidiary’s issued
share capital
(ordinary shares)
EHE D
ERTRABAL
(HER®D)

N/A

A

N/A

TiE

N/A

@

N/A

T iE A

BNERSNRRAKERES

THEBARMFERBARAER U HERN
BARBRBENKEREMFA -



All the interests stated above represent long positions. Save as
disclosed above, as at 31 March 2009, none of the directors
or chief executives of the Company, nor their associates had
any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company, or any associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO, or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.

Save as detailed in note 44 to the financial statements, no
director had a beneficial interest in any material contract to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the
year.

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. Eligible participants of the Scheme include the
Company's directors, including independent non-executive
directors, other employees of the Group. The Scheme became
effective on 10 October 2005 and, unless otherwise cancelled or
amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that date.

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme are set out in
note 35 to the financial statements.

FRZEEARER B EXAREEN R
ZENF=ZA=+—B BE(EFLHAEK
f5) E3521%B T HTF < B R EFET R
AARRBRBRAEL 2B KRR ZEFK
TETBAE IIWFIHEALHERALR]
SAEARREE (3% CEH RHIEERA) £XVED
ZREE)ZB, HEROEESHERTMNE

WK R ©

SREA TSI E I FE44PARE L E SN REFRAFE
BUEN AR R S E AL B A R 2 EET L
BEREHTHEEDES -

ARAHRE —BBBRETE ([ZETE]) AY
AEEXBIFHERMZABERSBERHITE M
BE) Lt ABER2EERRARAES
BRBUFNTES AKREHEME T -%5tEl
R-ZZRF+A+BER HRIFETHNIE
R %At EIRRNE BEF T FERAERAER-

ARRBREE 2 F BN M B MEMESS -
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The following share options were outstanding under the Scheme

during the year:

At1
April
2008
R®
“EENE
mA—-H
Executive Directors
HiTES
Mr. Ma Kai Cheung 7,000,000
SNERE
3,000,000
Mr. Ma Kai Yum 7,000,000
BNHrk
3,000,000
20,000,000
Independent
Non-Executive Director
BYKHTES
Mr. Lo Ming Chi, Charles 300,000
BHELE
150,000
450,000
Non-Executive Director
FHiTES
Mr. Zhang Huagiao 7,300,000
ReBxsE
7,300,000
Other employees
HitES
7,000,000
1,150,000
11,000,000
700,000
47,600,000
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Number of share options

Granted
during
the year

RE
B

BREHRE

Exercised
during
the year

RER
e

Forfeited
during
the year

RER
P

(7,300,000)

(7,300,000)

(11,000,000)

(18,300,000)

At 31
March
2009

iy
ZBEAE

=+-8

7,000,000

3,000,000

7,000,000

3,000,000

20,000,000

300,000

150,000

450,000

7,000,000

1,150,000

700,000

29,300,000

Date of

grant of
share

options*

RH
BRERM

26-10-2005

18-12-2006

26-10-2005

18-12-2006

26-10-2005

18-12-2006

23-4-2007

26-10-2005
18-12-2006
23-4-2007

24-8-2007

Exercise
period of
share options

TERRE
il

26-10-2005 to
25-10-2015
18-12-2006 to
17-12-2016

26-10-2005 to
25-10-2015
18-12-2006 to
17-12-2016

26-10-2005 to
25-10-2015
18-12-2006 to
17-12-2016

23-4-2008 to
22-4-2012

26-10-2005 to
25-10-2015
18-12-2006 to
17-12-2016
23-4-2008 to
22-4-2012
24-2-2008 to
23-8-2012

RER - BRBEZEIE T mARTE 2 BREN
T

Exercise
price of At grant
share date of
options**  options
HKS HKS
per share per share
TRE  RERE
REER BE2AH
HK$ HKS
0.30 0.30
1.30 1.30
0.30 0.30
1.30 1.30
0.30 0.30
130 1.30
2.49 2.49
0.30 0.30
1.30 1.30
2.49 2.49
2.15 2.15



Notes to reconciliation of share options outstanding during the year:

* %

* Kk k

The vesting period of the share options is from the date of the
grant until the commencement of the exercise period.

The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in
the case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the
Company's share capital.

The price of the Company’s shares disclosed as at the date of grant
of the share options is the Stock Exchange closing price on the
trading day immediately prior to the date of grant of the options.
The price of the Company’s shares disclosed immediately before
the exercise date of the share options is the weighted average of
the Stock Exchange closing prices immediately before the dates on
which the options were exercised over all of the exercises of options
within the disclosure line.

P P B 2 B AR B 5

* %

* k%

BRERTENOASNRARLEALTEES
TEHMFE A -

R TTEE R X B AL & 3 AR SRR ALAR
AR A A SRR B BB i FHEE o

ARRRBEERHASARENRERZER
PR B E B AT — B2 5 B2 P e T E - 1
TR B BRI B R PR 2 AR R R B
BRI W BRI ERNANITEMER
RetgiR 2 T I9 8-
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As at 31 March 2009, according to the register kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO and so far as was known
to the Directors, the following persons or corporations (other
than a Director or chief executive of the Company) had an
interest or short position in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:

RZZZNF=ZA=1+—H REARFIR (&
Z REIERD) E336RFE2ECMAMT
AREZMAM NIIALHAR (LIFEARA]
EERNTETBRAR)EARRQE 2 LR
A ER AR WRARERF RS GRS
XVEPFE 20 B0 M 30 BhEH 4% 5E ¢

Number of
ordinary
Name of shareholder Capacity Notes shares held
BEAA
FERR 514 Mo 7E LTERER
East Asia International Trustees Trustee 360,330,065
Limited EFEA
Golden Yield Holdings Limited Interest in controlled 259,129,025
corporations
ZERNAES
Wealthy Platform Limited Interest in controlled 101,201,040
corporations
RN
Regent World Investments Holding corporation 184,121,625
Limited BEERA A
Bond Well Investments Limited Holding corporation 75,007,400
BHEER AT
Grand Wealth Investments Holding corporation 74,651,040
Limited BEERA A
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Percentage of the
Company’s issued
share capital
EARE
ERITREABE DL
31.49

22.65

8.85

16.09

6.56

6.52



Notes:

a. East Asia International Trustees Limited (“EAIT”) is the trustee of a
discretionary trust of which Mr. Ma Kai Cheung and his family are
the objects and through its wholly-owned subsidiary, Golden Yield
Holdings Limited (“Golden Yield"”), EAIT was indirectly interested in
259,129,025 shares of the Company. EAIT is also the trustee of a
discretionary trust of which Mr. Ma Kai Yum and his family are the
objects and through its wholly-owned subsidiary, Wealthy Platform
Limited (“Wealthy Platform”), EAIT was indirectly interested in
101,201,040 shares in the Company. As at the balance sheet date,
EAIT was effectively interested in a total of 360,330,065 shares of
the Company.

b. Golden Yield owns the entire issued share capital of Regent
World and 70% of the entire issued share capital of Bond Well,
was indirectly interested in a total of 259,129,025 shares of the
Company. The total shares held by both Regent World and Bond
Well are the same block of shares as disclosed in “Other interests”
of Mr. Ma Kai Cheung under the section headed "“Directors’
Interests in the Securities of the Group” set out above.

C. Wealthy Platform owns the entire issued share capital of Grand
Wealth and Peaceful World and indirect owns the entire issued
share capital of Real Potential through Peaceful World, was
indirectly interested in 101,201,040 shares of the Company.
The total shares held by Grand Wealth, Peaceful World and Real
Potential are the same block of shares as disclosed in “Other
interests” of Mr. Ma Kai Yum under the section headed “Directors’
Interests in the Securities of the Group” set out above.

Save as disclosed above, the directors of the Company are not
aware of any other persons who, as at 31 March 2009, had
registered an interest or short position in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company in the register that was required to be
kept under Section 336 of the SFO.

a. East Asia International Trustees Limited
(TEAT D RENBEERERKIERZ @AM
BRI —HERETENEEA LEBE2EM
J& A & Golden Yield Holdings Limited ([ Golden
Yield ] ) if fé £ # A A&~ 2 81259,129,0250% 2
B ol AN - EAITANRE K & B N8k £ R AR
BRIEAXEAMKIN —BEEEETNET
A8 E 2 & M8 A AlWealthy Platform
Limited ([Wealthy Platform |) M #EE AR
F1101,201,0400% 2 fn - WAEHE H - EAT Bk
B A28 #£360,330,06508 Z A& {5 °

b.  Golden Yield##5 5 Regent World2 B 2 217 i%
17 K& Bond Well 70% B 1T 0 i B E#H A AR
A& #£259,129,025/% 2 f& {5  Regent World &
Bond Well& £ FEMRMN A LN [EENAE
ERESER ] RS NERE s [EthiEs ]
PRI BN R — R D -

. Wealthy Platform# #f 5 Grand Wealth &
Peaceful World% &2 317 2 I 17 12 3% i Peaceful
Worldf## # 5 & &fReal Potential 2 772 & 1H
i #E A AR F]101,201,0400% 2 f& 15 - Grand
Wealth, Peaceful World}2Real Potential& #3545
WO AL [EERAEENESER] PAT
MENREEZ (Bt | R ATHES R —H

fdn o

b EESN A RREEAA RIE B
HRHEGRD) B3BCKRATHEFZERMIALE
EAALTR -_ZEZNF=A=T—BHEBARA
Pein MBI Z R EHFOKR ©
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CONTINUING DISCLOSURE OBLIGATIONS OF THE
LISTING RULES

Loan agreement with covenants relating to
specific performance obligation of the controlling
shareholders (Rule 13.18 of Chapter 13)

The agreement for the following loan to the Group imposes
specific performance obligations on the controlling shareholders
of the Company:

LHRA2EERESE

RETERBRT ZERREAKERE

TEEZRH (FT=F513.18%)
TR TARBERZ HEREARR AR
RAFEBITARME:

Outstanding balance of Specific
banking facilities as at Final maturity performance
31 March 2009 of banking facilities obligations
(HK$'000)
R-ZBZEAF=ZA=+—H BOTERRERIHAE BEBTEE
REBRTENRE
THTT
79,795 21 April 2013 (Note)
—E-=FMA=-+—H (M3E)

Note:

Mr. Ma Kai Cheung, the Chairman and the controlling shareholder of
the Company, holds 43.58% shareholding interest in the Company, and
Mr. Ma Kai Yum, the managing director of the Company, holds 13.66%
shareholding interest in the Company, undertakes to maintain for a total
of at least 51% of the shares of the Company.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of the connected transactions for the year are set out in
notes 37 and 44 to the financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, there were no other transactions which

need to be disclosed as connected transactions in accordance
with the requirements of the Listing Rules.
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EERWEE

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year ended 31 March 2009.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors, as at the date of this
report, the Company has maintained sufficient public float as
required under the Listing Rules.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the Group’s sales to the five largest customers
and purchases from the five largest suppliers accounted for less
than 30% of the Group's revenue and purchases for the year
respectively.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The Group's staff consists of approximately 100 employees in
Hong Kong and approximately 2,200 employees outside Hong
Kong. Employees are rewarded on a performance-related basis
within the general framework of the Group’s salary and bonus
system.

CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the code for securities
transactions by directors of the Company. Following specific
enquiry by the Company, the directors have confirmed that they
have complied with the required standard under the Model Code
for the year ended 31 March 2009.

BE BOIHEAXARA LTRSS

ARRHEEAMBARNBE_STNF=/H
ST HLEFEAMERE BOXHEART
EALETES-

RARNBERE

REARBAIRBZARER KR EEMAE
RAHmERH ARRIDR EMRBNZ R EMR
RADBRIE

FTEEFRHER

REZHR AEREAAREPRARHKERD A
HAREARFEZEXRBERRBELINI0% °

BERFMEE

AEE A #1008 A8 8 B 1 #92,200% /5 51ME
B-EEMNHFMIMICAEARENGIE TIRER
B E Bl R IREE

ESETEERZNTA

ARRCRAFINN LT RS+ 2R
A tERARREFETESX TR - EE
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The Company is committed to maintain a high standard of
corporate governance practices. Information on the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Company is set out in the
“Corporate Governance Report” on pages 13 to 24.

The audit committee comprises three independent non-executive
directors and one non-executive director of the Company.

The audit committee has reviewed with the management the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and
discussed auditing, internal control and financial reporting
matters including the review of the financial statements for the
year ended 31 March 20009.

According to the Code on Corporate Governance Practices,
the Company has established its Remuneration Committee
in April 2005. The Remuneration Committee comprises three
independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Lo Man Kit, Sam
(Chairman), Mr. Lo Ming Chi, Charles and Mr. Wong See King. A
set of written terms of reference, which described the authority
and duties of the remuneration committee, was adopted by the
Board on 1 April 2005.

The Remuneration Committee’s objectives are to establish and
maintain an appropriate and competitive level of remuneration
to attract, retain and motivate directors and key executives to
run the Company successfully. The Remuneration Committee will
ensure that the remuneration policies and systems of the Group
support the Group’s objective and strategies.

The remuneration details of directors during the year are set out
in note 8 to the financial statements.
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The Board confirmed that the Company has received from each of
its independent non-executive directors an annual confirmation of
his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and
still considers all of the independent non-executive directors to be
independent.

At 31 March 2009, the Group had outstanding bank and
other borrowings of approximately HK$723,969,000, cash,
bank balances and deposits amounting to approximately
HK$153,222,000. Netting off pledged time deposits of
HK$28,071,000, the Group’s net borrowings and available cash
and bank balances were HK$570,747,000 and HK$125,151,000
respectively. Taking into account the availability of banking
facilities, the directors believe that the Group has adequate
cash resources to meet its commitments and working capital
requirements.

Particulars of the Group's interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings are set out in note 31 to the financial statements.

Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their reappointment as
auditors of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

The Group will continue to develop and grow while maintaining
its healthy financial position and solid business foundation to
create long-term shareholder value.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Dr. Ma Kai Yum
Managing Director

Hong Kong, 23 July 2009
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Elf ERNST & YOUNG

= Ik

To the shareholders of Tak Sing Alliance Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements of Tak Sing Alliance
Holdings Limited set out on pages 54 to 189, which comprise
the consolidated and company balance sheets as at 31 March
2009, and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow
statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing, implementing
and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies;
and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the

circumstances.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other

person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal
control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31
March 2009 and of the Group's profit and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
18th Floor

Two International Finance Centre
8 Finance Street, Central

Hong Kong

23 July 2009
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CONTINUING OPERATIONS
REVENUE
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income and gains

Selling and distribution expenses

Administrative expenses

Other expenses

Finance costs

Share of profits and losses of
associates

PROFIT BEFORE TAX
Tax

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FROM
CONTINUING OPERATIONS

DISCONTINUED OPERATION
Loss for the year from
a discontinued operation

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent
Minority interests

DIVIDENDS
Interim
Proposed final

EARNINGS PER SHARE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT
Basic
— For profit for the year

— For profit from continuing
operations

Diluted
— For profit for the year

— For profit from continuing
operations
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2008
HK$'000
—TE)N\HF
THET

691,459
(420,154)

271,305
130,720
(105,043)
(94,909)
(6,743)
(32,403)
169,630

332,557
(46,629)

285,928
(39,524)
246,404

228,910
17,494

246,404

11,141
22,882

34,023

HK cents
B

21.62
25.63
21.18

25.11



NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment

Investment properties

Prepaid land lease payments

Goodwill

Other intangible assets

Interest in a jointly-controlled entity

Interests in associates

Available-for-sale investments

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Properties under development

Deposits paid for purchases of land

Pledged time deposits

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Properties under development
Properties held for sale

Inventories

Debtors, deposits and prepayments

Pledged time deposits
Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade creditors

Sundry creditors, accruals and
deposits received

Due to directors

Due to minority shareholders

Interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings

Finance lease payables

Tax payable

Total current liabilities
NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS
CURRENT LIABILITIES
— page 56
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R H T S 21
mwéﬁﬂﬁm 22
E@i@ﬂ%&%ﬁé#
BEZEMEE 24
BERERPYE 25
EfNEMIES 26
BT BFE R 29
IERBBREE
REEE
BRPYE 25
ink =27/
TE 27
FEUBRK - & R TENT
FRIE 28
B E BT 29
HeMIReSEIER 29
//”,@2- é%
mEAE
FENTE SRR 30
H b AR
EEtERRBERIZE
[ENZES 44(c)
JEAF ) B R 44(c)
B ZIRITREME K
31
A B0 & A 49 32
FEB T IR
/}IL@J/ W /\f}:
REBEETFHE
EELERRBARE
— 2568

2008
HK$'000
ZTTN\F
THET

337,968
1,191,683
1,056
41,399
533,559

763,996
19,761

12,978
509,566
135,986

3,547,952

26,901
187,139
51,412

273,100
20,305
133,701

692,558

(95,895)

(137,548)

(1,168)

(259,157)
(790)
(119,919)

(614,477)
78,081

3,626,033
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TOTAL ASSETS LESS
CURRENT LIABILITIES
— page 55

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Due to a director

Due to minority shareholders

Interest-bearing bank and

other borrowings
Finance lease payables
Deferred tax

Total non-current liabilities

Net assets

EQUITY

Equity attributable to equity
holders of the parent

Issued capital

Reserves

Proposed final dividend

MINORITY INTERESTS

Total equity
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EERERABRE

— 5558
IERBEE
JENES
B LERR
WEZIRITR

HEER
JE < @b & FH 49
IR IEF IR
EmBBELE
BEFE

&S

BRAIEDFA A

FE15 tE =S
BEITERA
ff 178
EZAHE

DHRRES
YN ]

Ma Kai Yum

FAR

BEELE

Managing Director

44(c)
44(c)

31
32
33

34
36(a)
13

Ng Yan Kwong

REKX

Executive Director

HITEF

2008
HK$'000
ZTTN\F
THET

3,626,033

(20,933)

(387,639)
(861)
(386,821)

(796,254)

2,829,779

114,412
2,446,569
22,882

2,583,863
245,916

2,829,779



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

= A fE5 L gk
%/ ‘A e m & @J 2%
Year ended 31 March 2009

54 NFE=H= IEFE
Attributable to equity holders of the parent
BRARBEEARE
Leasehold
land and
Share  building Share Exchange Capital Proposed
Issued  premium revaluation option  Goodwill equalisation redemption Reserve Capital  Retained final Minority Total
capital  account reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve funds reserve profits  dividend Total interests equity
Notes HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
AELH
R kEF RHZR Ei e B3 8
e BEE  EfRE BEE  HEEE  TEEE  MEER Hfe  EARE  REEY  AERR g REEEZ  BR%E
ik T L Tt Tk L Titr Tt Tk Tin Tt L Tn Tt Tk
At 1 April 2007 RZZE+FRA-A 74,664 467,994 46,432 8,498 (86,230) 28172 316 581 - 805,636 22,247 1,368,310 34,191 1,402,501
Exchange realignment 3 - - - - 32,969 - - - - - 32,969 6,134 39,103
Total income and expense RERERRBRED
for the year recognised BR W s
directly in equity - - - - - 32,969 - - - - - 32,969 6,134 39,103
Profit for the year KERERITE - - - - - - - - 28910 - 228910 1749 246,404
Total income and expense TERRREE
for the year - - - - 32,969 - - - 228910 - 261,879 23,628 285,507
Acquisition of a subsidiary WE-HHEAR 37 = = = = = = = = = = = - 340267 340,267
Acquisition of R BRFER
minority interests 37 - - - - - - - - - - - - (152,871)  (152,871)
Contribution from minority LERFEEENES
shareholders - - - - - - - - - - - - 15,945 15,945
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-HHBRA 38 - - - - 10,581 - - - - - 1058 (2,267) 8,314
Dividends paid to PERFERRES
minority interests - - - - - - - - - - - (12977 (12977)
Share of reserves of associates BB AT EE - - - 11,528 - 63,692 - 5414 36,554 - - 117,188 - 117,188
Final 2007 dividend declared ER-FTLEF
REKS - - - - - - - - - - (22247)  (22,247) - (22,247)
Issue of shares BRE 34 39,748 807,021 - (2,693) - - - - - - 844,076 844,076
Equity-settled share option WkAEE
arrangements RREZH 3 - - - 1507 - - - - - - 15217 15217
Interim 2007 dividend 13 - - - - - - - - - (11,141) - (11,141) - (11,141)
Proposed final 2008 dividend
13 - - - = - - - - (22,882) 22,882 = -
At 31 March 2008 RZFENE
=fA=1-H 114,412 1,275,015% 46,432¢ 32,550%  (86,230)*  135,414* 316% 5.995% 36,554*  1,000,523* 22,882 2,583,863 245916 2,829,779
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

2= A 4EE L i,

Year Ondod 31 Marc

BE-TENFZ

gExR

h 2009
=

58

Attributable to equity holders of the parent

BRARBEEARE
Leasehold
land and
Share  building Share Exchange Capital Proposed
Issued  premium revaluation option  Goodwill equalisation redemption Reserve Capital  Retained final Minority Total
capital  account reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve funds reserve profits  dividend Total interests equity
Notes HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
AELH
K& kEF  RHZR Ei e B3 8
K& BEE  EfRE BEE  HEEE  TEEE  WEER Hfe  EARE  REEH  AERR g3  REEEZ  BR%E
ik L TEn Tt Tk L Titn Tt T Tin Tk L Tin Tt Tk
At 1 April 2008 RZFEN\FNA-R 114,412 1,275,015 46,432 32,550 (86,230) 135414 316 5,995 36,554 1,000,523 22,882 2,583,863 245916 2,829,779
Exchange realignment EXAE - - - - - 5,879 - - - - - 5879 1,046 6,925
Total income and expense RERERRBRED
for the year recognised BR b s
directly in equity - - - - - 5,879 - - - - 5,879 1,046 6,925
Profit for the year RERENEE = = - - - - - - - B - B 7549 180676
Total income and expense TERNREE
for the year - - - - - 5879 - - - 173,127 - 179,006 8,595 187,601
Acquisition of minority interests WD Bk R - - - - - - - - = = = = (20) (20)
Contribution from minority SERRERIAES
shareholders - - - - - - - - - - - - 5,682 5,682
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-HHBAR 38 - - - - - (270) - - - - - (270) (270)
Dividends paid to SHRFERES
minority interests - - - - - - - - - - - - 21,959 (21,959
Disposal of items of property, HENE BERZE
plant and equipment - - 2,778 - - - - - - - - 2,718 - 2,778
Transfer of items of property, EMERE T EE
plant and equipment to ZHhENE
investment properties - - 6,850 - - - - - - - - 6,850 - 6,850
Share of reserves of associates  AEBERAEE - - 1317 - 18,392 - 118 - - - 19,827 - 19,827
Final 2008 dividend declared ER=-FINEF
RERE - - - - - - - - - - (288) (22882 - (288)
Equity-settled share options NEBEERREL
forfeited %R - - - (14745 - - - - - 6,258 - (848) - (848
Proposed final 2009 dividend BE-ITNE
ZA=+-R
KRS 13 = = = = = = = = = (11,441) 11,441 - - -
At 31 March 2009 R-2EAF
==f 114,412 1,275,015% 56,060* 19,122+ (86,230)*  159,415* 316% 6,113* 36,554* 1,168,467* 11,441 2,760,685 238214 2,998,899

* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of
HK$2,634,832,000 (2008: HK$2,446,569,000) in the consolidated
balance sheet.
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NET CASH INFLOW FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Interest received

Purchases of items of property,
plant and equipment

Acquisition of a subsidiary

Acquisition of minority interests

Disposal of a subsidiary

Additions to prepaid land lease
payments

Additions of properties under
development

Additions to deposits paid for
purchases of land

Purchase of available-for-sale
investments

Proceeds from disposal of items of
property, plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of investment
properties

Proceeds from disposal of
available-for-sale investments

Proceeds from disposal of financial
assets at fair value through profit
or loss

Decrease/(increase)
in pledged time deposits

Net advance to associates

Net cash outflow from
investing activities

Notes

B =

REREEKN
BHERAFE 39

;ﬁﬁ/ﬁgziﬁﬁllbi

B WFLE
BAME BB LRE

Wi — B A 7 37
Wb D BBk SR
HE—HEHBAF 38
AR B EFIE

N
TR YL

B iz 120

AR SR
BE
HEME BB &
R R Y P 1S 3R
HEREMEN
PS5} 1A
HEAHEERE
AT S 3R
HERAFERR
REBRPREEZ
TR EEMMSRA
EEREHRERZ
A (HE )

[F1 Bt & 2 B B FUFE

Tiiéf%@]zfﬁﬂimuﬂj
HER

2008
HK$'000
—TEN\HF
TET

228,880

5,797
(150,808)
(21,404)

)
)

(87,297
(11,714

(148,767)

(135,986)

5,144

3,605

1,640
(3,747)

(543,537)
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CASH FLOWS FROM

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
New bank loans
Repayment of trust receipt loans
Repayment of bank loans
Capital element of finance

lease payments
Advance from minority shareholders
Proceeds from issue of

new shares by the Company
Interest paid
Interest element of finance

lease payments

Net cash inflow from
financing activities

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents
at beginning of year
Effect of foreign exchange

rate changes, net

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances

Non-pledged time deposits with
original maturity of less than
three months when acquired

Time deposits with original maturity
of less than three months when
acquired, pledged as security for
bank overdraft facilities

Bank overdrafts
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Notes
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B EREWIRE N

BEERITER
MEROES MR
RN
DERR B

AR A EETH RN
P15 RO BIR
EERRUPS)

BEROBESMRD

2B A

BERHHE
MAFER

ReRRSEEEE
A

FUZHE R
ReFEER
EXSHNTE FR

FRZATR
RE%EER

ReRREEEEE

mEBRZ D
Re RRTHESF 29
APEIR=@EAZ

E IR E BER

29

ALK =EA

M 3K S E B ERTT

BXREELZ

E 73R 29
RITEX 31

2008
HK$'000
—TEN\HF
TET

197,150
(5,838)
(286,629)

(559)
38,046

400,064
(33,040)

(51)

309,143

(5,514)

128,879

3,665

127,030

133,701

(6,671)

127,030



2008

Notes HK$'000
—EBEENF
B 5T TFATT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS IRBEE
Interests in subsidiaries {RHT B A AR 20 1,516,209
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Other receivables and deposits Hib R R Rz e 768
Due from associates JFE Uk B 25 8 B BR 3R 159
Pledged time deposits BHEFEHEFER 29 41
Cash and cash equivalents RekReFMEIEE 29 63
Total current assets MEREE 1,031
CURRENT LIABILITIES nREEE
Sundry creditors and accruals Hib SRR EFTER (10,552)
Due to directors JENES 44(c) -
Interest-bearing bank borrowings WEZIRITER 31 (3,324)
Total current liabilities MEREE (13,876)
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEEFE (12,845)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS EERERRBAR
CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,503,364
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FknBEE
Due to a director Bt —ESE 44(c) -
Interest-bearing bank borrowings R ZIRITER 31 (8,629)
Total non-current liabilities EmBREE (8,629)
Net assets BEFE 1,494,735
EQUITY [
Issued capital BEITRA 34 114,412
Reserves & 36(b) 1,357,441
Proposed final dividend BERNEE 13 22,882
Total equity A {E 1,494,735
Ma Kai Yum Ng Yan Kwong
BN REN
Managing Director Executive Director
BE T HITEFE
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Tak Sing Alliance Holdings Limited is a limited liability
company incorporated in Bermuda. The registered office
of the Company is located at Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria
Street, Hamilton HM12, Bermuda.

During the year, the Group was principally engaged in
investment holding, property investment and development,
and the operations of hotel, restaurant and food businesses.

In the prior year, the Group discontinued its garments
operation, further details of which are included in note 12
to the financial statements.

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs"”) and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, except for investment properties and
certain financial assets, which have been measured at fair
value. These financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand except when otherwise indicated.
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The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March
2009. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the
date of acquisition, being the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the
date that such control ceases. All income, expenses and
unrealised gains and losses resulting from intercompany
transactions and intercompany balances within the Group
are eliminated on consolidation in full.

The acquisition of a subsidiary has been accounted for using
the purchase method of accounting. This method involves
allocating the cost of the business combinations to the fair
value of the identifiable assets acquired, and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed at the date of acquisition. The
cost of the acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the
fair value of the assets given, equity instruments issued and
liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of exchange, plus
costs directly attributable to the acquisition.

Minority interests represent the interests of outside
shareholders not held by the Group in the results and net
assets of the Company’s subsidiaries. An acquisition of
minority interests is accounted for using the parent entity
extension method whereby the difference between the
consideration and the book value of the share of the net
assets acquired is recognised as goodwill.

FEVBREEERARRLENB AR (4
BIAEEDBE_TTANF=A=+—
BIEFENMBEHRE MEBAREEZTHK
FBEMEFE (AREEREZMBAR
ZHIEZ BH) REEEZEGIRKIEAHA
- SEARRBMAER S ERMEEMNK
A X RREIR 2 Yas R EE K AR 2
MEREE 2 HBNEAKRE R TIAHHE-

MEBAR WEEEREEEEAK.
BT3RS RIARE G Bt 2 A D L2 TR
BRBERNEEZ R FERRRKE R BAM
AEZABRIAAE  WER AR
BE BRETBRATARNMASMES
FARZAENLATE M EWBEEENG
A2 BERETH -

DR BRI IEINABRRR AR R ZH
BRARZEEREEFEMEIEMIIES
AEBEFEZME - B BRRER IR
BRBEEEEARR B K E RIS E
HFREEZRABCRAZERNERRE
2o
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The Group has adopted the following new interpretations
and amendments to HKFRSs for the first time for the current
year's financial statements.

HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

Amendments

HK(IFRIC)-Int 12

HK(IFRIC)-Int 14

Amendments to HKAS 39
Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement
and HKFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures —
Reclassification of Financial
Assets

Service Concession Arrangements

HKAS 19 — The Limit on a Defined
Benefit Asset, Minimum
Funding Requirements and their
Interaction

The adoption of these new interpretations and amendments

has had no significant financial effect on these financial
statements and there have been no significant changes
to the accounting policies applied in these financial

statements.
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The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in
these financial statements.

HKFRS 1 (Revised)

HKFRS 1 and HKAS 27
Amendments

HKFRS 2 Amendments

HKFRS 3 (Revised)

HKFRS 7 Amendments

HKFRS 8

HKAS 1 (Revised)

HKAS 23 (Revised)

HKAS 27 (Revised)

First-time Adoption of HKFRSs?

Amendments to HKFRS 1
First-time Adoption of HKFRSs
and HKAS 27 Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements
— Cost of an Investment in a
Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled
Entity or Associate’

Amendments to HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment — Vesting
Conditions and Cancellations’

Business Combinations?

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures —
Improving Disclosures about
Financial Instruments’

Operating Segments’

Presentation of Financial
Statements’

Borrowing Costs'

Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements?
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HKAS 32 and HKAS 1
Amendments

HKAS 39 Amendment

HK(IFRIC)-Int 9
and HKAS 39
Amendments

HK(IFRIC)-Int 13

HK(IFRIC)-Int 15

HK(IFRIC)-Int 16

HK(IFRIC)-Int 17

HK(IFRIC)-Int 18
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Amendments to HKAS 32
Financial Instruments:
Presentation and HKAS 1
Presentation of Financial
Statements — Puttable Financial
Instruments and Obligations
Arising on Liquidation’

Amendment to HKAS 39 Financial

Instruments: Recognition and

Measurement — Eligible Hedged

Items?

Amendments to HK(IFRIC)-Int 9
Reassessment of Embedded
Derivatives and HKAS 39
Financial Instruments:

Recognition and Measurement —

Embedded Derivatives®

Customer Loyalty Programmes?

Agreements for the Construction
of Real Estate’

Hedges of a Net Investment in a
Foreign Operation?*

Distributions of Non-cash Assets
to Owners?

Transfers of Assets from
Customers®
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Apart from the above, the HKICPA has also issued
Improvements to HKFRSs which sets out amendments to
a number of HKFRSs primarily with a view to removing
inconsistencies and clarify wording.

i Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2009
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2008
& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 October
2008
5 Effective for annual periods ending on or after 30 June 2009
B Effective for transfers of assets from customers received on or

after 1 July 2009

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
the impact of these new and revised HKFRSs upon initial
application. So far, it has concluded that while the adoption
of HKFRS 8 and HKAS 1 (Revised) may result in new or
amended disclosures and the adoption of HKFRS 3 (Revised)
and HKAS 27 (Revised) may result in changes in accounting
policies, these new and revised HKFRSs are unlikely to have
a significant impact on the Group’s results of operations
and financial position.
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A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating
policies the Company controls, directly or indirectly, so as to
obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
income statement to the extent of dividends received and
receivable. The Company’s interests in subsidiaries are
stated at cost less any impairment losses.

A joint venture is an entity set up by contractual
arrangement, whereby the Group and other parties
undertake an economic activity. The joint venture operates
as a separate entity in which the Group and the other
parties have an interest.

The joint venture agreement between the venturers
stipulates the capital contributions of the joint venture
parties, the duration of the joint venture and the basis on
which the assets are to be realised upon its dissolution.
The profits and losses from the joint venture’'s operations
and any distributions of surplus assets are shared by the
venturers, either in proportion to their respective capital
contributions, or in accordance with the terms of the joint
venture agreement.

A joint venture is treated as:

(a) a subsidiary, if the Group has unilateral control,
directly or indirectly, over the joint venture;

(b) a jointly-controlled entity, if the Group does not have
unilateral control, but has joint control, directly or
indirectly, over the joint venture;
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(c) an associate, if the Group does not have unilateral or
joint control, but holds, directly or indirectly, generally
not less than 20% of the joint venture's registered
capital and is in a position to exercise significant
influence over the joint venture; or

(d) an equity investment accounted for in accordance with
HKAS 39, if the Group holds, directly or indirectly,
less than 20% of the joint venture’s registered capital
and has neither joint control of, nor is in a position to
exercise significant influence over, the joint venture.

An associate is an entity, not being a subsidiary or a
jointly-controlled entity, in which the Group has a long
term interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity
voting rights and over which it is in a position to exercise
significant influence.

The Group's share of the post-acquisition results and
reserves of associates is included in the consolidated income
statement and consolidated reserves, respectively. The
Group's interests in associates are stated in the consolidated
balance sheet at the Group's share of net assets under the
equity method of accounting, less any impairment losses.
Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interests in the associates, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred.

The results of associates are included in the Company's
income statement to the extent of dividends received
and receivable. The Company’s interests in associates are
treated as non-current assets and are stated at cost less any
impairment losses.
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A jointly-controlled entity is a joint venture that is subject to
joint control, resulting in none of the participating parties
having unilateral control over the economic activity of the
jointly-controlled entity.

The Group's share of the post-acquisition results and
reserves of jointly-controlled entities is included in the
consolidated income statement and consolidated reserves,
respectively. The Group’s interests in jointly-controlled
entities are stated in the consolidated balance sheet at the
Group’s share of net assets under the equity method of
accounting, less any impairment losses. Unrealised gains
and losses resulting from transactions between the Group
and its jointly-controlled entities are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interests in the jointly-controlled
entities, except where unrealised losses provide evidence of
an impairment of the asset transferred.

The results of jointly-controlled entities are included in the
Company’s income statement to the extent of dividends
received and receivable. The Company’s interest in a jointly-
controlled entity is treated as non-current assets and is
stated at cost less any impairment losses.

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries represents
the excess of the cost of the business combination over
the Group's interest in the net fair value of the acquirees’
identifiable assets acquired, and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed as at the date of acquisition.
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Goodwill on acquisitions for which the agreement date
is on or after 1 January 2005

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised in the
consolidated balance sheet as an asset, initially measured
at cost and subsequently at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses.

The carrying amount of goodwill is reviewed for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test
of goodwill as at 31 March. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is,
from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s
cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating
units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or
liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or groups
of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units), to which the goodwill relates. Where the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (group of
cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount,
an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent
period.

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit (group
of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of
the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal
of the operation. Goodwill disposed of in this circumstance
is measured based on the relative values of the operation
disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.
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Goodwill previously eliminated against consolidated
reserves

Prior to the adoption of the HKICPA’s Statement of
Standard Accounting Practice 30 “Business Combinations”
(“SSAP 30") in 2001, goodwill arising on acquisition was
eliminated against consolidated reserve in the year of
acquisition. On the adoption of HKFRS 3, such goodwill
remains eliminated against consolidated reserve and is not
recognised in the income statement when all or part of the
business to which the goodwill relates is disposed of or
when a cash-generating unit to which the goodwill relates
becomes impaired.

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, financial assets, investment properties and
goodwill), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An
asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’'s or
cash-generating unit's value in use and its fair value less
costs to sell, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets or groups of
assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined
for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An
impairment loss is charged to the income statement in the
period in which it arises.
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An assessment is made at each reporting date as to
whether there is any indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have
decreased. If such an indication exists, the recoverable
amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment
loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.
A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the
income statement in the period in which it arises.

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party, directly or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, (i) controls, is controlled by, or is under
common control with, the Group; (ii) has an interest in
the Group that gives it significant influence over the
Group; or (iii) has joint control over the Group;

(b) the party is an associate;
(c)  the party is a jointly-controlled entity;

(d) the party is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or its parent;

(e) the party is a close member of the family of any
individual referred to in (a) or (d);

(f) the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly
controlled or significantly influenced by or for which
significant voting power in such entity resides with,
directly or indirectly, any individual referred to in (d) or
(e); or

(g) the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of the employees of the Group, or of any
entity that is a related party of the Group.
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Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost or valuation less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item
of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase
price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the
asset to its working condition and location for its intended
use. Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant
and equipment have been put into operation, such as
repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to the income
statement in the period in which it is incurred. In situations
where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditure
has resulted in an increase in the future economic benefits
expected to be obtained from the use of an item of
property, plant and equipment, and where the cost of the
item can be measured reliably, the expenditure is capitalised
as an additional cost of that asset or as a replacement.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost or valuation of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful
life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are as
follows:

Hotel properties Over the lease terms

Leasehold land Over the lease terms

Buildings 2.5% to 3%
Leasehold improvements 10% to 15%
Plant and machinery 10%

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 15% to 20%
Motor vehicles 20%
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Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost or valuation of that item
is allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and each
part is depreciated separately.

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each
balance sheet date.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on
disposal or retirement recognised in the income statement
in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of
the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents a building under
construction, which is stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct
costs of construction and capitalised borrowing costs on
related borrowed funds during the period of construction.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment or investment
properties when completed and ready for use.
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Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
held to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation,
rather than for use in the production or supply of goods
or services or for administrative purposes; or for sale in the
ordinary course of business. Such properties are measured
initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, investment properties are stated at fair
value, which reflects market conditions at the balance sheet
date.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in the income statement
in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the income statement
in the year of the retirement or disposal.

Intangible assets represent the rights to purchase pre-
determined lots of land pursuant to legal binding
agreements. Intangible assets are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses.
Intangible assets are amortised to properties under
development as land costs in accordance with the future
acquisition patterns of these pre-determined lots of land
within the unexpired periods of the agreements.
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Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title,
are accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of
a finance lease, the cost of the leased asset is capitalised
at the present value of the minimum lease payments
and recorded together with the obligation, excluding the
interest element, to reflect the purchase and financing.
Assets held under capitalised finance leases are included
in property, plant and equipment and depreciated over the
shorter of the lease terms and the estimated useful lives of
the assets. The finance costs of such leases are charged to
the income statement so as to provide a constant periodic
rate of charge over the lease terms.

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a
financing nature are accounted for as finance leases, but are
depreciated over their estimated useful lives.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted
for as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor,
assets leased by the Group under operating leases are
included in non-current assets, and rentals receivable under
the operating leases are credited to the income statement
on the straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the
Group is the lessee, rentals payable under the operating
leases are charged to the income statement on the straight-
line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms. When the lease
payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land and
buildings elements, the entire lease payments are included
in the cost of the land and buildings as a finance lease in
property, plant and equipment.

NEERA SR ZEREB0 [ R E R
MESERA ARSI MBEEETD
JIAMBHEE - RMBHEOFG BOEE
ZRADZRREZRLBEENRRLHEER
- BPTPERBENEREURFBERE
R-BRCHBHEOTZEERRYE B
B R#E M RRSABNFRREZEE
ERFEHBEEETIE - B 2R B
AEFFAMER Bt SEOHRREE -
S

ARFEBERAIE 2 A A OBAZ
AETARAREAR - ERE B
PELESE

REEHRAETRZEREBM @ H N E R
DELHEAME  MBERAHEENIREEH
E-MAKERSLEA AEEREEHEE
BTHEZEENFARERBDEE MK
SHER Tz WA NRERUERE
ArABER - WAREREABEA  EEHE
ETNZRNESBRARAERER KRS
=IER -

REBERKEBROEN 2 L MBS HRIAKK
SRR MEERRIIREBABEREER -HE
NAIR L3 RABF R D A S DA - 25
ME IR MBFTZRAIERRYE
BEEEEZBERE -

TAK SING ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED ## B\ &

77



78

Properties under development are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value and comprise land costs,
construction costs, borrowing costs, professional fees and
other costs directly attributable to such properties incurred
during the development period.

Properties under development are classified as current assets
unless the construction period of the relevant property
development project is expected to complete beyond the
normal operating cycle. On completion, the properties are
transferred to properties held for sale.

Financial assets in the scope of HKAS 39 are classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and receivables, and available-for-sale financial assets, as
appropriate. When financial assets are recognised initially,
they are measured at fair value, plus, in the case of
investments not at fair value through profit or loss, directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group assesses whether a contract contains an
embedded derivative when the Group first becomes a
party to it and assesses whether an embedded derivative is
required to be separated from the host contract when the
analysis shows that the economic characteristics and risks
of the embedded derivative are not closely related to those
of the host contract. Reassessment only occurs if there is
a change in the terms of the contract that significantly
modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required
under the contract.
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The Group determines the classification of its financial
assets after initial recognition and, where allowed and
appropriate, re-evaluates this designation at the balance
sheet date.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading. Financial assets are
classified as held for trading if they are acquired for
the purpose of sale in the near term. Gains or losses on
investments held for trading are recognised in the income
statement. The net fair value gain or loss recognised in the
income statement does not include any dividends on these
financial assets, which are recognised in accordance with
the policy set out for “Revenue recognition” below.
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Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Such assets are subsequently carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest method less
any allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated
taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and includes fees that are an intergral part of the effective
interest rate and transaction costs. Gains and losses are
recognised in the income statement when the loans and
receivables are derecognised or impaired, as well as through
the amortisation process.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative
financial assets in listed and unlisted equity securities that
are designated as available for sale or are not classified in
any of the other two categories. After initial recognition,
available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value,
with gains or losses recognised as a separate component
of equity until the investment is derecognised or until
the investment is determined to be impaired, at which
time the cumulative gain or loss previously reported in
equity is included in the income statement. Interest and
dividends earned are reported as interest income and
dividend income, respectively and are recognised in the
income statement as “Other income” in accordance with
the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.
Losses arising from the impairment of such investments are
recognised in the income statement as “Impairment losses
on available-for-sale financial assets” and are transferred
from the available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve.
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Available-for-sale financial assets (continued)

When the fair value of unlisted equity securities cannot be
reliably measured because (a) the variability in the range
of reasonable fair value estimates is significant for that
investment or (b) the probabilities of the various estimates
within the range cannot be reasonably assessed and used in
estimating fair value, such securities are stated at cost less
any impairment losses.

Fair value

The fair value of investments that are actively traded in
organised financial markets is determined by reference to
quoted market bid prices at the close of business at the
balance sheet date. For investments where there is no active
market, fair value is determined using valuation techniques.
Such techniques include using recent arm’s length market
transactions; reference to the current market value of
another instrument which is substantially the same; and a
discounted cash flow analysis.

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether
there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired.
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Assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
on loans and receivables carried at amortised cost has
been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e.,
the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).
The carrying amount of the asset is reduced either directly
or through the use of an allowance account. The amount of
the impairment loss is recognised in the income statement.
Loans and receivables together with any associated
allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect
of future recovery.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed by
adjusting the allowance account. Any subsequent reversal of
an impairment loss is recognised in the income statement,
to the extent that the carrying value of the asset does not
exceed its amortised cost at the reversal date.

In relation to trade debtors and other receivables, a
provision for impairment is made when there is objective
evidence (such as the probability of insolvency or significant
financial difficulties of the debtor and significant changes in
the technological, market, economic or legal environment
that have an adverse effect on the debtor) that the Group
will not be able to collect all of the amounts due under
the original terms of an invoice. The carrying amount of
the receivables is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. Impaired debts are derecognised when they are
assessed as uncollectible.
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Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on
an unquoted equity instrument that is not carried at fair
value because its fair value cannot be reliably measured has
been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows discounted
at the current market rate of return for a similar financial
asset. Impairment losses on these assets are not reversed.

Available-for-sale financial assets

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any
principal payment and amortisation) and its current fair
value, less any impairment loss previously recognised in
the income statement, is transferred from equity to the
income statement. A provision for impairment is made for
available-for-sale equity investments when there has been a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value below its
cost or where other objective evidence of impairment exists.
The determination of what is “significant” and “prolonged”
requires judgement. In addition, the Group evaluates other
factors, such as the share price volatility. Impairment losses
on equity instruments classified as available for sale are not
reversed through the income statement.
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A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
derecognised where:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired;

o the Group retains the rights to receive cash flows from
the asset, but has assumed an obligation to pay them
in full without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset and either (a) has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
(b) has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred
control of the asset.

Where the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset and has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset
nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised
to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement in
the asset. Continuing involvement that takes the form of
a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the
maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be
required to repay.

Where continuing involvement takes the form of a written
and/or purchased option (including a cash-settled option
or similar provision) on the transferred asset, the extent of
the Group’s continuing involvement is the amount of the
transferred asset that the Group may repurchase, except
in the case of a written put option (including a cash-
settled option or similar provision) on an asset measured
at fair value, where the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement is limited to the lower of the fair value of the
transferred asset and the option exercise price.
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Financial liabilities are initially stated at fair value less
directly attributable transaction costs and are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. The
related interest expense is recognised within “finance costs”
in the income statement.

Gains and losses are recognised in the income statement
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
amortisation process.

Financial guarantee contracts in the scope of HKAS
39 are accounted for as financial liabilities. A financial
guarantee contract is recognised initially at its fair value
less transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of the financial guarantee contract,
except when such contract is recognised at fair value
through profit or loss. Subsequent to initial recognition,
the Group measures the financial guarantee contract at
the higher of: (i) the amount of the best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the
balance sheet date; and (ii) the amount initially recognised
less, when appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised
in accordance with HKAS 18 Revenue.
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A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the income statement.

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out basis
and, in the case of work in progress and finished goods,
comprises direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of overheads. Net realisable value is based on
estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be
incurred to completion and disposal.

Temporary export quotas purchased are charged to the
income statement at the date when goods are shipped
under that quota category or upon expiry.

Export quotas allocated by the authorities in the countries
in which the Group operates are not capitalised as assets in
the consolidated balance sheet.

Income arising from the sale of export quotas is credited to
the income statement in the year of disposal.
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Properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value on an individual property basis. Cost
includes all development expenditure, applicable borrowing
costs and other direct costs attributable to such properties.
Net realisable value is determined by reference to the
prevailing market price.

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash,
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and
have a short maturity of generally within three months
when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable
on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.

For the purpose of the balance sheets, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, including
term deposits, which are not restricted as to use.

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can
be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the
balance sheet date of the future expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage
of time is included in finance costs in the income statement.
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Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax is recognised in the income statement, or in equity
if it relates to items that are recognised in the same or a
different period directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior
periods are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the balance sheet date between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

o where the deferred tax liability arises from goodwill
or the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with interests in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures, where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, carryforward of unused tax credits
and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

o where the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with interests in subsidiaries, associates and
joint ventures, deferred tax assets are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Conversely, previously unrecognised deferred tax
assets are reassessed at each balance sheet date and are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date.
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Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to
the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when the
revenue can be measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@) from the sale of goods and quotas, when the
significant risks and rewards of ownership have
been transferred to the buyer, provided that the
Group maintains neither managerial involvement to
the degree usually associated with ownership, nor
effective control over the goods and quotas sold;

(b) income from the restaurant and food businesses, at
the point of sale to customers;

(c) income from the sale of completed properties, on
the exchange of legally binding unconditional sales
contracts;

(d) rental income, in the period in which the properties
are let out and on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms;

(e) hotel and other service income, in the period in which
such services are rendered; and

(f)  interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that discounts
the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial instrument to the net
carrying amount of the financial assets.
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The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group's
operations. Employees (including directors) of the Group
receive remuneration in the form of share-based payment
transactions, whereby employees render services as
consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is
measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which
they are granted. The fair value is determined by an external
valuer using a binomial model, further details of which are
given in note 35. In valuing equity-settled transactions, no
account is taken of any performance conditions, other than
conditions linked to the price of the shares of the Company
(“market conditions”), if applicable.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised,
together with a corresponding increase in equity, over the
period in which the performance and/or service conditions
are fulfilled, ending on the date on which the relevant
employees become fully entitled to the award (the “vesting
date”). The cumulative expense recognised for equity-
settled transactions at each balance sheet date until the
vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period
has expired and the Group’s best estimate of the number of
equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or
credit to the income statement for a period represents the
movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at the
beginning and end of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately
vest, except for awards where vesting is conditional upon a
market condition, which are treated as vesting irrespective
of whether or not the market condition is satisfied, provided
that all other performance conditions are satisfied.
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Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified,
as a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had
not been modified. In addition, an expense is recognised
for any modification, which increases the total fair value
of the share-based payment arrangement, or is otherwise
beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of
modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if
it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense
not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled
award, and is designated as a replacement award on the
date that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are
treated as if they were a modification of the original award,
as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per
share.

The Group has adopted the transitional provisions of HKFRS
2 in respect of equity-settled awards and has applied HKFRS
2 only to equity-settled awards granted after 7 November
2002 that had not vested by 1 January 2005 and to those
granted on or after 1 January 2005.

Paid leave carried forward

The Group provides paid annual leave to its employees
under their employment contracts on a calendar year basis.
Under certain circumstances, such leave which remains
untaken as at the balance sheet date is permitted to be
carried forward and utilised by the respective employees in
the following year. An accrual is made at the balance sheet
date for the expected future cost of such paid leave earned
during the year by the employees and carried forward.
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Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for those employees who are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to the income statement as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.
The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered fund.
The Group's employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme, except
for the Group’s employer voluntary contributions, which
are refunded to the Group when the employee leaves
employment prior to the contributions vesting fully, in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate
in Mainland China are required to participate in central
pension schemes (the “CP Schemes”) operated by
respective local municipal governments. These subsidiaries
are required to contribute a certain percentage of their
covered payroll to the CP Schemes to fund their benefits.
The only obligation of the Group with respect to the CP
Schemes is to pay the ongoing required contributions under
the CP Schemes. Contributions under the CP Schemes are
charged to the income statement as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the CP Schemes.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as
part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such
borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs capitalised.
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Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as
a separate allocation of retained profits within the equity
section of the balance sheet, until they have been approved
by the shareholders in a general meeting. When these
dividends have been approved by the shareholders and
declared, they are recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s memorandum of association and
bye-laws grant the directors the authority to declare interim
dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are recognised
immediately as a liability when they are proposed and
declared.

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional and presentation
currency. Each entity in the Group determines its own
functional currency and items included in the financial
statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency. Foreign currency transactions are
initially recorded using the functional currency rates ruling
at the date of the transactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the
balance sheet date. All differences are taken to the income
statement. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.
Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value was determined.

ANNUAL REPORT 2009 4

EEEB AR EENEEREBR  BA
HETZRBEMNOBASBILLK EEZ
FREPBERA S EEBRILAE © Lt F AL
BERRILERER REREKSHERR
—HAE-

HRARBAKERAMEARRESS
ERFHES  RTFHREARSEZELE
K o B It - AP HRRR R A R B B I By BB i
RRBE-

RERBREDARRR ZYERERE
KETLRE ARBEZBEEBETEASY
2R MBNSBEB W BHREZA
BN ERTE - INER SRR FHAZ
W B’ 2 [E RV F 0k - NEHE B IAINE
RECEBEERABNREER ZIE
EWMEREFHBLE -FIAEZBAFT AMNS
R-BINE 2 ESLRAFEZIFEHIERB TS
RERR S B PIRERBE - RINE 2 R
B EZHEERKEBNRNAFEEEER
RERBE -



The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries,
associates and jointly-controlled entities are currencies other
than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the balance sheet date,
the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated
into the presentation currency of the Company at the
exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date and their
income statements are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the weighted average exchange rates for the year. The
resulting exchange differences are included in a separate
component of equity. On disposal of a foreign entity, the
deferred cumulative amount recognised in equity relating to
that particular foreign operation is recognised in the income
statement.

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement,
the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the
dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of
overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.
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The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities, at the reporting date. However,
uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected
in the future.

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart
from those involving estimations, which have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements:

Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases
on its investment property portfolio. The Group has
determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and
conditions of the arrangements, that it retains all the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of these
properties which are leased out on operating leases.
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Classification between investment properties and
owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making
that judgement. Investment property is a property held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore,
the Group considers whether a property generates cash
flows largely independently of the other assets held by the
Group.

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation and another portion
that is held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services or for administrative purposes. If these portions
could be sold separately (or leased out separately under
a finance lease), the Group accounts for the portions
separately. If the portions could not be sold separately, the
property is an investment property only if an insignificant
portion is held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services or for administrative purposes.

Judgement is made on an individual property basis to
determine whether ancillary services are so significant that a
property does not qualify as investment property.
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Classification between investment properties and
properties held for sale

The Group develops properties held for sale and properties
held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation.
Judgement is made by management on determining
whether a property is designated as an investment property
or a property held for sale. The Group considers its intention
for holding the properties at the early development stage
of the related properties. During the course of construction,
the related properties under construction are accounted for
as properties under development included in current assets
if the properties are intended for sale after its completion,
whereas, the properties are accounted for as construction
in progress included in non-current assets if the properties
are intended to be held to earn rentals and/or for capital
appreciation. Upon completion of the properties, the
properties held for sale are transferred to properties held for
sale and are stated at cost, while the properties held to earn
rentals and/or for capital appreciation are transferred to
investment properties and are subject to revaluation at each
balance sheet date.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year are discussed below.
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Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least
on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value
in use of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is
allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the Group to
make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from
the cash-generating units and also to choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those
cash flows. The carrying amount of goodwill at 31 March
2009 was HK$40,264,000 (2008: HK$41,399,000). More
details are given in note 18.

Estimate of fair value of investment properties

The Group engaged Vigers Appraisal & Consulting Limited
("Vigers”), independent professionally qualified valuers, to
perform the valuation of the investment properties of the
Group at the balance sheet date. The valuation were carried
out as follows:

Vigers valued the properties using discounted cash flow
analysis which discounts the projected free cash flow
generated from the properties at an appropriate market rate
of return to arrive at the present values of the properties.
They also cross-checked the values with the available market
sales comparables using the direct comparison method.

The carrying amount of investment properties of the
Group as at 31 March 2009 was HK$1,211,768,000 (2008:
HK$1,191,683,000).

Estimate of fair value of intangible assets

The Group engaged Vigers, independent professionally
qualified valuers, to perform the valuation of the
intangible assets of the Group at the date of acquisition
of a subsidiary. Such valuation was based on certain
assumptions, which are subject to uncertainty and might
materially differ from the actual results. The carrying
amount of intangible assets of the Group as at 31 March
2009 was HK$533,559,000 (2008: 533,559,000).
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Impairment of non-financial assets (other than
goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets at each reporting
date. Indefinite life intangible assets are tested for
impairment annually and at other times when such indicator
exists. Other non-financial assets are tested for impairment
when there are indicators that the carrying amounts may
not be recoverable. When value in use calculations are
undertaken, management must estimate the expected
future cash flows for the asset or cash-generating unit and
choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value of those cash flows.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the
amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based
upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profits
together with future tax planning strategies. The carrying
value of deferred tax assets relating to recognised tax losses
at 31 March 2009 was HK$330,000 (2008: HK$9,999,000).
Further details are contained in note 33 to the financial
statements.

Recognition and allocation of construction cost on
properties under development

Development costs of properties are recorded as properties
under development during the construction stage and will
be transferred to properties held for sale upon completion.
An apportionment of these costs will be recognised
in the income statement upon the recognition of the
sales of properties. Before the final settlement of the
development costs and other costs relating to the sale of
the properties, these costs are accrued by the Group based
on management’s best estimate.
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Recognition and allocation of construction cost on
properties under development (continued)

When developing properties, the Group may divide the
development projects into phases. Specific costs directly
related to the development of a phase are recorded as
the cost of such phase. Costs that are common to phases
are allocated to individual phases bases on the estimated
saleable area of the entire project.

Where the final settlement of costs and the related cost
allocation is different from the initial estimates, any increase
or decrease in the development costs and other costs would
affect the profit or loss in future years.

Impairment of properties under development

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for its properties under development at each
reporting date. The Group considers the discounted cash
flow projections based on reliable estimates of future
cash flows, assuming that the land will be developed
into buildings with planned capacity within a reasonable
construction period of time. The estimated sales proceeds
and associated development cost will be discounted into
present value as at the date of valuation.

Segment information is presented by way of two segment
formats: (i) on a primary segment reporting basis, by
business segment; and (ii) on a secondary segment reporting
basis, by geographical segment.
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The Group's operating businesses are structured and
managed separately according to the nature of their
operations and the products and services they provide. Each
of the Group’s business segments represents a strategic
business unit that offers products and services which are
subject to risks and returns that are different from those of
other business segments. Summary details of the business
segments are as follows:

- the restaurant, food and hotel segment is engaged in
restaurant and hotel operations and the provision of
food and beverage services;

- the property investment and development segment
comprises the development and sale of properties and
the leasing of commercial and residential premises;
and

- the "others” segment comprises, principally,
investment holding, and other operations.

—  the garment segment is engaged in the manufacture,
trading and distribution of garment products.

In determining the Group’s geographical segments,
revenues and results are attributed to the segments based
on the location of the customers, and assets are attributed
to the segments based on the location of the assets.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with
reference to the selling prices used for sales made to third
parties at the then prevailing market prices.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B IS S M aE
31 March 2009

ENF=A=+ !

4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. DEER (#)
(a) Business segments (a) ¥%28E
The following tables present revenue, profit/(loss) and UNTREZ-ZZETZNFR_ZZTNF
certain asset, liability and expenditure information for AT RALEFERSEEB S
the Group’s business segments for the years ended 31 W m¥(BR)RETFEE-
March 2009 and 2008. BEESTEZER -
Group KE
Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
AR FEARE
Restaurant, Property investment
food and hotel and development Others Eliminations Total Garment Consolidated
A RRRER BERERZR L4 baf &t A% 58
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000
ZETNFE CEENE ZERNE CTEAE O CZEENEF O CERAFE ZEENE O CIIAFE ZTENF ZFIN\F CEEAE RN
A TEL Fan T AT TER Fan TEL T AT TER Fan
Segment revenue: HERE:
Sales to external HEFHREP
Customers 475,105 423978 85,186 267,481 - - - - 560,291 691,459 - 153,860 560,291 845,319
Intersegment sales AEHRLZHE 666 770 34712 5943 - - (4,138) (6713 - - - - - -
Other revenue tulled 2,160 3,35 8,760 120,811 40,933 1,057 - 51,853 125,223 - 5911 51,853 131,134
Total At 477,931 428,103 97,418 394,235 40,933 1,057 (4,138) (6,713) 612,144 816,682 - 159,771 612,144 976,453
Segment results SEEE 50971 68,895 12429 164,375 37,495 (1,185) (667) (770) 100,228 231315 - (39,821) 100,228 191,494
Unallocated corporate~ AABREUA
income 1338 5,497
Unallocated corporate ~ AABLEL M
expenses (26,980) (41,483)
Finance costs BERE (31,59)  (33,091)
Share of profits and EEBERT
Josses of associates EHRER - - 0% 169,630 - - - - 130% 169,630 - - 30% 169,630
Profit before tax BH AR 186,084 292,047
Tax HE (5,408)  (45,643)
Profit for the year RERET 180676 246,404
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B HmE M
31 March 2009
ZEEAF=A=A
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4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. ZEEHR (%)
(a) Business segments (continued) (a) ¥%2%8E (&)
Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
REER FREER
Restaurant, Property investment
food and hotel and development Others Total Garment Consolidated
B RRRER BERERER A @it A& &a
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
HKS'000  HK§'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
ZEINE ZBENE CEEAE CEINE CREAE CBINE CZEAE CERNEF CEEAE RN -BEnf ZZENE
TR T TEn T TiEn T ThR T TR T TEn Tt
Assets and liabilities ~ EEREME
Segment assets PREE 591,216 481,196 2,457,606 2,370,151 16,646 23,19 3,065,468 2,874,543 - 11,307 3,065,468 2,885,850
Interests in associates SUNIPA 31 U] () 931602 766,897 (3013)  (2894) 928582  76399% - - 0858 7639%
Unallocated assets FAREE 559,669 590,664
Total assets BEE 4,553,719 4,240,510
Segment liabilities PRAE 130,854 84,128 89,221 155,868 3,695 13,073 223,770 253,069 - 2479 223,770 255,548
Unallocated liabiltes ~ AAEE (& 1,331,050 1,155,183
Total liabilities B8k 1,554,820 1,410,731
Other segment EAEER:
information:
Depreciation g
- segment -8 23,807 12,897 1,121 9,448 37 - 34,965 22,345 - 1,928 34,965 24,273
- unallocated -FAR 1,54 1,602
36,506 25,875
Capital expenditure S
- segment -58 154,408 144,898 7,899 4,154 - = 162,307 149,052 - 1,740 162,307 150,792
- unallocated kAR 356 1,619
162,663 152,411
Other segment B EER:
information:
Impairment losses REERERL
recognised in the RERE:
income statement:
Impairment of Bl
trade debtors HE k7)) 1311 - = - = k)] 1311 - 3 k7)) 1,384
Reversal of WS
impairment of HEDE
trade debtors (758) (819) - (314) - - (758) (1,133) - - (758) (1133)
Impairment of Ak
other HEZ
receivables BE 287 1172 240 872 942 - 1,469 2,044 - 11,009 1,469 13,053
Write-down of WHGEE
inventories to TER
net realisable BE
value - - - - - - - - - 1,462 - 1,462
1,033 14,766
Changes in fair value of ~ RENEATE
investment properties oyl - - 6,983 117,883 - - 6,983 117883 - - 6,983 117,883
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B IS S M aE
31 March 2009

ZEENF=A=H !

4.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. 7

(b) Geographical segments

The following table presents revenue, certain asset and
expenditure information for the Group’s geographical
segments for the years ended 31 March 2009 and

BMER (8

(b) #EH 5%

ATREBEZE_FZEANFR-_FTTN\F
ZA=T-RLEFEAKEMEDE
s BETEERIIEZEF -

2008.
Group rEH
America South Africa Hong Kong Mainland China Others Consolidated
M :E ] HERE -4 &8
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000  HKS'000 HK$'000  HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HKS'000 HK$'000  HKS'000 HK$'000
ZREIAE CBRNF CEIAFE CBINF CEIAF RN CBEAF CRENE CSEAE CIRNF -IEAE CET)F
TR T Tz TR ThT L ThR L TR T Tz TR
Segment revenue: AENE:
Sales to external HEFIREP
Customers - 54,033 - 81,796 41,958 42,249 518,333 651,406 - 15,835 560,291 845,319
Other segment HEfAEER:
information:
Segment assets PEBE - 2,361 - 8329 127,256 137,909 2,937,017 2,736,194 1,135 1,057 3,065,468 2,885,850
Capital expenditure: BAZA:
- segment -8 - 57 - 1,584 860 1,289 161,447 147,862 - - 162,307 150,792
- unallocated il 356 1,619

162,663 152,411
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Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents the WM AAEE v EX¥B BHEEm (B2

aggregate of the net invoiced value of goods sold, after HBRRE RITAFTH) 03 25 E RFTR M
allowances for goods returned and trade discounts, income RRFS BV UL ~ H B W) 2 U as DA R B W % e K
from the rendering of services, proceeds from the sale of WA BB B -

properties, and gross rental income received and receivable.

Revenue from the following activities is included in THNEBHMBREE T A X
turnover:
Group
rEH
2008
Note HK$'000
ZEENF
B 5 FHET
Revenue W 2
Income from the hotel, BIE OB R R HEBFIRA
restaurant and food businesses 423,978
Gross rental income e ALLzE 42,070
Proceeds from sale of properties B EY XS HIE 225,411
Attributable to continuing RIFEWRRERERZ
operations reported FRELEEBEMN
in the consolidated
income statement 691,459
Sale of goods attributable to BB LEER
a discontinued operation FEAL5H & = 12 153,860
845,319
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The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/

(crediting):

Cost of inventories sold and
services provided
Depreciation
Recognition of prepaid land lease
payments
Release of goodwill upon sale of
developed properties*
Minimum lease payments
under operating leases
for land and buildings
Auditors’ remuneration

Employee benefit expense
(excluding directors’
remuneration (note 8))*:

Wages and salaries
Equity-settled share
option expense/(forfeited)
Pension scheme contributions
(defined contribution
scheme)

BEERFE
ERHERE Z KA

e

TR L3RR 2 MR

HECDERMEZEHEH#E

RIFLERHM N Z
T kEFREES

% BN B 2

B BMRHIX
(T EEMEeZ
BEEME) "
TERF®
AR B B {0
REE L (RE)
RKE K
(FEEHRE)

AEBBBAAN S, (GHA)

Notes

=
m

15

17

18

2008
HK$'000
—ETNF
FET

562,709
25,875

32

17,988
3,076

82,771

9,335

722

92,828
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The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/ AEEBRBEMAMNENR (FGFTA):

(crediting): (continued) (&)
Group
rEH
2008
Notes HK$'000
ZEENF
Bt 5 FHET

Foreign exchange differences, net  JE} = & 1,207
Impairment of trade debtors JE W RORE 28 1,384
Reversal of impairment of JRE 5 OBk 1 [

trade debtors 28 (1,133)
Impairment of other receivables H e W FOR B 13,053
Write-down of inventories MR FEZ]#R)FE

to net realisable value 1,462
Fair value loss/(gain) on financial BAFEFTAEBREZ

assets at fair value through ERMEECATE

profit or loss, net BiE (W) F8E (886)
Changes in fair value of WEMERN T EILRFE

investment properties, net 16 (117,883)
Quota expenses Al %8 2 65
Gross rental income He WAL (42,070)
Direct operating expenses REWERSWAZ

(including repairs and BEEEETH

maintenance) arising on rental- (BREEERRE)

earning investment properties 1,481

(40,589)

Bank interest income RATH B WA (5,797)
Gain on disposal of HERHEERE 2 W

available-for-sale investments -
Loss on disposal of items of LEME - -BE R

property, plant and equipment Bl Ei 5,128
Loss/(gain) on disposal of HEREMEZEE/

investment properties (M zs) 169
Loss/(gain) on disposal of a HE—MfBARZ

subsidiary B8 (W) 38 9,083
Quota income [EELVON (488)
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The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/

(crediting): (continued)

* Goodwill arising on acquisition of a subsidiary whose

principal activity is property investment and development is

released by reference to the sale of the related developed

properties. The amount was included in “Other expenses” on

the face of the consolidated income statement.

# Inclusive of an amount of HK$54,977,000 (2008:
HK$64,464,000) classified under cost of inventories sold and

services provided.

The disclosures presented in this note for the year ended
31 March 2008 included those amounts charged/credited in

respect of the discontinued operation.

Interest in respect of:

Bank loans, overdrafts and
other loans wholly repayable
within five years

Finance leases

Total interest expense on
financial liabilities not at fair
value through profit or loss

Less: Finance cost capitalised

Attributable to continuing
operations reported in the
consolidated income statement

Attributable to a discontinued
operation
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A TEAFE] -

# HBa

BB RHEEFERREHRYE

X A54,977,0008 T (Z 2T N\ F:

64,464,000 7T ) °

S ER AR =

ZN\FZHBEBEREER

BAEBIREEB NG Bt ARE-

Note

B =

12

Group
rEE
2008
HK$'000
—EENF
FHT

39,601
51

39,652
(6,561)

33,091

32,403

688

33,091
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Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant
to the Rules Governing the Listing of the Securities on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”)
and Section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, is

REEEHARIMBRARAES TR
Al ([ETARR) REBEERBEDIE1611%
BEEEMEOT:

as follows:
Group
rEH
2008
HK$'000
—ETNF
FET
Fees e 549
Other emoluments: H & -
Salaries, allowances and e RBREYNE
benefits in kind 5,830
Bonuses paid and payables* B RERIEAL* 10,870
Equity-settled share option expense VARR 19 45 B R I g 2 5,882
Pension scheme contributions RN FRETE 154
22,736
23,285
2 Executive directors of the Company are entitled to bonus * RARMITE S ARG 2 LA L HIME

payments which are approved by the Remuneration
Committee with reference to the Group’s current year profit

and individual performance.

In the prior year, certain directors were granted share
options, in respect of their services to the Group, under
the share option scheme of the Company, further details
of which are set out in note 35 to the financial statements.
The fair value of such options which has been recognised
in the income statement over the vesting period, was
determined as at the date of grant and the amount included
in the financial statements for the current year is included in
the above directors’ remuneration disclosures.
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The fees paid to independent non-executive directors AEEENBIFNTESHESN

during the year were as follows: I
Fees
HK$'000
we
T T
2009 —EBAF
Mr. Lo Ming Chi, Charles BEE k& 100
Mr. Lo Man Kit, Sam & X 100
Mr. Wong See King =ERBLAE 100
300
2008 —EBNE
Mr. Lo Ming Chi, Charles SRR A& 100
Mr. Lo Man Kit, Sam B X 100
Mr. Wong See King* mERBLE 61
261
* Appointed as an independent non-executive director & RZTZTLFNAZ+=ARZMHF
on 23 August 2007 REIENITES
There were no other emoluments payable to the REWMENBEIIFNTES 2 HAt
independent non-executive directors during the year e (ZEZTNF &) o
(2008: Nil).
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2009

Executive directors:
Mr. Ma Kai Cheung
Mr. Ma Kai Yum
Mr. Ng Yan Kwong

Non-executive directors:

Mr. Zhang Huagiao*
Mr. Yip Hing Chung

ANNUAL REPORT 2009 4 &

Fees
HK$'000
He
TER
ZEThE
WITESR:
BENBEE =
EN9REE =
RERTE =
FRTEE:
RAGE L LS 100
EERELE 100
200

Salaries,
allowances
and benefits
in kind
HK$'000
He 2H
RENHE
THT

2,262
1,729
1,691

5,682

174

5,856

Bonuses
paid and
payables
HK$'000

B R
FERTEA

TEL

2,972
2,972
1,486

7,430

7,430

Equity-
settled
share option
expense
HK$'000
RRBEE
AREXH
TEL

376

376

Pension
scheme
contributions
HK$'000
Be
HE [
TAT

52
52
50

Total
remuneration
HK$'000

WesR
TAT

5,286
4,753
3,227

13,266

476
274

14,016



Salaries,
allowances
and benefits

Fees in kind
HK$'000 HK$'000
e 2R
#e REWAZ
TAT TR
2008 —EENF
Executive directors: HITEE:
Mr. Ma Kai Cheung BNELE - 2,250
Mr. Ma Kai Yum HSNREE - 1,719
Mr. Ng Yan Kwong RBAEE - 1,681
- 5,650
Non-executive directors: ~ 3FEI{TES
Mr. Zhang Huagiao wCBEE 188 =
Mr. Yip Hing Chung EERLAE 100 180
288 5,830
# Resigned as a non-executive director on 30 September

2008.

There was no arrangement under which a director

waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during

the year.

Equity-
Bonuses settled Pension
paid and  share option scheme Total
payables expense contributions remuneration
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B R =3 Bfrg

BATA RREANZ TR MeshR
THL TATL TR TR

4,380 = 52 6,682
4,380 = 52 6,151
2,110 = 50 3,841
10,870 = 154 16,674

= 5,882 = 6,070

= = = 280
10,870 5,882 154 23,024

# R-ZEENFAA=+TBERLEL
AR EFNTESRG -

RERNZBERABEARESRENX
RIBRELME -
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The five highest paid employees of the Group during AEEzRNERHEERIE=M (ZZF

the year included three (2008: three) directors, details of NEFE-Z)EE BEHFMAFEEHIIN EX
whose remuneration are set out in note 8 above. Details of M8 -MER  HpM (ZFZTNF: M
the remuneration of the remaining two (2008: two) non- f)EENRaRFEENMESFBFLT

director, highest paid employees for the year are as follows:

Group
A
2008
HK$'000
—ETNEF
THET

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind &% 2BE R EWHEE 1,948
Bonuses paid and payables BT RERIELL 1,166

3,114

The number of non-director, highest paid employees whose FEENERFEEZHFHEENT
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

Number of employees

BEEAZ
2008
—TTN\F
HK$500,000 to HK$1,000,000 500,000/ 7T 1,000,000/ 7T -
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001/ 7L £1,500,000/8 7T 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,500,000 1,500,001/ 7L £2,500,00075 7T 1
2
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Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
16.5% (2008: 17.5%) on the estimated assessable profits
arising in Hong Kong during the year. The lower Hong Kong
profits tax rate is effective from the year of assessment
2008/2009, and so is applicable to the assessable profits
arising in Hong Kong for the whole year ended 31 March
2009. Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been
calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the countries in
which the Group operates, based on existing legislation,
interpretations and practices in respect thereof.

Group: £H5:
Current — Hong Kong B — &%
Overprovision in prior years VAR S R B
Current — Mainland China BIVER — A B K B
Corporate income tax SR
Land appreciation tax T 3B E TR
Overprovision in prior year VAR 4 S MR B
Deferred tax expense IR R TH 2
Total tax charge for the year REEFERBRTIES H

BERFERIBRBEFERNRNES 2 M5t HE
RMBFIEHEE165%TE (T NFE:
175%) " A= N\F ZZTNFER
HEER BEBFESH 2B ETE - Fiti#E
AR -ZETNE=A=+—"HILEEZ2
FRREBERTAT o FIMND R FERT R
FeRHMBEIRBEANEELEMEFRR 2
1TE0 2B REN BT R E R E-

Group
KEE
2008
Note HK$'000
—EENF
B 5 TETT

23,380
12,186

33 10,077

45,643
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A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit
before tax using the statutory rates for the countries in
which the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are
domiciled to the tax expense at the effective tax rates, and
a reconciliation of the applicable rates (i.e., the statutory tax
rates) to the effective tax rates, are as follows:

Profit before tax (including BEADER (B21E
loss from a discontinued EEEER T ER)
operation)

Tax at the statutory tax rate BEEMEANEZHIE

Lower tax rate of H R 2 BEFH =R
other countries

Higher tax rate of HWER 28X

other countries
Effect on opening deferred tax  Hf 4/ i iE 7 18 7 &

of decrease in rate B2 e
Adjustments in respect of E’JBEUE@?RIE{’EE
current tax of LA R F 78 2

previous periods
Profits and losses attributable & (Bt 2 2 B i A

to an associate REE
Income not subject to tax BAERBA
Expenses not deductible for tax NAIHIF 2 A
Land appreciation tax I Hb I E R
Tax losses utilised REARTEE

from previous periods EEABIEEE
Tax losses not recognised KRR 2 I8 B 18
Tax charge at the Group's BRAEE BB X

effective rate AEZHREXL
Represented by: ﬁi% :

Tax charge attribute to RiralEmERE
continuing operations SE S **FEHTZ
reported in the consolidated WIEX B
income statement

Tax credit attribute to ERFECERE
a discontinued operation 0 T8 W 2
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LTAEBERRBRANEF < MEBEZ B (K
BARQ T&EK*B@ZW%QT%%FEH
.%Ziﬂifﬁ—v—u‘l‘ )Eﬁ? \H—‘EJFQ:Z
MIBS 2 88k - A RIE %m$(W£EM
K)MEMRBIE 2 HIR:

Group
rEH
2008
—TEN\F

HK$'000 %

FHETT

292,047
51,108 17.5
(1,700) (0.6)
8,319 2.8
(29,685) (10.2)
(955) (0.3)
8,761 3.0
4,143 1.4
(4,797) (1.6)
10,449 3.6
45,643 15.6
2008
Note HK$'000
—EENF
B 5 FHET
46,629
12 (986)
45,643



The share of tax attributable to an associate amounting
to HK$54,434,000 (2008: HK$48,345,000) is included in
“Share of profits and losses of associates” on the face of
the consolidated income statement.

The consolidated profit attributable to equity holders of the
parent for the year ended 31 March 2009 includes a profit
of HK$43,183,000 (2008: HK$10,312,000) which has been
dealt with in the financial statements of the Company (note
36(b)).

In the prior year, pursuant to a written resolution passed
on 27 July 2007, the Board decided to cease the Group's
garment business in view of the intense competition and
thin profit margin encountered by the garment business.

On 31 October 2007, the Group disposed of 80% equity
interest in Amica Fashion Company (Proprietary) Limited
("Amica Fashion”). Amica Fashion is engaged in the
manufacture, trading and distribution of garments and is a
separate business segment in South Africa.

(G4 N B Fi T8 A54,434,0008 7T ( ==
T J\F : 48,345,000/ 7T ) E FH LR A Wk
KA [FE(REE S RN EEH L EE] -

HE_ZZTAF=-A=+—HBLLFE"
NARERFE ARGE SR T R F
43,183,000/ 0 (= Z /\% : 10,312,000
BIL) ERARAHBKHRER ARERE
(MF7E36(b)) °

1A AT T 4 B R 75 2 T 45 3 5 B R K
BZERNE BEERENR_ZFTLFLA
T ERBBERAEBR ZKKES-

RZZEZE+LF+A=+—H K~XEEH
£ Amica Fashion Company (Proprietary)
Limited ([Amica Fashion |) Z80%& #& e
Amica Fashionf¢ E£E - B S RKKD8H
DEREENBEIER -
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The results for the discontinued operation for the year
ended 31 March 2008 are as follows:

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income and gains

Selling and distribution expenses
Administrative expenses

Other expenses

Finance costs

Loss on disposal of Amica Fashion

Loss before tax from
the discontinued operation
Tax

Loss for the year from
the discontinued operation

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company
Minority interests

Loss for the year from
the discontinued operation
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Y &
&R

EH

H b WA R M s
7 85 R S5 B 32
THFAX
H >
MR

€ Amica FashionZ E518

FRFBEXBBRRAER

1A

AERFBEXBEE

ek

SRAERNFAE A

D H IR

REZIFFEXEBER

FHEEBRE_TTN\F=_A=1+—H
ZEFHIWT

2008
HK$'000
—TENEF
TExT

153,860
(142,555)

11,305

5,911
(10,436)
(22,210)
(15,309)

(688)
(9,083)

(40,510)
986

(39,524)

(42,445)
2,921

(39,524)



The net cash flows incurred by the discontinued operation REEFEXEBNEFRELNT

were as follows:

2008
HK$'000
—EENF
FET
Operating activities A ER 11,600
Investing activities wEEE (8,677)
Financing activities BEEH =
Net cash inflow FIRE WA 2,923
2008
—EENF
Loss per share: T EE

Basic, from the discontinued operation —ER HRIIEFEER (HK4.01 centsi L)
Diluted, from the discontinued operation —HE RIERFEES (HK3.93 centsi flll)
The calculations of basic and diluted loss per share from the ERIEFEXEBERNBEREEEETE

discontinued operation were based on: AR
2008
—ETNF

Loss attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the parent from
the discontinued operation
Weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue during
the year used in the basic loss
per share calculation
Weighted average number of
ordinary shares used in the diluted
loss per share calculation

BABERAARIGER

HK$(42,445,000)% 7T
FARRBEHRER
BRZERTEAKR
INHEF I H 2B
1,058,914,904
REFEESREEBRZ
INHE 35 3 B
1,080,653,672
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2008

HK$'000
—EENF
FHxT
Interim — Nil (2008: HK1 cent) P — &

per ordinary share ZZETNF: BRUEW) 11,141

Proposed final — HK1 cent EEAH - GRE BRI
(2008: HK2 cents) per ordinary share —ET)NF 2B 22,882
34,023

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the
approval of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

The calculation of basic earnings per share amounts is based
on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the parent, and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue during the year.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share amounts is
based on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the parent. The weighted average number
of ordinary shares used in the calculation is the number of
ordinary shares in issue during the year, as used in the basic
earnings per share calculation, and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares assumed to have been issued at
no consideration on the deemed exercise or conversion of
all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.
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The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are TR E

based on:

Earnings
Profit attributable to ordinary

equity holders of the parent,
used in the basic earnings
per share calculation
From continuing operations
From a discontinued operation

Shares

Weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue during
the year used in the basic earnings
per share calculation

Effect of dilution — weighted average
number of ordinary shares:

Share options

P

ARETEERERRNZ
BRAEBRERE A
& 15 )4t 7

T
HEFREET

I EBRETAEMNZ
I8 P AN ~F 35 28

ﬁ@ ﬁW

BHE2
—EBRMET I
R

E#

2008
HK$'000
—TTN\F
TAET

271,355
(42,445)

228,910

Number of shares
B EE
—EENF

1,058,914,904

21,738,768

1,080,653,672
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Group

31 March 2009

At 31 March 2008 and
at 1 April 2008:

Cost or valuation

Accumulated depreciation

and impairment

Net carrying amount

At 1 April 2008, net of
accumulated depreciation
and impairment

Additions

Disposal of a subsidiary
(note 38)

Depreciation provided
during the year (note 6)

Disposals/write off

Transfers

Exchange realignment

At 31 March 2009, net of
accumulated depreciation
and impairment

At 31 March 2009:
Cost or valuation

Accumulated depreciation
and impairment

Net carrying amount
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“EEAEZAZT-A

RZEENE
=A=+-Bk

R-FEN\FEA-A:

BRAERGE
S ERAE

REEE

RZZZ\FWA-H
BRI ERAE

RE
HE-FHBAR
(HizE3s)
ERiTER A (Hizke)

HE /i
i
3

RoFENE
ZAzt-8
BHR B E R

RTINS
=R=1-A:
RAABAE
RHFERAE

REFE

Hotel
properties
HK$'000

EENE
TER

(7,216)

232,445
1,825

298,624

312,303

(13,679)

298,624

Land and
buildings
HK$'000

THRET
TER

108,270

(36,907)

71,363

71,363
2,510

(2,300)

(3,176)

(9,821)
683

59,259

77,609

(18,350)

59,259

Leasehold
improvements
HKS'000

ik

HES3
TEn

106,649

(81,248)

25,401

25,401
18,219

(16,007)
(1,348)

542

26,807

121,415

(94,608)

26,807

rE
Furniture,
Plantand fixtures and
machinery equipment
HK$'000 HK$'000
BR-
BER %8
B EL
T TiEn
19,702 49,649

(2,335 (33,813)

17,367 15,836
17,367 15,836
1,287 23,455
4 )
(1,262) (7,715)
(6) (3,470)

169 370
17,554 28,472
21,209 70,412

(3,655) (41,940)

17,554 28,472

Motor
vehicles
HK$'000

L]
TEL

14,778

(6,489)

8,289

8,289
1,535

(2,006)
(26)

149

7,941

16,193

(8,252)

7,941

Construction
in progress
HK$'000

kRIE
TER

128,142

128,142

128,142
101,701

(232,445)
2,602

Total
HK$'000

#E
TER

505,077

(167,109)

337,968

337,968
148,707

()
(36,506)
(8,026)

(9.821)
6,340

438,657

619,141

(180,484)

438,657



Group

31 March 2008

At 31 March 2007 and
at 1 April 2007:

Cost or valuation

Accumulated depreciation

and impairment

Net carrying amount

At 1 April 2007, net of
accumulated depreciation
and impairment

Additions

Acquisition of a subsidiary
(note 37)

Disposal of a subsidiary
(note 38)

Depreciation provided
during the year (note 6)

Disposals/write off

Transfers

Exchange realignment

At 31 March 2008, net of
accumulated depreciation
and impairment

At 31 March 2008:
Cost or valuation

Accumulated depreciation
and impairment

Net carrying amount

—EE\EZf=1-H

RZEZ+4E
=A=+-Bk

R-FTLFMA-A:

BRAERGE
S ERAE

REFE

RZFZLENA-A
BRI ERAE

RE
KE-BHEAR
(KizE37)
HEHBAR (Hzk3s)

ERTERE (Ho)

HE /W&
B
EX A

WZZENF
=ZR=t+-8A"
BB RHTERAE

R-ZZ\F
ZR=t-R:
REAESHE
ZAMERAE

REFE

Hotel
properties
HK$'000

EENE
TER

70,922

(3,845)

67,077

67,077

(1,974)

6,467

7

570

77,887

(6,317)

71,570

Land and
buildings
HK$'000

THRET
TER

90,980

(35.463)

55,517

55,517
1,407

(281)
(1,675)

13,747
2,648

71,363

108,270

(36,907)

71,363

Leasehold
improvements
HKS'000

ik

VES:3
TER

94,848

(64,187)

30,661

30,661
5,645

(12,826)
(154)

2,075

25,401

106,649

(81,248)

25,401

rE
Furniture,
Plantand fixtures and
machinery equipment
HK$'000 HK$'000
BR-
BER %8
B EL
Fin TEn
60,355 63,776
(37,680) (44,705)
22,675 19,071
22,675 19,071
2,844 5,976
- 270
(2,986) (195)
(1,711) (5,978)
(4,311) (4,994)
856 1,686
17,367 15,836
19,702 49,649
(2,335) (33,813)
17,367 15,836

Motor
vehicles
HK$'000

L]
TER

12,320

(7,980)

4,340

4,340
4,582

2,217
(916)

(1.711)
(813)

590

8,289

14,778

(6,489)

8,289

Construction
in progress
HK$'000

ERIE

TER

2,145

2,145

2,145

131,957

(13,391)

7,431

128,142

128,142

128,142

Total
HK$'000

#E
THL

395,346

(193,860)

201,486

201,486
152,411

2,487
(4,378)
(25,875)
(10,272)

356
21,753

337,968

505,077

(167,109)

337,968
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The net book value of the Group’s fixed assets held under
finance leases included in the total amount of motor
vehicles at 31 March 2009, amounted to HK$1,360,000
(2008: HK$1,944,000).

Certain of the Group’s leasehold land and buildings
were revalued at 31 March 1995, by Vigers Appraisal &
Consulting Limited, independent professionally qualified
valuers, at an open market value based on their existing
use. Since 1995, no further valuations of the Group’s
leasehold land and buildings have been carried out, as
the Group has relied upon the exemption granted under
the transitional provisions in paragraph 80A of HKAS 16,
from the requirement to carry out further revaluations of
its property, plant and equipment which were stated at
valuation at that time.

Had these leasehold land and buildings been carried at
historical cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses, their carrying amounts would have been
approximately HK$26,779,000 (2008: HK$29,905,000).
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AEEEERERVABREEEZFRE
BRBRER-_ZETENF=A=T—HEH
AEERN1,360,0008 L (ZEZ)N\F:
1,944,000/ 7T ) °

BYEXEEMBBHEEFHBARER
RACRBARGEZEEGEERNNHEE
THEREFR-ANAF=ZA=1t—HZ
AFEMELETEE B —ANLE A&E
ZHETHWEEBFUEER NEHKE
B SEAEEEEAMASHL 2EES
FHERIZE 1657 P E80AR Z BB IR N A
ETEREMR - BZARYEZ2IHE L
RBFZEE-

MAEELE M2 HBE T RIEF KA
BRRFTECEEAR FEREERENA
26,779,000 7T (ZZEZ \ 4 : 29,905,000
EIL) e



At 31 March 2009, certain of the Group’s property, plant
and equipment with a total carrying value of approximately

R-ZTNF=A=+—"H A&EFHLEF
EERE(E4107,161,0008 T (ZEEN
#F:117,376,0008 7)) AT - FEX&

HK$107,161,000 (2008: HK$117,376,000) were pledged to
secure general banking facilities granted to the Group (note

43).

The cost/valuation of the Group's land and buildings and
hotel properties by geographical location and the terms of

the leases are as follows:

Medium term leasehold land and
buildings situated in Hong Kong,
at 1995 valuation

Medium term leasehold land and
buildings situated in Mainland
China, at cost

Medium term hotel properties situated
in Mainland China, at cost

Freehold land and buildings
situated overseas, at cost

REERF UG —RBITEE (M E

43) °

AEEizitE RHEFRHE D 2 L1 RE
FRBEDENRSESGEEI AT

Group
rEE
2008
HK$'000
—EENF
FH T
REBHEEZ TR
BFPHES
BN AFHE 35,245
B RRE 2 i &
BFREBEL KAE
59,313
P FR B K B 2 O i ) 2
RERFR XY - B ANE 77,887
RENZ L RIEF
KA ZERE - KAE 13,712
186,157
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Carrying amount at 1 April, RUA—BZEREE-

at valuation REE

Net gain from a fair value BRATEFAEZFATN
adjustment

Transfer from owner-occupied REZERYEER
properties

Transfer from prepaid land lease Fh - b 7H & TR e
payments

Disposals &

Exchange realignment B 5, 3 =&

Balance at 31 March, at valuation =A=+—B#&% K&HE

Analysis by geographical location: — #Zii@ £ % :
Hong Kong BB
Mainland China A B K B

The Group’'s investment properties, of which
HK$1,082,883,000 (2008: HK$1,063,641,000) are held
under medium term leases and HK$128,885,000 (2008:
HK$128,042,000) under long term leases, were revalued on
31 March 2009 by Vigers Appraisal & Consulting Limited,
independent professionally qualified valuers, on an open
market, existing use basis. The investment properties are
leased to third parties under operating leases, further
summary details of which are included in note 41(a) to the
financial statements.

At 31 March 2009, the Group's investment properties with
a value of HK$1,019,014,000 (2008: HK$850,530,000)
were pledged to secure general banking facilities granted to
the Group (note 43).

Further particulars of the Group's investment properties are
included on pages 190 to 192.
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Group
rEE
2008
Notes HK$'000
ZEENF
Bt % FAT

1,059,297
6 117,883
2,473

17
(3,774)
15,804

1,191,683

78,054
1,113,629

1,191,683

BUBEMAEMBEENEETHEMAR
ARBERBEABZEESHAER ZF
HERBBEOREME RZZSZNF=A
=+—H®AMAMESD R A1,082,883,000
B (ZZTZF)\F :1,063,641,000/8 7T)
128,885,000 T (ZEEN\F: A&
1280420005’%75) KEMETDIREEME
EMFTE (FF BB A B R R
41(a)A e

%zifv CNEZRA=+—H8 A&EEAR

BTAEE ERRE—RERRMAS
lﬁﬂfﬁ#ﬁz&ﬁ%% B{8/41,019,014,000
BT (ZZFZ )\ : 850,530,00058 7T ) (B
$43) o

AEEZEAMRFHBEHIINE190E
1925 -



Carrying amount at 1 April

Additions

Transfer to investment properties
(note 16)

Recognised during the year

Exchange realignment

Carrying amount at 31 March
Current portion included
in debtors, deposits and
prepayments

Non-current portion

The leasehold land is held under medium term leases and is

situated in Mainland China.

A—HBEEE

|
=
HREREME (MiE16)
5
2

R RHER

BEE 34, 3 &

R=A=1+—BE@EE

B ER 0 B ¥R AR R
®re RIAMNKA

FER B HR (D

Group
rEE
2008
HK$'000
—EENF
FHET

1,120

1,088

(32)

1,056

ME T AP BIRORFAE - 70 BIAkE
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Group

At 1 April 2007:
Cost
Accumulated impairment

Net carrying amount

Cost at 1 April 2007,
net of accumulated impairment
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 37(i))

Acquisition of minority interests (note 37(ii))

At 31 March 2008

At 31 March 2008:
Cost
Accumulated impairment

Net carrying amount

Cost at 1 April 2008,
net of accumulated impairment
Release during the year upon sale of
developed properties (note 6)*

At 31 March 2009

At 31 March 2009:

Cost B AR
Accumulated release upon sale of HECHRYERFTELD
developed properties
Accumulated impairment R2ERE
Net carrying amount BREDH(E
* Goodwill arising on acquisition of a subsidiary whose
principal activity is property investment and development is
YIRS o

released by reference to the sales of the related developed

properties.
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REME

R-ZFZELFWA—B:
DN
ZEtRE

FRERE

R-ZETLFHA-—BZKRE

R EHRE
W i — e B 8 2 &) (B =E37(31))
Yekg D Bl R (B E37(i)

R_ZEZENF=A=+—H

R-BTENF=A=+—8:
DZN
REHREIE

FREDRE

RZZBTENFHA—BKA
B R R E

REECERYEREL (iE6) *

\=BEAE=A=1—H

R-BENF=A=+—8:

HK$'000
TAET

12,384

(3,663)

8,721

8,721

12,080
20,598

41,399

45,062

(3,663)

41,399

41,399

(1,135)

40,264

45,062

(1,135)
(3,663)

40,264

* WE-—HNBAREECEE EE2X

BROERERER NHEEBEZR



As further detailed in note 2.4 to the financial statements,
the Group applied transitional provisions of HKFRS 3 that
permitted goodwill in respect of business combinations
which occurred prior to 2001, to remain eliminated against
consolidated reserves.

The amounts of goodwill remaining in consolidated
reserves, arising from the acquisition of subsidiaries prior to
the adoption of SSAP 30 in 2001, were HK$86,230,000 as
at 31 March 2008 and 2009. The amount of goodwill was
stated at its cost.

Goodwill acquired through business combinations have
been allocated to the following cash-generating units,
which are reportable segments, for impairment testing:

. restaurant, food and hotel cash-generating unit; and

o property investment and development cash-generating
unit.

Restaurant, food and hotel cash-generating unit

The recoverable amount of the restaurant, food and hotel
cash-generating unit has been determined based on a value
in use calculation using cash flow projections based on
financial budgets covering a five-year period approved by
senior management. The discount rate applied to the cash
flow projections is 7% (2008: 8%) and cash flows beyond
the five-year period are extrapolated using a growth rate of
4% (2008: 4%) which is the same as the long term average
growth rate of the industry.

R BmENE2AFL AEERERE
B HREERER BERE  ZER
AHAEAR_ZZT—FRIETHNRE S H
BEERERGRAFKELE-

NZZEENFRZZFTNF=A=1+—H"
A\ BT - FHEMS T EBER FE3055 A1
ERBEANRBHNBARNEENEEH
¥ /586,230,000/8 7T ° B BIL A AP BR ©

w}%%

T

HAXAHELAZBHEC I ERREES
B ERTER 2 BAERER S

e EE ARNKEERESELEM: R

s YMERENRBRRGELHM-

B REREEREELEN

B R RBERSEA B 2B
BEEBERRAEEASREZ AFHE
BHEECAReRERAAE ZERAERE
F-RemeBAMERZINREEXEAET% (=
TEENF 8% ) RALERSREZHEBA
FUBREA% (ZZEZNF 4%) HE
ZITEARPFHEREIER -
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Property investment and development cash-generating
unit

The recoverable amount of the property investment and
development cash-generating unit has been determined
based on a value in use calculation using cash flow
projections based on financial budgets covering the
expected development project period approved by senior
management. The discount rate applied to the cash flow
projections is 8% (2008: 6%).

The carrying amount of goodwill allocated to each of the
cash-generating unit is as follows:

Restaurant,
food and hotel

WERERRREETELEN

MERERERBSELEMN 2 ] IREH
HORBESAEEAB EZBHREERE
BEFHUEBEEFERRSAEBAE
ZEABETE -RERERABEA IR E
B28% (ZZEZEN\F:6%)

BEZEEE I KL EReELENM
LIRS

Property investment

B R@REE
2008
—FENF
HK$'000
TR

Carrying amount of goodwill &2 Z BRI (& 8,721

and development Total
NE -RERER am
2008 2008
—EENF —ZENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR
32,678 41,399

Key assumptions were used in the value in use calculation
of the restaurant, food and hotel cash-generating unit and
the property investment and development cash-generating
unit for 31 March 2009 and 31 March 2008. The following
describes each key assumption on which management has
based its cash flow projections to undertake impairment
testing of goodwill:

Budgeted gross margins — The basis used to determine
the value assigned to the budgeted gross margins is the
average gross margins achieved in the year immediately
before the budget year, increased for expected efficiency
improvements.

Discount rates — The discount rates used are before tax and
reflect specific risks relating to the relevant units.
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AE_TENF=ZHA=+—BRZZEZEN
FZA=+—"BRERBERSELEMN -
MERERBRRSELEN ZFEREE
B EEAETIERR -EEERERS
MEFRAETEHEBRENAMKEZEE
ZR&K:

BEEBREN -RFEEREERENM
BEEBEZEE RERREFEHN —FN
B2 TFHEREN YERBHRRE K
BHMSERMELARHAS -
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31 March 2009
At 1 April 2008 and 31 March 2009:

Cost
Accumulated impairment

Net carrying amount

31 March 2008

Arising from acquisition of a subsidiary
and balance as at 31 March 2008

At 31 March 2008:
Cost
Accumulated impairment

Net carrying amount

Note
B 7E

—®BAF=A=+-8

ZEtRE

AREFE

—2EN\F=A=t—-AH

R-ZEEZNF=A=1+—HBWKE 37
—RIM B RREL 2 &8

R-BBENF=HA=+—H
DN
REHREE

AR R (E

Group
EME
HK$'000
TET

533,559

533,559

533,559

533,559

533,559
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Company

b NN
2008
HK$'000
—EENF
FAT
Unlisted shares, at cost FEETRG R AE 61,990
Due from subsidiaries JiE UK BfY BB A B 5K 78 1,660,494
Due to subsidiaries FE A BT B A R SR IE (197,042)
1,525,442
Impairment* A (9,233)
1,516,209
# An impairment was recognised for certain amounts due from 2 HRETHBRAARBEAFE ZERE
subsidiaries with a total carrying amount of HK$21,520,000 HREERATIERE BETERK
(2008: HK$21,520,000) because certain subsidiaries MEBEARRBZEREEDEERERZR
have suffered losses over the years and the amounts are 5 4/21,520,0008 L (Z 2T N\ F:
considered to be not recoverable. 21,520,000 7T) °
The amounts due from/to the subsidiaries are unsecured, FE U R FE S BT BB A Bl 2 SRIE AR - TR
interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment. The FIE R AR B FE B RER o LE e 5RIE v BREE R
carrying amounts of these amounts due from/to subsidiaries HAFERE -

approximate to their fair values.
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Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are

as follows:

Name

R

Amica Properties Limited

EXMEXRERAA

Carrianna (BVI) Ltd*

Carrianna (Chiu Chow)
Restaurant Limited*

EEH(HM)BE
BRAR

Carrianna Chinese Food
(Hong Kong) Limited

EEFPARM (FE)
BRAT

Carrianna Holdings
Limited

EEHEEERAT

Carrianna (Shenzhen)

Investment Co., Ltd."

BRRA

Place of
incorporation/
registration
EMERI/
TfREE

Hong Kong
BB

British Virgin Islands/

Hong Kong

RBRABR/EA

Hong Kong

BB

Hong Kong

BB

Hong Kong/
Mainland China
B/ HEKE

Mainland China

PEAKE

Class of equity
interest held

Fir i B AR

Ordinary shares
ZAR

Ordinary shares

BRI

Ordinary shares

Registered capital

HMER

Nominal value
of issued
ordinary/

registered
share capital
BRITEE/
THER

HK$10,000
10,000/ 7T

Us$1

(B

HK$8,000,000

8,000,000% 7T

HK$900,000

900,0007% 7T

HK$25,000,000

25,000,0007% 7T

HK$80,000,000

80,000,000 7

TAK SING ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED ## Bk &

TEWBRAOHELT -

Percentage of
equity interest
attributable to
the Company
KRB RE
Bk
2008
“EENE

100

73

89

Principal activities

IREH

Property investment

MERE

Investment holding

REER

Restaurant
operations
REKE

Investment holding

REERK

Property investment
and development

MERERER

Investment holding
and property
development

REERK
NEER
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Name

R

China East International
Material City Limited
ERERIHBERAA

Crown Tech Investments
Limited
ERREERAA

Earn Fame Group Limited*

REEEERAA

Elite Brave Development
Limited*

BEEZEERAA

Goldfield Properties

Limited
EEXERATA

S

Huge Moral International
Limited*
EEEARAERAR

ANNUAL REPORT 2009 4 &

Place of
incorporation/
registration
EMRL/
AR A

Hong Kong

i

mH

Hong Kong

7l

BB

British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong
EBRUEE/BE

British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong

REBRLEE/BE
Hong Kong

0

British Virgin Islands/

Hong Kong
EBRLUEE/BE

Class of equity
interest held

Fir s BB

Ordinary shares

LBk

Ordinary shares

gl

Ordinary shares

88

Ordinary shares

LBk

Ordinary shares

28k

Ordinary shares

AR

Nominal value
of issued
ordinary/

registered
share capital
BRAEE/
dfER

HK$1,000,000

1,000,000/ 7T

HK$1

Percentage of
equity interest
attributable to
the Company
FRAEAERE
Bok
2008
—TTN\EF

70

100

Principal activities

EX$ 3,4

Investment holding

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

REER

Property investment

MERE

Investment holding



Name

R

Kunming Carrianna
Chaozhou
Restaurant Ltd.?

EREEHAMNER
BRARR

Shenzhen Carrianna
Friendship Square
Restaurant Co., Ltd.?

A EERREES
AEEBRAF

Tak Sing Alliance Limited

Tak Sing (Panyu) Fashion
Company Limited™
EMmERREERAF

Place of
incorporation/
registration
EMRL/
AR A

Mainland China

PR AR

Mainland China

PR AR

Hong Kong

BB

Mainland China

PEAR

Mainland China

PR

Class of equity
interest held

Fir s BB

Registered capital

AR

Registered capital

AR

Ordinary shares

Non-voting deferred

shares
LEk

ERFRELTRN

Registered capital

AR

Registered capital

AfEA

Nominal value
of issued
ordinary/

registered
share capital
BRAEE/
dfER

HK$12,000,000

12,000,000/ 7

RMB20,000,000

AR #20,000,0007

HK$200
HK$1,000,000

2007875
1,000,000/ 7T

HK$51,000,000

51,000,00078 7T

RMB14,700,000

AR 14,700,000

Percentage of
equity interest
attributable to
the Company
FRAEAERE
Bok
2008
—TTN\EF

62

68

Principal activities

EX$ 3,4

Restaurant
operations

&

RE

e
=

Fal

Restaurant
operations

&

RE

e
=

Fal

Property investment

MERE

Property investment

MERE

Hotel and restaurant
operations

BEERREEE

TAK SING ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED ## Bk &
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Name

R

LEBERARERAAL

REEEFERARAF

REGEHEEER
BRAR

R EEPEERGE
ARAR

FEEBERER
BRAR

BEEEFRRARAF

afb EEREREEEE
BRAR

Carrianna (Hunan)
Enterprise Co., Ltd.?
Ef(RE)E%
BRAR

ANNUAL REPORT 2009 4 &

Place of
incorporation/
registration
EMRL/
AR A

Mainland China
PEIAKE
Mainland China
PEARE
Mainland China
PEARE
Mainland China
PR AR
Mainland China
PEARE

Mainland China
REIARE

Mainland China

PEIARE

Mainland China

PEARE

Class of equity
interest held

Fir s BB

Registered capital

A A

Registered capital

AfMEA

Registered capital

AfMEA

Registered capital

EMER

Registered capital

AfMEA

Registered capital
& A

Registered capital

A~

Registered capital

AR

Nominal value
of issued
ordinary/

registered
share capital
BRAEE/
dfER

RMB3,600,000
AR%3,600,0007C
RMB1,000,000
AR 1,000,000
RMB3,000,000
AR 3,000,000
RMB20,000,000

AR #20,000,0007T

RMB5,000,000

AR 5,000,0007T

RMB8,000,000
A 8,000,0007

RMB100,000,000

A #100,000,0007

RMB100,000,000

AR #100,000,0007T

Percentage of
equity interest
attributable to
the Company
FRAEAERE
Bok

2008

—BB\F

1

00

70

53

75

55

80

75

Principal activities

EX$ 3,4

Restaurant

operations
REKZ

Restaurant
operations

PNV
RELYE

Restaurant
operations

PNV
RELE

Restaurant
operations
RERE

Restaurant
operations

PN =
RELE

Inactive

HEEX

Hotel operations

Property investment
and development

MEBERERE



Nominal value

of issued Percentage of
Place of ordinary/ equity interest
incorporation/ Class of equity registered attributable to
Name registration interest held share capital the Company Principal activities
EMRL/ BRITEE/ ERREGRE
£ SRS P RERR TER Bk TEXH
2008
—TTN\E
ZREBEHYEHEE  Mainland China Registered capital US$29,980,000 Property investment
(EEH)BRARY and development
BEIPN ! HMER 29,980,0005 7T NERERER
T REEFEEERE Mainland China Registered capital RMB12,000,000 Restaurant
BRARQ operations
PEAE EMER AR #12,000,0007 RERSZ
& Direct subsidiaries of the Company @ ZN/NCTR= A Y PN

**  55% of equity interest is directly attributable to the Company

@ Not audited by Ernst & Young Hong Kong or other member
firm of the Ernst & Young global network

o Wholly-owned foreign enterprises

@ Sino-foreign equity joint venture companies

In the prior year, the Group acquired a 55% equity
interest in Carrianna (Hunan) Enterprise Co., Ltd. (“Hunan
Carrianna”) from Mr. Ma Kai Cheung (“"KC Ma") and Mr.
Ma Kai Yum (“KY Ma"), the substantial shareholders and
executive directors of the Company, and an additional 20%
equity interest in Hunan Carrianna from Yiyang Yin Ye Fa
Industrial and Trading Co., Ltd. (the “Vendor”). Further
details of this acquisition are included in note 37 to the
financial statements.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the
results for the year or formed a substantial portion of the
net assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars
of excessive length.

* KABEEFASSwEES

’ B2 KRB EBATIAIN R E &5 AE
%

o HNEEEDE

@ FHEEDE

RAE AEERFSNTELEERENRE
E(RRREERREATES) WBEE
MORRm)EXZRR AR (DABEER])
55%ME - RAmEmREZTEARA
A ([EH])KBREI20%ME - ZR 5 F
B E SR B B MR M FE37A

KEFENER AEMINHMEBARSE
EFEAKENFEANZESIERANE
BMEEFENEIZHONNERR: MER
R o B A RN ER BSHERB
RILEK e
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Group

rEE
2008
HK$'000
—EENF
FHET
Share of net assets JEMHE EFE 1,790
Amount due to the J& < $L[R] 22 1 B 48 IR
jointly-controlled entity (612)
Provision for impairment VERIEREL ] (1,178)
The balance with the jointly-controlled entity is unsecured, HEZEHEBOHRRAEER R TR
interest-free and is not repayable within one year from the Hﬁ/,\b’/\ii” Hest —FREE-
balance sheet date.
Particulars of the Group's jointly-controlled entity are as REBHRZEFEE ZFEOT:
follows:
Place of
incorporation/ Percentage of
Business registration Ownership Voting Profit Principal
Name structure and operations interest power sharing activity
5 SME FEEEGEED L
=L REr AR AR i B I #& RER Blpe B TEXEK
Chengdu Carrianna Corporate PRC/Mainland 51 50 51 Dormant
Chaozhou China
Restaurant Co., Ltd.
B #B 2 47 NG B B A RE Tmex
BNEZERA A
The investment in the jointly-controlled entity is indirectly RARIEERGLREGRELS-

held by the Company.
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Share of net assets B EEFE

Due from associates JiE U Bt & R RIBR 3R
Due to associates & < Bt 22 R B BR 3K
Provision for impairment Ve RIERER

The amounts due from/to associates are unsecured,
interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment. The
carrying amounts of these amounts due from/to associates
approximate to their fair values.

The Group's share of aggregate profits accumulated by
the associates for the year amounted to HK$143,096,000
(2008: HK$169,630,000).

The Group’s share of the net post-acquisition reserves
of the associates as at 31 March 2009 amounted to
HK$887,687,000 (2008: HK$724,764,000).

Group
rEE
2008
HK$'000
—EENF
FHET

728,378
49,584
(3,338)

774,624

(10,628)

763,996

B X ) B R U S RIS A AR
PEFE & E BRI - S R A
Y FEU BB 1 FRIE 2 BRE(E B K A T E A
o

FRAEEGEBRL2 Qa0 R EF
/143,096,000 L (ZZEZE N &F:
169,630,0005 7T ) ©

AEBR-_ZTNF=A=1T—HEMHEKZ

N AR U B 1% % 15 /887,687,000 7T ( =
TE )\ : 724,764,000/ 75 ) °
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Particulars of the principal associates, which are all unlisted *
companies, are as follows:

Place of Percentage of
Particulars of incorporation/ equity interest
issued Business registration and attributable
Name shares held structure operations to the Group Principal activities
2008
E3 P FMRL/ AEBESLRE
£ BFEERTRE KA aMREERE Bk TEXH
“ERNE
China South City Holdings Ordinary shares Corporate Hong Kong/ 20 Investment holding
Limited (“CSCHL") HK$40,000 Mainland China
ERABRERAR tak  AF B/ MEARE REER
(rEmul) 40,0007 7T
South China International Ordinary shares Corporate Hong Kong/ 50  Property investment
Purchasing Exchange HK$5,000 Mainland China and development
Centre Limited*
EHEARKEI ST @k  Ad B/ AR NERERER
BRARR 5,000 7T
# Not audited by Ernst & Young Hong Kong or other member 8 Bk BTN E SR
firm of the Ernst & Young global network %o
The associates are indirectly held by the Company. RAREEEA N LB E AT
The above table lists the associates of the Group which, KEEENER U EMINAEENHEA

in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the
results for the year or formed a substantial portion of the
net assets of the Group. To give details of other associates
would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars

of excessive length.
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The following table illustrates the summarised financial THAFEEFEAEEEEAREREEKEES
information of the Group's associates extracted from their B s ER:
management accounts:

2008
HK$'000
—EENF
FHT
Assets BE 7,353,044
Liabilities I=EE (3,712,177)
Revenue & 562,880
Profit &M 848,150
Group
AEH
2008
HK$'000
—EENF
T
Unlisted equity investments, at cost FELEMBRAKE BN AE 19,761
The above investments consist of investments in equity Ll EREREEATHIEEERMEEL
securities which were designated as available-for-sale BAZES HEECHANZEESEX
financial assets and have no fixed maturity date or coupon
rate.
Unlisted equity investments under available-for-sale AHHERE ZIF ETRAKREREKA
investments are stated at cost because their fair values EBEstEANEEABRBAREBESER
could not be reliably measured as at the balance sheet date. R
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Group

rEE
2008
HK$'000
—EENF
FH T
Unlisted investment funds, at fair value:  FFEMREES R ATFE:
Hong Kong BB 12,978
The fair values of the unlisted investment funds are based FEMEREES AT EETHRETE -
on quoted market prices.
The above investments at 31 March 2009 were classified as NWERZZEZNF=ZA=F+—HZEKED
held for trading. SPERBEERRE-
At 31 March 2009, the carrying amount of the above RZBEZNRF=ZA=+—H Liix%E
investments of the Group pledged as security for the EEARBRTEXREFRNKREZEREDER
Group's bank loans amounting to HK$7,347,000 (2008: 7,347,000 70 (Z & )\ : 12,978,000
HK$12,978,000), as further detailed in note 43 to the BIT)  HIBEEHRN M B HRKM 43 -

financial statements.
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At beginning of year

Additions

Acquisition of a subsidiary

Transfer from deposits paid for
purchases of land

Transfer to properties held for sale

Exchange realignment

At 31 March

Properties under development
expected to be recovered:
Within one year
After more than one year

Amount comprises:
Construction costs and
capitalised expenditures
Finance costs capitalised

The Group’s properties under development were located in

Mainland China.

Included in the Group’s properties under development
as at 31 March 2009 were land costs with an aggregate
carrying amount of approximately HK$187,694,000 (2008:
HK$153,217,000) held under medium term leases.

Note

=
m

RE ]

NE

BA—HEWEBAQR 37
ERODNEMZS

BRERBEFEZIONRE
BE 3 38 2

R=A=+—H

AHRTEX[E 2
BRTME:
—FRA

ZHR—F

Hp B
BEXAREXELEH

BB B AR AR

Group
rEE
2008
HK$'000
—EENF
FHET

145,938
608,800

(237,460)
19,189

536,467

26,901
509,566

536,467

529,906

6,561

536,467

AEE 2 ERPYRMNF B ALE-

AEBR_ZEZNF=A=1+—HERERT
MERHE R 2 BREE/R187,694,000/8
T (ZZFZTN\F 153,217,000 7T ) LA &
HAFEAE -
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At 31 March 2009, the carrying amount of the
Group’s properties under development amounting to
HK$442,466,000 (2008: HK$439,331,000) was pledged as
security for the Group’s bank loans, as further detailed in
note 43 to the financial statements.

Further particulars of the Group’s major properties under
development are included on page 195.

The balances represent deposits paid for future acquisitions
of parcels of land in Mainland China. The carrying amounts
of the deposits paid for the purchases of land approximate
to their fair values.

Raw materials R
Finished goods BIAY mn

Food and beverages Bk eE

At at 31 March 2008, the carrying amount of the Group’s
inventories pledged as security for the Group’s bank loans
amounted to HK$46,000, as further detailed in note 43 to
the financial statements.
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R_ZEZHAhE=ZA=+—H K&£EBE
Tl fE £442,466,0008 0 (Z T )\ F:
439,331,000 70) 2 ERFWED AIER
FTAEE ZRITEZER - FEHR I B R
=MtEE43 -

HMAREZERTPYERFBEHNE195
EO

BHR/DHHRN P BERERS L2 1R
ToWENEMRE ZHREESRQFENR
#le

Group
TEE
2008
HK$'000
—EENF
TET

1,499
3,654
46,259

51,412

RZZEZENF=ZA=+—RHB Kx&EEHK
46,000/8 TLHYF S FIRITIABEUE R -
HBCHN MRS M T3



Included in the balance is an amount of HK$70,754,000
(2008: HK$83,518,000) representing the trade debtors of
the Group.

Trade debtors 2 5 r WK
Impairment BB

The aged analysis of such debtors is as follows:

Current to 30 days BB Z30H
31 to 60 days 31260H
61 to 90 days 61290H
Over 90 days HiB90H

Restaurant business is normally traded on a cash basis.
For property sales, credit terms vary in accordance with
the terms of the sale and purchase agreements. All trade
debtors are recognised and carried at their original invoiced
amounts less impairment of debtors which is recorded when
the collection of the full amount is no longer probable. Bad
debts are written off as incurred.

48R B 3570,754,0008 T (Z 2 E )\ F:
83,518,000 L) BA KB 2 EWE SR

e
A °

Group
rEH
2008
HK$'000
—ETNF
FHET

96,636
(13,118)

83,518

MR R Z BRE AT AN T

Group
rER
2008
HK$'000
—EE)N\F
TET

56,410
5,005
2,320

19,783

83,518

EREB - RUBRSRART -HEHEZ
FEERRURBEEARMERE - BKRES
RRANDREAREZSENRERBEARES
S0 Ui R B R TV 2 KRR SRR (BL 1R T R %
AR - BARAINEAR TIAGEH -
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In view of the aforementioned and the fact that the Group's
trade debtors relate to a large number of diversified
customers, there is no significant concentration of credit
risk. Trade debtors are non-interest-bearing.

The movements in provision for impairment of trade debtors
are as follows:

At beginning of year REH]
Impairment losses recognised (note 6)

Amount written off as uncollectible B T~ 8 Ui [0 4 =
Impairment losses reversed (note 6) BB EEE B (H6)
Exchange realignment TE R T

At 31 March W=ZA=+—H

Included in the above provision for impairment of trade
debtors is a provision for individually impaired trade debtors
of HK$12,690,000 (2008: HK$13,118,000) with a carrying
amount of HK$12,726,000 (2008: HK$13,412,000). Such
provision was determined after taking into account the
ageing of individual accounts receivable balances, the
creditworthiness of the debtor, its repayment history and
historical write-off experience. The Group does not hold any
collateral or other credit enhancements over these balances.
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HEBEERE (MiEe)

ZREEANFE  SEERESERIFS R
REENZEELEF REEANEER
e BHRKEFDREFTME -

RTEZIRUERZRERE 2 ZEESMT

Group
KEME
2008
HK$'000
—EE)N\F
TETT

12,215
1,384
(515)
(1,133)

1,167

13,118

TG TESRREFR 2 RERES R
EENEREEZEREREL 2 BE
12,690,000 7L (ZZFZ )\ 4 : 13,118,000
BT ) ZE W IR 2 BREE A12,726,000
BIL (ZZZT)\F :13,412,0008 7T) ° %
B BT R BEZE B E R IR P B YR K
BREC RIR R 2 5 - B AL RBEM
BRACER - AR B AR LR H EER

12 B Ao



The aged analysis of the trade debtors that are not
considered to be impaired is as follows:

RBEIS AR RE
— 18 A A EH

BH—=={EA
BHEE=A

Neither past due nor impaired
Less than 1 month past due

1 to 3 months past due

Over 3 months past due

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate
to a large number of diversified customers for whom there
was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
the directors of the Company are of the opinion that no
provision for impairment is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change in
credit quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancements over these balances.

AREC R EZ BREFRE DT :

Group
rEH
2008
HK$'000
—EENF
FHET

58,898
3,993
1,393

18,940

83,224

REHALRBE 2 BYRF R KEZ K
EZ2BEPRARFRE-

ERHERREZRUERDAEBRR S A
HEASBRFROETELHRIBLER R
BRELR ARFREERR RLFEH
ME BREEERI RELERES B
ZE RN AI BB - B AR EHE
R EREE AEREYERZFESRT BT
440 fn R EARIRTHE B ZRIE -

TAK SING ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED ## Bk &



148

Note
By &x
Cash and bank balances ReRBARER
Time deposits T HTE K
Less: Pledged time deposits: & : B E AT
Pledged for long term BEART
bank loans REER 43
Pledged for bank BEEIRRT
overdraft facilities BXEE 43

Cash and cash equivalents BR&RRESEEEE

At the balance sheet date, the cash and bank balances
(including time deposits) of the Group denominated in
Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted to HK$102,587,000 (2008:
HK$101,983,000). The RMB is not freely convertible
into other currencies, however, under Mainland China’s
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration
of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB
for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

ANNUAL REPORT 2009 4 &

Group Company

A%E ADT
2008 2008
HK'000 HK'000
“EINF “TINF
T T
133,389 63
20,617 41
154,006 104
(20,305) (41)
133,701 63

REER AEBZHRSRASETR (B
REBMER)EAREE(TARKE]) AE
477 2 #5882 52 80102,587,0008 L (=&
T\ :101,983,000/87C) - ARBEKRBES
MEBRAREMER BRES A2 INE
E HIEE R AETE - BIE R AT E B R GORE
ARG B EBEFTNITINES 2 RIT
HAHMARBREMEK-



Cash at banks earn interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made
for varying periods of between one day and three months
depending on the immediate cash requirements of the
Group, and earn interest at the respective short term time
deposit rates. The bank balances and pledged deposits are
deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of
default.

The aged analysis of trade creditors is as follows:

Current to 30 days BB Z30H
31 to 60 days 31260H
61 to 90 days 61290H
Over 90 days EHiB90H

RITRS MMM B TR E BRTEHA
R2FBFRME - FMHTERERZHRA
— NF-RE=EAATEF TERFAE
B R EFR  WIRTEOEERT
FREA B - RITHETF R BB F R RRE
BRIFATHRBRORCER BT

ENEZER KR

Group
rEE
2008
HK$'000
—ETNEF
THET
21,320
27,213
14,881
32,481

95,895
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B HmE M
31 March 2009
ZEENF=R=+—1

31. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER

31. HEZRITREMER

BORROWINGS
2009 2008
ZETNE —ZENF
Effective Effective
interest interest
Group rate (%) Maturity HK$'000 rate (%) Maturity HK$'000
NN ERERE  FHA TEr  ERFFXR  FHA FTAEL
Current
b
Bank overdrafts - unsecured 55-7.8 On demand 962 40-7.2 On demand 1,238
BITEX —EER REM g Rl
Bank overdrafts - secured 53-6.0 On demand 12,290 40-75 On demand 5,433
BOEY - HHE BREH RiBA
Bank loans - unsecured 3.7-8.0 April 2009 17,000 34-6.8  April 2008 40,000
RITER—EER —ZZNENA “ZZNFWA
Bank loans - secured 2.1-6.9 By March 2010 392,493 3.1-76 By March 2009 210,700
BITEF-BHA —E-Z§=H —EENEFZA
Other loans - secured 4.3 By March 2010 1,786 6.2 By March 2009 1,786
HtEH-—HHA —E-ZF=R ZETNE=A
424,531 259,157
Non-current
FEEDEA
Bank Ipans - secured 34-6.9 2010 - 2017 294,974 35-76 2009 - 2017 381,389
BIER-HHEE —E-ZFZ —ZTNEERE
—Z-tF —T-tF
Other loans - secured 4.3 2012 4,464 6.2 2012 6,250
HnEH-FHF —E-C-% —T-CF
299,438 387,639
__ 723,969 _ 646,7%
2009 2008
ZZEThE —ZEN\F
Effective Effective
interest interest
Company rate (%) Maturity HK$'000 rate (%) Maturity HK$'000
NN ERENE  ZHA TEL  EBREMNE  FHA FTAEL
Current
I
Bank loans - secured 4.9 By March 2010 3,324 5.4 By March 2009 3,324
BITRHHEN —§-35=4 “EEAFZA
Non-current
FEEDER
Bank loans - secured 4.9 2011 5,305 5.4 2011 8,629
BOIER-—HHEA “E-—F —ZE——F
8,629 11,953
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Group Company

rEE KAT
2008 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
—ETNF —ET)NF
FHT FHTT
Analysed into: DR
Bank overdrafts repayable R {75 % i& 7 HA
within one year or —FAHERFEE
on demand 6,671 -
Bank loans repayable: RITEFERE
Within one year or —FRNERKEE
on demand 250,700 3,324
In the second year F_F 181,124 3,324
In the third to fifth years, E=FZFEERF
inclusive (BEEMEBE
EA) 128,865 5,305
Beyond five years AELE 71,400 -
632,089 11,953
Other borrowings ZARLATNHEA
repayable: BEEZHEMER:
Within one year or R—FANHK
on demand ZRIFER 1,786 =
In the second year FE_-F 1,786 =
In the third to fifth years, FE=FZERF
inclusive (BEEMEBRE
ER) 4,464 -
8,036 -
646,796 11,953
All interest-bearing bank and other borrowings bear interest FBEMERITREME R LNZEFE -
at floating interest rates.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the Company's AEBRARAERZEABEREAEEAF
borrowings approximate to their fair values. 8-
At the balance sheet date, a director of the Company has ARAA—ZEERAEEHHRITENRE
guaranteed certain of the Group's banking facilities up to [ERMHIER A $£277,035,0008 L (ZEF
HK$277,035,000 (2008: HK$271,159,000). S\ 271,159,000 7T ) °
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The Group leases certain of its motor vehicles for its

property investment and development business. The leases

are classified as finance leases and have remaining lease

terms ranging from 1 to 2 years.

At 31 March 2009, the total future minimum lease
payments under finance leases and their present values

were as follows:

Amounts payable:
Within one year
In the second year
In the third to fifth years,
inclusive

Total minimum finance
lease payments

Future finance charges

Total net finance lease
payables

Portion classified as current
liabilities

Long term portion

FIBEER:
—FR
FF
E=FZEZERF
(BERMEBEE
FR)

ENBER
HRIEBE

15 KB 75 & B

ENEEMR
HFERE

5 BRE B ER R

REER D

The carrying amounts of the Group’s finance lease payables

approximate to their fair values.
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AEEAYMEREREREKHEABHE
WERE AR WEY ARERLY  HTH
HINNF1Z24 o

RZZEZNF=ZA=+—8 REMERLY
BAEARINz2&LHEHRIEREBIRE
R
Group
rEH

Present
value of
Minimum minimum
lease lease
payments payments
54 =AML
iR OE QL] HRIBHE
2008 2008
—EENF —ETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT
900 790
663 627
247 234
1,810 1,651

(159)

1,651

(790)

861

SEEMNREROREERD FEBLD-



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 o 5 BT 5E
31 March 2009
—ETAF=A=+—R
33. DEFERRED TAX 33. IEEBE
The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during AFEEREERBEERBEZEZHNOT
the year are as follows:
Deferred tax liabilities EEHEEE
Group rE
2009
“EENE
Depreciation Fair value
allowance adjustments
in excess arising from
of related  acquisition of Revaluation
depreciation subsidiaries  of properties Total
HK$"000 HK$’000 HK$"000 HK$'000
W 8 It
BBERME NEEEZ
M ERE ATLERE MEE M &t
TERT TERT THERT THERT
At 1 April 2008 RZZENFOA—H 9,399 274,841 112,580 396,820
Deferred tax charged/(credited) to ~ AEERFR K,/
the income statement during (BFtA) ZEREHE
the year (note 10) (KtzE10) (7,933) (2,171) 3,141 (6,963)
Exchange realignment ERAEES - - 229 229
Gross deferred tax liabilities RZBEAFE=A=+—H
at 31 March 2009 ZERHAGBKEE 1,466 272,670 115,950 390,086
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B HmE M
31 March 2009

ZEENF=R=+—1
33. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 33. IELEBIE (&)
Deferred tax assets EEBEEE
Group rEH
2009
Losses available for
offsetting against
future taxable profit
HK$'000
—EEAE
A] A LA BE SR SR FE SR B
s R I 8 2 B 1B
FExT
At 1 April 2008 RZZEZNFHA—H 9,999
Deferred tax charged to the income REFEWRBE KPR 2ELEFIE
statement during the year (note 10) (FfF7E10) (9,669)
Gross deferred tax assets RZEZENF=ZA=+—H2
at 31 March 2009 RETRIEEERE 330
For the purpose of the balance sheet presentation, certain REEABRTPHBHECHEEERARE
deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset. The EEEE - T3 RIELETIARFEE M s
following is an analysis of the deferred tax balances of the 2D
Group for financial reporting purposes:
HK$'000
FHxT
Net deferred tax assets recognised REEBEEBBEREERZ
in the consolidated balance sheet EERIEEEFE 330
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised NG EEBBERERRZ
in the consolidated balance sheet BEEFIEEEFE (390,086)
(389,756)
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Group

At 1 April 2007

Deferred tax charged/(credited)
to the income statement
during the year (note 10)

Acquisition of a subsidiary
(note 37)

Disposal of a subsidiary (note 38)

Exchange realignment

Gross deferred tax liabilities
at 31 March 2008

Depreciation
allowance
in excess
of related
depreciation
HK$'000
BRERNE
N ERE
TEL
R-ZZE+FMA—H 8,079
REEKREERRNR/
(Bt A) 2 EEFE
(BzE10) 2,060
WE—RNE AR
(BtaE37) -
HE—REL R
(P5E38) (779)
ERICES 39
RZZEENF=R=+—H
ZBERHIE R EE 9,399

A EH

2008
ZZENE
Fair value
adjustments
arising from
acquisition of Revaluation

subsidiaries  of properties
HK$'000 HK$'000
RLEHE
RAEEZ
NYERE WEER
THL THL
9,180 85,707
(12,331) 26,003
277,992 =
- 870
274,841 112,580

Undistributed
profits of

a subsidiary
HK$'000

HEBAR
AP EER
THET

1,003

(1,003)

Total
HK$'000

a5t

TAL

103,969

14,729

277,992

(779)
909

396,820
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Group

At 1 April 2007

Deferred tax credited to the income

statement during the year (note 10)
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 38)
Exchange realignment

Gross deferred tax assets at 31 March 2008

For the purpose of the balance sheet presentation, certain
deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset. The
following is an analysis of the deferred tax balances of the

Group for financial reporting purposes:

Net deferred tax assets recognised in
the consolidated balance sheet

Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in
the consolidated balance sheet
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A EH

R-ZZEZ+FMYAH—H

AEEFARGER ZELEH IR

(KtEE10)
e KB A (HiE38)
P& 5 A2

RZBENF=A=+—BZ

RIEREEERE

8
&

REERBRCHER
BIREEFE
REERBREER
LA A EFE

R #

7

2

A
r~ﬂ>rﬁuﬂ>

2008

Losses available for
offsetting against
future taxable profit
HK$'000

—ETNF

B PR DA B R 2R FE RR A0
i MR 8H < BT 1R
FAET

8,524

4,652
(3,342)
165

9,999

REERBRTHNEEHAEERAE
EEHEE - T RBEERBRBERN B RE
P2

HK$'000
TAET

9,999

(396,820)

(386,821)



The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of
HK$159,141,000 (2008: HK$109,801,000) that are
available indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable
profits of the companies in which the losses arose. As at
31 March 2008, the Group also had tax losses relating to
certain overseas subsidiaries of HK$3,936,000 that were
available for offsetting against future taxable profits of
the companies in which the losses arose for a maximum of
5 years. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in
respect of these losses as it is not considered probable that
taxable profits will be available which the tax losses can be
utilised.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a
10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to
foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises
established in Mainland China. The requirement is
effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings
after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate
may be applied if there is a tax treaty between China and
jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the Group, the
applicable rate is 5% and 10%. The Group is therefore
liable to withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those
subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of
earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

At 31 March 2009, no deferred tax has been recognised
for withholding taxes that would be payable on the
unremitted earnings that are subject to withholding taxes
of the Group’s subsidiaries established in Mainland China.
In the opinion of the directors, it is not probable that these
subsidiaries will distribute such earnings in the foreseeable
future. The aggregate amount of temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries in Mainland
China for which deferred tax liabilities have not been
recognised totalled approximately HK$149,684,000 at 31
March 2009 (2008: Nil).

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the
payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

AEEERB BB ZHIEEIE159,141,000
Bt (ZZF)\F : 109,801,000/ 70) * i
I EEBEA SRR NEEE AR Z KRR
ERTRFESE RZEENF=A=+—
B RNEEINEEETEIINTBEAREHE
18 5 183,936,000/8 7T » M Itk & &5 18 Bl &%
ZRAFANANEE@ERR 2 RKRERT
A c BRRARKRTAIEEETHZ
FERR T s A A 1R 35 L S TR BT 18 - HURBE
I EEEEREEHIEEE -

BT (CPEDERBHIE) - RE AL
ZINERIEINEBEET IR RS - B
10%EHNH -BEEATE_EENEFE—H
—HRBEM WEAR-_ZEZTLF+=A
=+ —BERMELZEF - B EE I
KEERMBEREER CEEATBEIEL -
AR BRI R - AN B 2B
K E5%%10% Al NEBAERZER
PRAMKZZHBRARR =TT NE—
A—BREEZAEFMDIKZEEHBRIE

B -

RZZBZNF=ZA=+—8 KEBWRH
R BE A B ESRBENH KB A
A ARENBFMEREN BB -ES
RE ZEMNBRARTRAIRRREDRZER
FeHET K- RZBETZNF=A=+—
B RPER B AR EREEENE
1@6%0%%%*%%%%@@&@%%
ZEENFE) e

2R ) 1A H BRI A BB A A PSR
‘R
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Authorised:
2,000,000,000 (2008: 2,000,000,000)
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each

ETE B :
FAEEO0. 108 T 2 BB
2,000,000,0008%

—ZEF )\ £ :2,000,000,0000%)

Issued and fully paid:
1,144,122,328 (2008: 1,144,122,328)
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each

BEETREERA:
EFRMEE0. 108 T2 Emi% ik
1,144,122,328%
—EENE:

There was no movement in the issued ordinary share

capital of the Company during the year. A summary of the

transactions in the Company's issued ordinary share capital

during the prior year is as follows:

At 1 April 2007 RZZZ+FEOA—H

Share options exercised (note 35) B {7 B A4 (Fiz¥35)

Placement of new shares BATHR D
Issue of consideration shares BITRERN
At 31 March 2008 and RZTZENEF
31 March 2009 ZA=+—-HBk
—ZETNF
=A=+—8

Number
of shares
in issue
B#T
R E
HK$'000
FET

746,637,219

9,750,000
133,000,000
254,735,109

1,144,122,328

Details of the Company’s share option scheme and the

share options issued under the scheme are included in note

35 to the financial statements.
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1,144,122,3280%)

RER > RARZBEETS
B RRBRATFC #HIT3
HAE#RNT

Issued
capital

ERTRA
HK$'000
TAT

74,664
975

13,300
25,473

114,412

AR Z B8 2 F15
HEMEE3S

Company
NN

Share
premium
account

f 4 ik AR B
HK$'000
TAT

467,994
9,093

379,388
418,540

1,275,015

2008
HK$'000
—TTN\F
TAET

200,000

Total

By
HK$'000
TAT

542,658

10,068
392,688
444,013

1,389,427

E BN AN



The Company operates a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group’s operations. Eligible participants of
the Scheme include the Company’s directors, including
independent non-executive directors, and other employees
of the Group. The Scheme became effective on 10 October
2005 and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will
remain in force for 10 years from that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options
currently permitted to be granted under the Scheme is an
amount equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time. The maximum
number of shares issuable under share options to each
eligible participant in the Scheme within any 12-month
period is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time. Any further grant of share options in
excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a
general meeting.

Share options granted to a director are subject to approval
in advance by the independent non-executive directors of
the Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of
0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time
or with an aggregate value (based on the price of the
Company's shares at the date of the grant) in excess of
HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are subject to
shareholders’ approval in advance in a general meeting.

ARBRE - RBRAETE ([ZHE]) -
REAEEEXBELEMZAERSEE
RUZE R RE - ZAE A ERSEER
RARRES BRBIUFNTEENAE
BMEMET -Zt8RN_FTAF T A+H
R MERRIFEE B R AT BN E
B TFRERFER-

RIBZAE BEHERH 2 WM ARITEBR
BEBRANSBBRABTREETRMA
H210% RZABETZ2BEAERS
HEEREBIRE R HTRD LR BEM2
BAMENSBBRRBTREETRNG
BBZ1% - EfE— PR E ZBRERR
SREE MIFERRERR KRS -

RYTESBRELFTRLESARRIEL
FATEFHE (KEBMEAL) FEBB
RRF B BEITIR0.1% 3 RERN121E
HERE - #BEE (RETHPRBARRZK
{8 ) ##8385,000,000/8 7 » BIF BT ERR
RIRRAKE EH -
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The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
within 28 days from the date of offer. The amount payable
on acceptance of an option is HK$1. The exercise period of
the share options granted is determinable by the directors.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the
directors and shall be at least the highest of (i) the closing
price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily
guotation sheets on the offer date, which must be a
business day; (ii) the average closing price of the shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotation sheets for the
five business days immediately preceding the offer date; and
(iii) the nominal value of a share.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meeting.

The following share options were outstanding under the
Scheme during the year:

At beginning of year READ

Granted during the year RERK N
Exercised during the year RERTTE
Forfeited during the year RERKY
At 31 March R=ZA=+—8H

No share options were exercised during the year. The
weighted average price at the date of exercise for share
options exercised during the prior year was HK$2.28.
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BIRERR L E BR28RARXRBE WM
BRERFNTARIBIT - X TEREN
TEHRREZTEE -

BREZTEEIHESETE BARMNK
TEREZBRE : (OHREZBH (%A
VARERR)RBXMEERERMIZ
W E: (DkhREZEZB YA AREE
XARBRXAERARBRMT ZFHED
& ki EE-

CESR RS SEE PN I U ES
BEE R

EARFENRN  Zat 8T R ARITE 2 B ELD
T

2008
Weighted
average Number
exercise price of options
HK$ per share
—EEN\F
19
TE(8 BRESE

0.61 38,350,000
2.47 19,500,000
0.76 (9,750,000)
2.15 (500,000)

1.32 47,600,000

REFE R IR TIE - AT F TR A
R R EEEH2.287T



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 795 5 Y
31 March 2009
—EFNF=HZ= \

35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options

outstanding as at that balance sheet date are as follows:

35.

BRESTE (8

REE B RARITE 2 BREZITEERIT
e EAfE AT -

2009 —EENE
Number of options Exercise price* Exercise period
HKS$ per share
BREHE TEE" TR
BRET
21,300,000 0.30 27-5-2005 to 26-10-2015
7,300,000 1.30 18-12-2006 to 17-12-2016
700,000 2.15 24-8-2007 to 23-8-2012
29,300,000
2008 —ZETENF
Number of options Exercise price* Exercise period
HK$ per share
BRREHAE TREE* 1T AR
BRI
21,300,000 0.30 27-5-2005 to 26-10-2015
7,300,000 1.30 18-12-2006 to 17-12-2016
18,300,000 2.49 23-4-2007 to 22-4-2012
700,000 2.15 24-8-2007 to 23-8-2012
47,600,000
& The exercise price of the share options is subject to & BAREITEEARBHERSARBEITHA

adjustment in case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar

changes in the Company’s share capital.

DRRAZ B E BB E B -
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No share options were granted during the year. The fair
value of the share options granted during the prior year
was HK$15,338,000 (HK$0.78 each) of which the Group
recognised a share option expense of HK$15,217,000
during the year ended 31 March 2008.

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted
during the prior year was estimated as at the date of grant,
using a binomial model, taking into account the terms
and conditions upon which the options were granted. The
following table lists the inputs to the model used.

REATEBERERD RAFEREE
i 2 A F{EA15,338,0008 7T (&R%0.78
BL) AR AREEREBEEZE_ZTTN\F=
A=T—BLECHERERERZ A
15,217,000/ 7C

RATE PR M ARSI Z B 2 2 F
B R AR -EAEA R EEERE
B Z FRR R E - TREINHZER
ZHETR

2008

—EENF

Dividend yield (%) % B2 (%) 1.30
Expected volatility (%) T8 HA K B (%) 50.01
Historical volatility (%) & SR & (%) 50.01
Risk-free interest rate (%) 4 [ g2 F1| 2= (%) 4.17
Expected life of option (year) BERETEETF ) () 5
Weighted average share price (HK$) miEFEHRE (Bx) 2.29

The expected life of the options is based on the historical
data over the past years and is not necessarily indicative
of the exercise patterns that may occur. The expected
volatility reflects the assumption that the historical volatility
is indicative of future trends, which may also not necessarily
be the actual outcome.
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No other feature of the options granted was incorporated
into the measurement of fair value.

The 9,750,000 share options exercised in the prior year
resulted in the issue of 9,750,000 ordinary shares of the
Company and new share capital of HK$975,000 and share
premium of HK$6,400,000 (before issue expenses), as
further detailed in note 34 to the financial statements.

At the balance sheet date, the Company had 29,300,000
share options outstanding under the Scheme. The exercise
in full of the outstanding share options would, under the
present capital structure of the Company, result in the issue
of 29,300,000 additional ordinary shares of the Company
and additional share capital of HK$2,930,000 and share
premium of HK$14,455,000 (before issue expenses).

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the
Company had 29,300,000 share options outstanding under
the Scheme, which represented approximately 2.56% of the
Company's shares in issue as at that date.

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein for the current and prior years are
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity on pages 57 to 58 of the financial statements.

Certain amounts of goodwill arising on the
acquisitions of subsidiaries in prior years remain
eliminated against the consolidated reserves, as
explained in note 18 to the financial statements.

Rt EQFERIL S M EEREZE
fa] EL A 45 4 o

R 79,750,000/% BE IR E R AT SF 1T 0 -
A M & BN A 5] 85179,750,000% 38 A% -
BN AN A£975,0008 T R B R E A
6,400,000/ T (MBREITHZAT) - 5F1BE

BB ISR KT 5E34 o
REE R RIEFTE KA F)4E29,300,000

1D BERRAE 18 R TIE o ARIBAN R FIIRITIRASS
B 2ETEARAT 2BEREEERARRAA]
REHNEE1T29,300,00008 AR - BEINR A A
2,930,000/ 7T f% 15 4 {8 /14,455,000
7T (R EBITHR AT °

RELE I EREE B - BB A A F
29,300,000 % B AE4E (& R A T1E + (H AN A &)
B HBEEITRG, %£2.56% °

AEBBERER RAER 2 BHER
ERARSDE 2RI BEEST
ESBEZGARAEBR-

WA BA 5 3R & BT R 18P EL - LARTF E UL
BB & A A A 2 BB 0 BB SRR
ARG AFEEEE-
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AEE 2 EREER T B R B
RNATEED K ZETE B - ft B 2 A
ZEERBRBPEREZBRER
BEZREHE - HFRETERRZ
BREEIAERNNE QR K

The reserve funds of the Group represent the non-
distributable statutory reserves of the Group's
subsidiaries operating in Mainland China. The transfers
to these reserves are determined by the board of
directors of the subsidiaries in accordance with the

relevant laws and regulations of Mainland China. The

reserve funds can be used to offset against future

losses or to increase the capital of the subsidiaries.

Z'Xo

Share Capital Share
premium  Contributed  redemption Options Retained
account surplus reserve reserve profits Total
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R X
EE EHER BOfE BRERE REET @t
i THT THT FHL THL FHL FHL
At 1 April 2007 RIZTLE
mA—-A 467,994 59,759 316 8,498 25,040 561,607
Share options exercised BiTff 2 Bk E 34 9,093 = = (2,693) = 6,400
Placement of new shares /T & 34 379,388 S S S = 379,388
Issue of consideration BIRERR
shares 34 418,540 - - - - 418,540
Equity-settled share option RIS 2
arrangements BRER S 35 = = = 15,217 = 15,217
Profit for the year REZ G - - - = 10,312 10,312
Interim dividend mERE 13 - - - - (11,141) (11,141)
Proposed final dividend ERAHRE 13 = - - - (22,882) (22,882)
At 31 March 2008 and RZZENE
1 April 2008 =A=+-8k
ZEEN\E
mA—AH 1,275,015 59,759 316 21,022 1,329 1,357,441
Equity-settled share WRHEE
options forfeited BREZ XM - = = (14,745) 6,258 (8,487)
Profit for the year REERHN - - - - 43,183 43,183
Proposed final dividend BEABRE 13 - - = = (11,441) (11,441)
At 31 March 2009 RZIZENE
=A=1-H 1,275,015 59,759 316 6,277 39,329 1,380,696
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The contributed surplus of the Company arose as a
result of the Group reorganisation on 12 August 1991
and represented the difference between the nominal
value of the share capital issued by the Company and
the combined net assets of the subsidiaries acquired
pursuant to the Group reorganisation, less the effects
of the bonus issue of shares in previous years.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), the contributed surplus is distributable to
shareholders under certain specific circumstances.

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of
share options granted which are yet to be exercised,
as further explained in the accounting policy for
share-based payment transactions in note 2.4 to
the financial statements. The amount will either be
transferred to the share premium account when the
related options are exercised, or be transferred to
retained profits should the related options expire or be
forfeited.

In the prior year, on 8 February 2007, the Group
entered into an agreement with KC Ma and KY Ma,
the substantial shareholders and executive directors
of the Company, to acquire a 55% equity interest
in Hunan Carrianna for a total consideration of
RMB417,450,000, of which RMB60,000,000 was
satisfied by cash and RMB357,450,000 by the issue
of 224,258,432 ordinary shares (the “Consideration
Shares”) of the Company at HK$1.60 per share (the
“Issued Price”) to KC Ma and KY Ma. On 31 May
2007, the acquisition was completed. Upon the
completion, Hunan Carrianna, which is principally
engaged in property development, became a
subsidiary of the Company. Further details of the
transaction are contained in the Company's circular
dated 30 March 2007.

ARAMNEBEHBBTIIE-—NAAL—FN
A+ZHBM&EBEAMESLE  BREARQ
RIBETRANEELARESEESEAM
WENRBRRNEHEEFED
ER O OBEBEFENAREIT 2
2 o

BEBRE-NAN—FRAE (LB
) BEHRAKRAIZRETIEEBRADIK
FRER

BREREERERLERKRTEZRE
BEAAE FEE-THNHMBR
KM FE2AABD XN H 2 G5 K
R-RETHANERBREETE
RERER M EERINE BBERE
BB EREERE R

REFE —TETLF_ANR A&
BESTEEERSENREL (K
RAEERRERTES)FI LW

2 BB EEMSc %R E B
RE B AREA417,450,0007T & &
AR #60,000,0000t AR & F -
i A #357,450,0007C Bl & B 1R &
fg1.60% T ([B17E]) BITA QA
224,258,432 L@k ([REKRDK])
BENEEERBNREESIF %
BUBER=-_ZZLtFRA=+—H
SERK o SERK TR - E B EMEMBMN
HEEMEXNABARARNE QA - Z
REFBERARR ZTZTLF=A
=+ HHBOBERIERE-
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The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities
of Hunan Carrianna as at the date of acquisition and
the corresponding carrying amounts immediately
before the acquisition were as follows:

Property, plant and equipment M- WERZE
Properties under development BRAME
Intangible assets EmEAE
Debtors, deposits and JEUERF - e &

prepayments TE IR
Cash and cash equivalents RekBFeEE
Sundry creditors, accruals and H AT AR R

deposits received ErrERRBWIES
Interest-bearing bank borrowings Mt B 2 IRITE K
Deferred tax IR SE R I8
Minority interests DR R E S
Goodwill on acquisition WEEE ZEE
Satisfied by: RN

Cash b

Issue of shares* BATHRR!

Direct expenses paid in connection U & — B B A A
with acquisition of a subsidiary EXCEEER

HKFRS 3 requires the Consideration Shares to be measured
at fair value. The Directors of the Company consider that
the market price of HK$3.61 per share (the “Market Price”)
on the date of completion did not reflect the fair value of
the Consideration Shares. Instead, the Directors consider
that the fair value of the Consideration Shares is better
determined by reference to the fair value of 55% interest
acquired, which amounted to HK$415,883,000, as supported
by an independent professional valuation on the underlying
assets acquired. Accordingly, in the opinion of the Directors,
the Issue Price of HK$1.60 per share is the fair value for the
Consideration Shares.

ANNUAL REPORT 2009 4 &

HEEEPR KB R RREERE
BZAFERERKERN ZHERA
ER NS

Fair value Previous
recognised carrying
on acquisition amount
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
KERERER
AN | AIARE B
Bt =3 FET AT
15 2,487 2,487
25 608,800 210,397
19 533,559 -
9,958 9,958
42,460 42,460
(66,864) (66,864)
(96,258) (96,258)
33 (277,992) -
(340,267) -
415,883 102,180
18 12,080
427,963
61,116
364,099
2,748
427,963

BEYBMELREIRERRERGER
RFEFAE -ARAEETRRERBETK
HEmSERER3.61ET ([MHE])XL
TR EBBROIH A FE- EFA/NRE
Bt i) X FEREIR B RE M55 % M A
FAERE - %A TF{ER415,883,000/& T
HATKEEENB L EXEHEMIF-
b REENER  FK1.60ETHETE
RRERDORFE-



(i)

An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash KWE—EREARcReRIREEMEIEAE
equivalents in respect of the acquisition of a subsidiary FRE Z T
was as follows:

HK$'000
FHET
Cash consideration BERE (61,116)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired WEsReRREEMEIEE 42,460
Direct expenses paid in connection with WE—HNBARcEEEA
acquisition of a subsidiary (2,748)
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents E—FNE AR RS2 R
in respect of the acquisition of REEEBE ZREFE
a subsidiary (21,404)
Since acquisition, Hunan Carrianna contributed W HREEBRR_TZTNEF
HK$16,374,000 to the consolidated profit for the year A=+ —HBzHREAKRERPIED
ended 31 March 2008. 16,374,000 7T Z B Rk
Had the combination taken place at the beginning of MEHRBFVEE  KNEEH
the prior year, the revenue from continuing operations FREXEB Z2UREREBF DB A
of the Group and the profit of the Group for the 691,459,000/ 7T }% 284,217,000
prior year would have been HK$691,459,000 and TG ©
HK$284,217,000 respectively.
In the prior year, on 25 May 2007, the Group entered (i) RpF —ZTEZLFRA=-+HA-
into an agreement with the Vendor to acquire an AREBEHEE R E WEWE
additional 20% equity interest in Hunan Carrianna EEPEIIM20%RE BRER/A
at a total consideration of RMB167,000,000 R #167,000,0007T (172,344,000
(HK$172,344,000), excluding direct expenses paid T BRERAKERNZEEREERA
in connection with the acquisition of HK$1,125,000. 1,125,000/ 7T * W BEEE SN 20 % 1= 2 4
The fair value of the additional 20% equity interest (PR BEXERAERIATES
in Hunan Carrianna amounted to HK$152,871,000, 152,871,000 70 - AL IEEEE 2
thereby generating a goodwill of HK$20,598,000 £520,598,000/8 7T (KizE18) - Yg &
on acquisition (note 18). On 31 August 2007, the ER_ZEELFNA=ZF+—HZEK-
acquisition was completed. Further details of the ZRXEFBEHERARAAR_TZEL

transaction are contained in the Company’s circular FRATNBZBEHA-
dated 18 June 2007.

RZZTEZENE+ ANB  N&EE L EExtra

On 6 October 2008, the Group disposed of its entire equity

interest in Extra Well Group Limited which is engaged in

Well Group Limited 2882 R A#Ez @ % A
AIRERRREHESEL -ZHEURS

the trading of garments and accessories. The disposal was

settled by cash consideration of HK$40,000.

R AB 440,000 T BT ©
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In the prior year, on 31 October 2007, the Group disposed
of 80% equity interest in Amica Fashion which was
engaged in the manufacture, trading and distribution of
garments in South Africa. The disposal was settled by a cash
consideration of HK$10,568,000.

Net assets disposed of: HEZREE:

Property, plant and equipment L ER S

Available-for-sale investments At HERE

Cash and bank balances & RIBITRE

Inventories BE

Prepayments and other debtors T8 1 /I8 f H th 8 U 5K

Deferred tax assets BT IR A B

Trade creditors FERTE 5 BR

Sundry creditors and accruals HMENERRRESER

Minority interests DE R E R
Exchange equalisation reserve R E R #E

realised on disposal ZENR T EREE
Gain/(Loss) on disposal of HE—EHEB AR

a subsidiary mAl (EE)
Satisfied by cash ] WK

An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash equivalents
in respect of the disposal of a subsidiary is as follows:

Cash consideration REeEE

RETE  —ET+F+A=+—H0 £&5H
H £ Amica Fashsion 80% 2 BR AN #E%S » 3% A
ARMEEREAREE BHRDEER-
ZHEMNIRSMRE10,568,00078 T8 1 ©

2008

Notes HK$'000
—ETENF

B 73 THT

15 4,378
35

22,282

2,613

16,202

33 2,563
(14,311)

(22,425)

(2,267)

9,070

10,581

6 (9,083)

10,568

10,568

ARLEHBAR RS RERBE RN
FEZAM

2008
HK$'000
—ETNF
TAET

10,568

Cash and bank balances disposed of HEZRE RBITEFER (22,282)

Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents LHEMBARZRAE R

in respect of the disposal of a subsidiary ZLRIBF ML FE
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Profit/(loss) before tax:
From continuing operations
From a discontinued operation
Adjustments for:
Bank interest income
Depreciation
Equity-settled share option
expense/(forfeited)
Finance costs
Fair value loss/(gain) on financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss
Loss/(gain) on disposal of a subsidiary

Loss/(gain) on disposal of investment
properties

Loss on disposal of items of
property, plant and equipment

Gain on disposal of available-for-sale
investments

Impairment of debtors and
other receivables

Release of goodwill upon sale of
developed properties

Recognition of prepaid land
lease payments

Share of profits and losses of associates

Changes in fair value of
investment properties

Decrease in properties held for sale

Increase in debtors, deposits and
prepayments

Decrease in inventories

Increase/(decrease) in trade creditors

Increase/(decrease) in sundry creditors,
accruals and deposits received

Increase in amounts due to directors

Cash generated from operations
Mainland China tax paid

Overseas taxes refunded

Dividends paid

Dividends paid to minority shareholders

Net cash inflow from operating activities

AEE
2008
HK$'000
—EENF
FET
BRERALER, (ER)

HEET 332,557

IEHHE T (40,510)
TR

RITH B U A (5,797)

e 25,875

VA RS 1 45 &% 19 3R B 4

S (KRB 15,217
BIEER 33,091
BAFEFABEEZSREE

ZAFEEE (W) (886)

HE—REHBAREE, CFF) 9,083

HEREMEEE, CEHN) 16

EEWE - BEMEKREZEER 5 128

T i 1 40 35 '

JE LA BR R % H A FE IR IR 2 R B

14,437

HECRREYE 2 mEH

FEN L FHE R 2 HER

32
JFE (R Bt i N B m M) e B5 18 (169,630)
REWMEZ A FEES
(117,883)
100,883
BIELEMEZRD 144,103
FEUBRE R - & R FB U FRIB 18 A1
(22,467)
FE R 1,857
FEAE SERZME N CRd) 70,525
Hih EMERA - B ER &

FEUR S W, Cld) (11,604)
FEFE =180 _
REEBMS2RE 283,297
B B K (4,703)
B iR B SN R 879
BEKE (37,616)
B LEHBRERE (12,977)
EEEE IR RAFRE 228,880

Group
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At the balance sheet date, contingent liabilities not provided

for in the financial statements were as follows:

Guarantees given for
mortgage loan facilities
granted to purchasers of
properties

Guarantees given for
banking facilities
utilised by subsidiaries

Guarantees given to a
bank in connection
with facilities granted to
an associate

MEABEYMRZ
mIBE R
£ B HE AR

BB L R R
RITEE
1 B2 1R
FLEEE R RIEIRTT
EEMmELER

The Group leases its investment properties (note 16)

under operating lease arrangements, with leases

negotiated for terms ranging from 1 to 17 years. The

terms of the leases generally also require the tenants

to pay security deposits and provide for periodic rent

adjustments according to the then prevailing market

conditions.
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EHB ARBERARRRIAMBRE

Z&%EEWT-
Company
AT

2008 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
t 2 A t 2 I
FETT FHETT
19,808 4,486
= 541,607
9,490 9,490
29,298 555,583

AEERBEEHELHLEAREET
wEME (KiaE1e)  KEHELREZ
EXRZERNF—E+EF -HERK
R—RTERETANERRE R
RETIHR T Al A e E B ™ € 5

HEEE -



At 31 March 2009, the Group had total future
minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable

operating leases with its tenants falling due as follows:

Within one year

In the second to fifth years,

inclusive
After five years

_Fq

W

b

Enjl‘

FRF
%E%ﬁi)

N
(
FRF®

A
iR

H

The Group leases certain of its properties under

operating lease arrangements.

Leases for properties

are negotiated for terms ranging from 1 to 10 years

and rentals are normally fixed in accordance with the

respective tenancy agreements. No arrangements have

been entered into for contingent rental payments.

N_ZETZNF=HA=+—H ~&5H
RIFEB LT LR TR EBH 2 T
ARG EHET AR IRE 2 &K
HeBEIT

Group
A
2008
HK$'000
—ETNEF
THET

53,382

130,636
94,122

278,140

ARERBEEHELHERAETY
X-DEEELHRENZHAN T
—EtF-HEZHE - RIREFH
ZHEANETE LEFEHEMHA
ME sk
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At 31 March 2009, the Group had total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable

operating leases falling due as follows:

Within one year

In the second to fifth years,
inclusive

After five years

_HT

W

b

Enjl‘

FRF
%E%ﬁi)

N
(
FRF®

A
iR

H

In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed

in note 41(b) above, the Group had the following

commitments at the balance sheet date:

Contracted, but not provided for:
Property, plant and equipment
Purchases of land use rights
Properties under development
Capital contribution to a subsidiary
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B AT A9 HE 18 R B
EN S
BALHERE
BRTYE

N_ZEZHNF=ZA=+—H F£KH
BRI T5)EAM B B 2 el g =&
HEEBRAXNZHEHRSHEN
T

Group
A
2008
HK$'000
—ETNEF
THET

20,939

47,400
35,703

104,042

REE B BRIIRKE41(b) 2 & HE &
SN REEB AT AIE:

Group
rEE
2008
HK$°000
—EE)NF
TET

48,008
288,199
129,427

H—ENERR 2 EARER -

465,634



In addition, Hunan Carrianna is also responsible to put in an
investment which is estimated to be around RMB369 million
for public utilities portion of its property development
project, including a citizen square, a theme park and
the lake surface project (the “Public Development”),
the contracted but not provided for amount of which is
included above. Nevertheless, the People’s Government
of Yiyang City will compensate Hunan Carrianna for an
amount of not less than RMB369 million within five years
from the execution of the Cooperation and Development
Agreement with the People’s Government of Yiyang City,
subject to the investment actually incurred by Hunan
Carrianna in relation to the Public Development.

As at the balance sheet date, certain of the Group’s
property, plant and equipment, investment properties, time
deposits, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
properties under development, properties held for sale and
inventories with a total carrying value of approximately
HK$1,610,487,000 (2008: HK$1,440,566,000) were
pledged to secure general banking, trade finance and other
facilities granted to the Group. In addition, rental income
generated in respect of certain investment properties of the
Group were assigned to bankers to secure loan facilities
granted to the Group.

On 11 July 2007, a 20%-owned associate of the Group,
CSCHL issued US$125,000,000 secured convertible
notes. In this regard, the Group, being a shareholder
of CSCHL, has entered into a share charge agreement
by pledging 2,040,000 shares of CSCHL and granting
certain indemnities. Further details of the transaction were
disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 11 July
2007.

AN M EEBTEEERENDARK
B3EOBEMNAMERRIBE PN ARIEE
o RETRES TEABRKNAEER
(IPABE])  BHACENEREES
BEWMEAEE - A =HmARBNE
ERITAGERAZARERFRRBEE
EMEETDRARE3.691E - ZMEKR
THEEERRAREENERREME

E/\ EE A AEERAAERMEEL1,610,487,000
B (—ZTZ )\ :1,440,566,0008 L) Z
H@% WE R REYE - THEF

FOBRAFEFABRRZEMEE BE

RYE BERF Hj'%%%&r 5B EER -

LRB—RBT BEEMEREMEE It

A $%WPA*‘B@&§%%Z@£%@T’E

B LRBHRITZER-

R_ZZLFLA+—B AEEEF20%
Hme —HBERR EEREEET
125,000,000%7@E’\Jﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ;@ﬂxﬂ%°I
I AREBERERBER CIRREI T
12,040,000/ FEm I & B 2 I ) RiRHE
TRERER R FBEHNERAEER -FZ
+tFtRAt+—RzZzaE-
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(@) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere (a)
in these financial statements, the Group had the
following transactions with related parties during the

BR B2 50 8% 50 B 75 3 45 L At BT 5 0 9 32
SN REEEEHEANTETTS
R :

year:
2008
Notes HK$'000
—ETNF
B =E FHET
Sales of goods to related HEERmTAEBERR
companies (i) 4,737
Sales of properties to directors HEMETES (ii) 18,501
Purchase of goods from related MABEAGIEAER
companies (iii) (31,877)
Rental paid to a director NG —NES (iv) =
Notes: B &E -

(i) The directors consider that sales of goods to related
companies were made according to the published
prices and conditions offered to the major customers of
the Group.

(i) The directors consider that sales of properties to
directors were made according to the published prices

and conditions offered to other customers.

(iii)  The directors consider that the purchase prices were
determined according to the published prices and
conditions similar to those offered to other customers
of the related companies.

(iv)  The rental paid to a director was determined based on
mutually agreed rental rates.

In the opinion of the directors, the above transactions
were entered into by the Group in the normal course
of business.
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(iy EFGRR HEVETEEDRE
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Other transactions with related parties:

In the prior year, the Group acquired a 55% equity
interest in Hunan Carrianna from KC Ma and KY Ma,
the substantial shareholders and executive directors
of the Company. Further details of the transaction are
included in note 37 to the financial statements.

In respect of the acquisition, KC Ma and KY Ma have
given an undertaking to indemnify the Group against
monetary losses up to RMB216 million arising from the
failure of Hunan Carrianna to acquire any portion of
the pre-determined lots of land and Hunan Carrianna’s
cost of acquisition of any portion of these pieces of
land which is higher than the pre-determined price.
Further details about the transaction were disclosed in
the circular of the Company dated 30 March 2007.

The above transaction also constitutes connected
transaction as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

Outstanding balances with related parties:

(i) Except for an amount due to a director of
HK$58,281,000 (2008: Nil) which is not
repayable within one year, the remaining
balances are unsecured, interest-free and have
no fixed terms of repayment.

(i)  Except for amounts due to minority shareholders
of HK$31,453,000 (2008: HK$20,933,000)
which are not repayable within one year, the
remaining balances are unsecured, interest-free
and have no fixed terms of repayment.

(i)  Details of the amounts due from/to its associates
are included in note 22 to the financial
statements.

HMEBEEALETZIRS

RATF AEEBRAEEZEFERRE
EBTEEENELEEREN R AL
U B3 M R BE 55 % A 25 o FE B 7 &
B 75 5 M 5E37 -

FHURBER SNELEERSMTK
FERE 7%@&/\&%2161 B EBR
BMEAEEHNAREEFERIRE
ﬁ%iiﬂﬁ’ﬂ%ﬂ*ﬁfﬁ&%%iiﬂﬂ’wﬂz
AEREEEBNER - FRANAR
AIZZEZTEF=ZA=+HZRE-

FRZBRETRANE
EAMEALRS -

+mAE Iz

BB ) 2 RIEE AR

Br — = fE {7 ZE $58,281,000/%
TZEFHBRA—F (ZTITN

F )N EpEs R
% Bl E E B KA o

—
=

(i) BRESR D EARH31,453,000%
T (ZZFZE/\F:20,933,000%
TL)ZERBA—FN B
ERAEER 22 VEETEE
FRER o

(i) FEdEEEE QR
REF 75 S M E22 -

BRRFFIEE
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(d) Compensation of key management personnel of the (d AEEFBERASZRH:

Group:
2008
HK$'000
—EENF
FH T
Short term employee benefits HEEERT 22,343
Post-employment benefits RKET 166
Total compensation paid to BEZEETEAB ZEW
key management personnel 22,509
Further details of directors’ emoluments are included REBZEETMEFBHR AT B W
in note 8 to the financial statements. HHIEES o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 o 5 BT 5E
31 March 2009
—EENF=A=+—H
45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 45. REERFzEMIT A
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial TR EENESRIARGEEHNE
instruments as at the balance sheet date are as follows: HE:
2009 ZEENF
Financial assets TREE
Group
rEE
Financial assets Available-
at fair value for-sale
through Loans and financial
profit or loss receivables assets Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BERFESER
kRREHESH EXR AHHEZ
RENEMEE & Ui B 3K THEE Mg
THERT THET THERT THET
Due from associates JE Bt & 2 R - 43,180 - 43,180
Available-for-sale investments A 5 &% & - - 9,742 9,742
Financial assets BATEIERR
at fair value through RIEZFEIEN
profit or loss CRAEE 7,347 - - 7,347
Financial assets included STAEUBER
in debtors, deposits and e RIENFRIAER
prepayments CREE - 237,728 - 237,728
Pledged time deposits BEREHREX - 28,071 - 28,071
Cash and cash equivalents ~ H&KBRLEEEE - 125,151 - 125,151
7,347 434,130 9,742 451,219
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

81

5 ¥ & M ot

31 March 2009

TENF=A=TI

178

45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(continued)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

instruments as at the balance sheet date are as follows: HE: (&)

(continued)

45. REEEBN @I E (&)

MRE-—RBENSRTARGEEANIK

2009 ZEBAF
Financial liabilities cRAas
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
HK$'000
LU 85 B AR 5T E B
SREE
T T
Due to a jointly-controlled entity (note 21) FERTRIESIE B (FF5E21) 612
Due to associates (note 22) FEFEE & N A) (BisE22) 3,457
Trade creditors BB SR 38,662
Financial liabilities included in sundry FTAEMERNKRR  ETER K
creditors, accruals and deposits received BlikesremasE 56,343
Due to directors ENES 60,048
Due to minority shareholders FET D EUR R 39,012
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings s+ ERITREMEE 723,969
Finance lease payables JE < B & T 4D 873
922,976
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The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

instruments as at the balance sheet date are as follows:

(continued)

2008

Due from associates

Available-for-sale
investments

Financial assets
at fair value through
profit or loss

Financial assets included
in debtors, deposits and
prepayments

Pledged time deposits

Cash and cash equivalents

FE Yt & 1 )

AHHERE

BRFESIRR
PR 25 P B 32 K
TREE

AT AR MR -
RERAENRELZ
TREE

B E RF R

ReMREFERA

Financial assets
at fair value
through

profit or loss
HK$'000
BRTETR
KRBz
BENEHMERE
FHET

12,978

12,978

MR- EENGRTARGEE AN

HE: (&)
—ETNF
Group
REHE
Available-
for-sale
Loans and financial
receivables assets
HK$'000 HK$'000

EX K AfHEs
& Wi B 58 SREE

TET TAT
41,398 -
- 19,761
239,613 -
20,305 -
133,701 -
435,017 19,761

Total
HK$'000

st

TAET

41,398

19,761

12,978

239,613
20,305
133,701

467,756
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The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments as at the balance sheet date are as follows:

(continued)

2008

Due to a jointly-controlled entity (note 21)

Due to associates (note 22)

Trade creditors

Financial liabilities included in sundry
creditors, accruals and deposits received

Due to minority shareholders

Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings

Finance lease payables

Loans and receivables:
Due from subsidiaries
Financial assets included in other
receivables and deposits
Due from associates
Pledged time deposits
Cash and cash equivalents

ANNUAL REPORT 2009 4 &

Ty RE—
HE: (&)

—EENF

P K RESI E 38 (KaE21)

JE Bk N A (BT RE22)

FER & 5 BR X

FEARM MR ERTE R R
ghrezemaE

P DB R

AFRERITRAEMER

e B E ML

B R AR R

P& 5 Bt /8 A R

A AE A AR
REZTMEE

& Y Bgt & 2 A

HIE M7 R

RehkBReFEAHE

BENEHTARA

7
oH
W
ET
s

Financial

liabilities at
amortised cost
HK$'000

LA SHRX AN FHE &Y
TRBE

THET

612
3,338
95,895

43,803
22,101
646,796
1,651

814,196

Company
ARE
2008
HK$°000
—EE)N\F
TR

1,651,261

733
159
41
63

1,652,257



The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments as at the balance sheet date are as follows:
(continued)

MRE-—RBENSRTARGEERNK
m{E: (&)

Company
¥ NN
2008
HK$'000
—ETNF
T
Financial liabilities at amortised cost: N AGTENSREE:

Due to subsidiaries (note 20) FERTH B 2R (FEEE20) 197,042

Financial liabilities included in A E AL E R AR K
sundry creditors and accruals A ERzERAE 927
Due to directors EftE SR =
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FERITEER 11,953
209,922

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise bank
loans and overdrafts, finance leases, other interest-bearing
loans and cash and bank balances. The main purpose
of these financial instruments is to raise finance for the
Group’s operations. The Group has various other financial
assets and liabilities such as trade debtors and trade
creditors, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial
instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk,
credit risk, liquidity risk and equity price risk. The board
reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks
and they are summarised below.

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings with floating interest
rates. The effective interest rates and terms of repayment
of the interest-bearing bank and other borrowings of the
Group are disclosed in note 31. The Group has not used any
derivative to hedge its exposure to interest rate risk.

AEBZIZSRIABRERRITERLE
XoRENeREEFR RMH SR A
ERERBITHER - ZEERTAZTIEAR
MERAKEXBERES AKETE
ZHERREGEL CHEBEREERE
B PINEZEKEANENE SRR

AEBESRTAPRZTERRASH X
2 SNERR - FEERR RBESRR R
EFEREAR BEFERHMAEEERS
BB 2 B - Bt an T -

AEEEHcTHEMNEEHRAREBZS R
REBRF BN EGF R ZRITREMES -
AEBZMBRITEEREMEE ZAR
SRR GFRENHE - AEEILE
REAECATAETASPEE 2 F RER -
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The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a

reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, of the Group’s and Company's
profit before tax (through the impact on floating rate

borrowings) and the Group's equity.

Increase/
(decrease) in

basis points
B/
(AD)EH
2009 “EENE
Hong Kong dollar B
Hong Kong dollar BT
Hong Kong dollar BT
Hong Kong dollar BT
2008 —EENE
Hong Kong dollar BT 50
Hong Kong dollar BT 100
Hong Kong dollar BT (50)
Hong Kong dollar BT (100)
* Excluding retained earnings

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk.
The carrying amounts of the trade and other receivables,
cash and cash equivalents included in the consolidated
balance sheet represented the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk in relation to its financial assets. The Group has
no other financial assets which carry significant exposure to
credit risk.

ANNUAL REPORT 2009 4 &

TRETEEMAZEERZRERTEZER
T AJREMBIEN REESHHAKE R A QA
BREAEN CERFHNREEZZE) N

KL B

B 485

e —3
Group Company
x5E NG|

Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in Increase/ Increase/  (decrease) in
profit before (decrease) (decrease) in  profit before
tax in equity*  basis points tax
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B/ wm,/
(AD) gm/ #m/ (HD)
BREAER (AL ER* (BRP)EE BREARA
FET FEL FET
(3,242) (2,624) 50 (60)
(6,484) (5,249) 100 (120)
3,242 2,624 (50) 60
6,484 5,249 (100) 120

*

R i A BR S

SEVESAERAETHRR ERAEE
BERANEZ REAMEREFARE SR
ReSZEYEEE DASEREREE
FRE SR AEERR - KB EH 5 @
BEFAHEREERR -



The Group mainly operates in Mainland China with most
of the Group’s monetary assets, liabilities and transactions
principally denominated in Hong Kong dollars and
Renminbi. The Group has not used any derivative to hedge
its exposure to foreign currency risk.

The following table indicates the approximate change in
the Group's profit before tax and equity in response to
reasonably possible changes in the foreign exchange rates
to which the Group has significant exposure at the balance

sheet date.

2009 —EBNF

If Renminbi strengthens EARE R BTRE
against Hong Kong dollar

If Renminbi weakens EANRE R BETHY
against Hong Kong dollar

If Renminbi strengthens BEARBRE B TR
against Hong Kong dollar

If Renminbi weakens EAREEBTIHY

against Hong Kong dollar

2008 —EENF

If Renminbi strengthens AEANRME R BTE
against Hong Kong dollar

If Renminbi weakens EAREE B TS
against Hong Kong dollar

If Renminbi strengthens BEARERBTRE
against Hong Kong dollar

If Renminbi weakens HEARERBTHY

against Hong Kong dollar

AEETF2LEEREAEMAEEER
BE ABERRXGTEUBTRARKS
B AEEIW LA HRAERITET EEHHIN
R -

TRBREAEAYAREEEAL LN
SN - EE R ) 2 I AL 5 4 A SR BLA
EFIRBAN

Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)
in HK$ in profit
rate before tax

% HK$'000

2, ORd) #Ei ORd)
A TER Bk Bt A1 )28 A

BOL TAET
5 6,081
5 (6,081)
10 11,663
10 (11,663)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B HmE M
31 March 2009
ZEENF=R=+—1

46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 46. IR ERETEEERKE (&)
AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk RBESRR
The Group's policy is to maintain sufficient cash and cash TEBCBRRERFARRERREEE
equivalents and have available funding through bank and 2B REBRITERREMBELRRE
other borrowings to meet its working capital requirements. rEBEBEER 2F L
The maturity profile of the Group’'s financial liabilities TERAAEBREEANESRHEE  UEDH
as at the balance sheet date, based on the contractual AT FREENBNHER -
undiscounted payments, was as follows:
Group rEE
2009
“EERE
3to
Less than less than 1to5 Over
On demand 3 months 12 months years 5 years Total

HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ZEANLE —FiE

REXE  DSR=EA TZEAAT EFREUT EENE A

TERL TERL TERL TEL TERL TERL

Due to a jointly-controlled entity B L FI 2| B BB 612 - - - - 612
Due to associates JERTHEE R AR 3,457 - - - - 3,457
Trade creditors EREZEHN 15,060 23,602 - - - 38,662
Financial liabilities included FEAE AR R

in sundry creditors, accruals FEERR

and deposits received BlizezeRER 42,111 11,038 2,594 - - 56,343
Due to directors ENES 1,767 - - 58,281 - 60,048
Due to minority shareholders  FE D HRE 7,559 - - 31,453 - 39,012
Interest-bearing bank and WERITRAMES

other borrowings 167,963 29,290 227,278 245,302 54,136 723,969
Interest payments on MERTREMEEZ

interest-bearing bank and FMEZH

other borrowings - 4,350 12,681 22,246 2,755 42,032
Finance lease payables FERBERD - 214 454 257 - 925

239,129 68,494 243,007 357,539 56,891 965,060
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The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities TERAAEBNEEANERAE UED
as at the balance sheet date, based on the contractual AR AR ENRNHER: (B)
undiscounted payments, was as follows: (continued)

Group REH
2008
TN
3to
Less than less than Tt05 QOver
On demand 3 months 12 months years 5 years Total

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
“EAREE  —FHE

RERE  SR=EA t-EAUT ERFUAT  AFNUL #sr

TR TAL L L TEL TAL

Due to a jointly-controlled entity JEfT 3t R 5| E B 612 = = = = 612
Due to associates ERBENTZHE 3,338 = = = S 3,338
Trade creditors ENESER 15,599 29,274 51,022 = = 95,895

Financial liabilities included STARMERR
in sundry creditors, accruals T ERR

and deposits received BEhkeceRaE 31,708 11,950 - - 145 43,803
Due to minority shareholders  Eff &R R 1,168 = = 20,933 - 22,101
Interest-bearing bank and MERTREMEE

other borrowings 127,129 31,647 100,381 316,239 71,400 646,796
Interest payments on MERTRAMEEL

interest-bearing bank and B3 A

other borrowings - 4,564 16,535 21,877 5,218 48,194
Finance lease payables FENBERD = 190 710 910 - 1,810

179,554 77,625 168,648 359,959 76,763 862,549
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B HmE M
31 March 2009
—EENF=A=+—H

46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)
The maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities

as at the balance sheet date, based on the contractual
undiscounted payments, was as follows:

46. B HEREEBERBEK (&)

REBESEE (&)

TRAARBNEERNEREAE  UEH
AR FEEN B HER :

Company KAFE
2009
“EEhE
3 to
Less than less than 1t05
On demand 3 months 12 months years Total
HK$'000 HK$"000 HK$'000 HK$"000 HK$'000
ZHANEE -—FNEE
REXE HSR=EA +=@AUT EEUT @it
TER TER TER TERT TER
Due to subsidiaries BB 2 Rl E 219,998 - - - 219,998
Financial liabilities included in st A ER B
sundry creditors, accruals B ERAKRBEKIEZES
and deposits received JemAaE - - 2,084 - 2,084
Due to directors ERNESR 10,022 - - 12,751 22,773
Interest-bearing B ZRITER
bank borrowings - 831 2,493 5,305 8,629
Interest payments on fEZRITERZ
interest-bearing FEX A
bank borrowings - Al 170 152 393
230,020 902 4,747 18,208 253,877
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The maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities
as at the balance sheet date, based on the contractual
undiscounted payments, was as follows: (continued)

Company
On demand
HK$'000
RE KA
FHT
Due to subsidiaries FER B B 2 RIS IE 197,042
Financial liabilities included sTAEMEAER
in sundry creditors, accruals ~ JEEHE &
and deposits received BEhizezemBE 927
Interest-bearing MEZHRITER
bank borrowings -
Interest payments on WEZRITERZ
interest-bearing MEX A
bank borrowings -
197,969

Equity price risk arises mainly from uncertainty about the
future prices of the financial instruments held. It represents
the potential loss the investments might suffer through
holding market positions in the face of price movements.
The Company performs periodic evaluations of the
investment portfolio in order to minimise the risk associated
with the investments whilst continuing to follow the
Company's investment objectives.

TRAARBNEERNEREAE  UEH
AR FEENZHBER : (&)

KAFE
2008
ZTTNE
3to
Less than less than 1105
3 months 12 months years Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
“EANEE  —FHULEE
PR=EA +TZEAUT AFUT @it
THET TET THET THET
- - - 197,042
= = = 927
831 2,493 8,629 11,953
113 299 462 874
944 2,792 9,091 210,796

RERBRHNEETEARHAFEMIAMNR
B TR  REM AR SR TS
RAETEIR % - A A AIMIRA B B AT
BT AR AR SR EE A R AT R
NI
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The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. No
changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes
for managing capital during the years ended 31 March 2009
and 31 March 2008.
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FAEEEAEENEZER RERAKE
BEEFEERNEN  BEREBRNERL
T PXFERBER FRERANKRRE
@0

AEBRBEEBERNES EEHEERLE
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EEA e RRRIEERE  ARRKEE
RABITHR BE_ZZNER_ZBEN
F=A=+—RLFER WEAEARERE
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The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which
is net debt divided by the total capital plus net debt. Net
debt includes trade creditors, sundry creditors, accruals
and deposits received, due to directors, due to minority
shareholders, interest-bearing bank and other borrowings
and finance lease payables less cash and cash equivalents.
Capital represents total equity. The gearing ratios as at the
balance sheet dates were as follows:

Group

e E 5 B

Trade creditors
Sundry creditors, accruals and

deposits received AR S
Due to directors ENES
Due to minority shareholders JET D BUAR R

ff B2 R1T R E A E K

Interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings
Finance lease payables FERRE R

Less: Cash and cash equivalents

Net debt FEE

Total equity FEli N

Total equity and net debt BEARFEE
Gearing ratio BEAREEL X

Certain comparative amounts have been reclassified to
conform with the current year's presentation.

The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the board of directors on 23 July 2009.

Ht AR BHER R

BeoREMAEEEER

AEBUEARBLREREARNER -
AEBEHLRRFABKRAREREFER
ZHM-FREBRENEZRER  EMEM
R EAERALENEZEES BNES R
D BBCR B 2 $R1T R H Al & 5 K B A
BEMRLY BEREMASEFERBE BN
REEBRAE-BERERBBELENAT:

o I

T

AEE
2008
Notes HK$'000
—ETNF
B 73 THT
30 95,895
137,548
22,101
31 646,796
32 1,651
29 (133,701)
770,290
2,829,779
3,600,069
21%

ETHUBBFOHREFVR UNEAFE
EX TP

PBEREENR _ZTEAFELA-_T=AK
EFEgEURERE M-
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Particulars of the investment properties held by the Group as at

31 March 2009 are as follows:

Name/location Tenure
&1 B HHAMEE
Hong Kong

B8

Unit B, 26th Floor
Wyler Centre, Phase I, lease
200 Tai Lin Pai Road,

Kwai Chung, New Territories
AR

kLH&Lzoo%ﬁ‘%
BEmPOLEZ

261EB=E

Medium term

AR 4

Ground Floor and Cockloft, Medium term

61 South Wall Road, lease
Kowloon City, Kowloon

AN Wan- =2 8 =R F EAFR 49
6155 T~ & EE

Unit No. G37, Ground Long term
Floor, Peninsula Centre, lease

67 Mody Road,
Tsimshatsui East, Kowloon
FUBESS Y B BR B 3 58
675 F HH LT
G375 Efu

REHED

Tak Sing Alliance Building, Medium term
1/F-3/F, 15/F-18/F, lease

115 Chatham Road South,
Tsimshatsui, Kowloon
j—LHE/J\ /J\

RBE R 11555
ERBEERNE

1B =38

15K E 1812

R

ANNUAL REPORT 2009 £ &

Type

ol

Approx.
gross area
(m?)
HEBENE
(FH*)

1,568*

87*

77*

780*

Effective
% held
ERES
Aok

100

100

100

100

R-ZBFNF=ZA=T—"BAEEFANKREY
ESSS RN

Stage of
completion

5% B B B

Completed

Completed

BEmK

Completed

%t
2%

Completed



Particulars of the investment properties held by the Group as at

31 March 2009 are as follows: (continued)

Name/location

B B

Hong Kong
58

15th Floor and

Carparking Space No. 5,
Young Ya Industrial Building,
381-389 Sha Tsui Road,
Tsuen Wan, New Territories

ORI

YbIH #E381-3895%

B THEEKRE
158 &

T 557 AE (L

Mainland China

B K FE

Units 9D-F, 10A-F, 22-C
Man Wah Mansion,
Shenzhen Special Economic Zone

AR AR B

NEREAE

9D-F, 10A-F, 22-C

Carrianna Friendship Square,
Junction Renmin Road South
and Chunfeng Road,

Shenzhen Special Economic Zone

ARYINE R =

ARBRREREZR
EEMRERES

Tenure

HREE

Medium term
lease

IR A

Medium term
lease

IR A

Medium term
lease

R A

Type

&5l

C/R

B E

HN-ET

N—==

Approx.
gross area
(m?)
HMEBROR
(F7K)

2,594%

1,881%

30,055*

Effective
% held
BERESR
Aotk

100

100

72

NE=ZA=t—HAXKEFENREY
EHBWOT: (8)

Stage of
completion

5t B P& B

Completed

Completed

BEmK

Completed

BiEmK
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Particulars of the investment properties held by the Group as at MR-_ZTNF=ZA=Z+—HAEEHBENKREY

31 March 2009 are as follows: (continued) BT (&)
Approx.
gross area Effective Stage of
Name/location Tenure Type (m?) % held completion
BEBEOH BERESE
=2 1 HAMtE Al (FFHXK) Ao TRMEE

Mainland China
R Bl K BE

A building at Shi Lien Road, Leasehold 3,322% 100 Completed
Chiu Tien Industrial Park,

Shi Lou Town,

Panyu County,

Guangdong Province

URERE BFEH T EIEK
AIgHE
BB T A

T — BT

A building at Gowtong Leasehold 14,754* 100 Completed
Village, Panyu County,
Guangdong Province

URERE BEH T BEEK
=B

RENZEF

Imperial Palace, Long term C/R 4,899% 80 Completed
Hong Yi Cun, lease

Baoan South Road,

Shenzhen

RYI B R RHITE A wE EEK
R E B

E—H

FREEE

14 Zu Miao Road, Leasehold C 6,838" 100 Completed
Foshan Municipal

#B 1L BEH ] EEK
AR 145%
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Particulars of the properties held as property, plant and WR-ZZETAF=A=+—HAEEFEIEAD

equipment by the Group as at 31 March 2009 are as follows: X BERREZMESFBLOT:
Approx.

gross area Effective Stage of
Name/location Tenure Type (m?) % held completion

HEBENE ERES
EB B HRANE B3] (F7K) Bok ZTRER
Hong Kong
"iE
Unit A, 26th Floor and Leasehold 812 100 Completed

Carparking Space Nos 19, 20, 21,
22, 39 and 40 on 2nd Floor and
Lorry Parking Space No. L21

on 1st Floor, Wyler Centre, Phase I,
200 Tai Lin Pai Road,

Kwai Chung, New Territories
AR B FH T B &K
RNEHEE200 5%

EmPLE_H

261AE R2IEFE 195 -

205% ~ 215% ~ 225%

395% ~ 405K B AL &
L2153 B EIREM
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Particulars of the properties held as property, plant and R-ZZThAF=ZA=+—BHALEHEBHEAY
equipment by the Group as at 31 March 2009 are as follows: ¥ MERRZHEZ2WEFBOT: (B)
(continued)

Approx.

gross area Effective Stage of
Name/location Tenure Type (m?) % held completion

BEBEOH BERES
B8 HAMtE Pzl (®FHK) Aotk TR
Mainland China
Bl K RE
Nos. 2-6, 5/F, Leasehold C 1,922# 100 Completed
Carrianna Friendship Square,
Junction Renmin Road South
and Chunfeng Road,
Shenzhen Special Economic
Zone
RIS B[R BEH ] (-394
ARmBERE &
FRERZR
TEMREES
FE2-65%
2 Zishan Road, Leasehold C 34,490" 100 Completed
Yiyang Municipal
#a[5  RF LL BK 258 BEH ] EEK
14 Zu Miao Road, Leasehold C 12,954# 100 Completed
Foshan Municipal
1L BFH ] w359
BB EE 1455
Notes: (TEX
Types of properties: I-Industrial, R-Residential, C-Commercial YEER -T2 R—FE C—B%
# Gross floor area # AIREEE
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Particulars of the properties under development

Group as at 31 March 2009 are as follows:

Location

b B

Mainland China
R Bl K BE

Chaoyang Road to the north,
Zishanhu to the south, Yiyang
4 5 T 81 15 B8 DA B A% LU A LA E

Zishancun Reservoir to the east,
Yiyang Road to the north, Yiyang

7 55 T A LU A 7K s 7 1A

m 5 KB Al

Tuanyuan Road to the east, Yiyang
a5 T [ (B % 78 A

Yangwuling Village, Lucigiao Village,

Yiyang
HIETTE I B RIS AT

Xin Guang Road to the East B section

R EEREERRNICHE
RAEBEB K&

Xin Guang Road to the East F section

FMEREREERRITICHK
RARBEAFR

Use

A&

Commercial/
residential

ME/EE

Commercial/
residential

BMEEE

Commercial/
residential

mEEE

Commercial/
residential

BEEE

Commercial/
residential

BEMEE

Commercial/
residential

BEEE

held by the

Site
area

THEE

(m?)

(FHHK)

29,997

103,584

318,709

120,040

105,916

77,757

Stage of
completion

52 B B BR

Foundation work

in progress

WERETIZETH

Foundation work

in progress

WETRETH

Land bank

TR

Land bank

THfEE

Land bank

T

Land bank

T

Effective

% held

BEREE

B

75

75

75

75

100

100

R-FBFNFZA=T—HAEERFERRETY
EHRBWTN:

Expected
completion
date

FEirEX B8

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

TAK SING ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED ## B\ &

195



196

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that an Annual General Meeting of
Tak Sing Alliance Holdings Limited (the “Company”) will be held
at Carrianna (Chiu Chow) Restaurant, 1st Floor, 151 Gloucester
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong on Friday, 28 August 2009 at
11:00 a.m. for the following purposes:

1. To receive and consider the audited Financial Statements
and the Reports of the Directors and of the Auditors for the
year ended 31 March 2009.

2. To declare a final dividend for the year ended 31 March
2009.

3. To re-elect Directors and to authorise the Board of Directors
to fix Directors’ remuneration.

4. To re-appoint Auditors and to authorise the Board of
Directors to fix their remuneration.

5. As special business, to consider and, if thought fit, pass
with or without amendments, the following resolutions as
an Ordinary Resolutions:

ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS

A.  "THAT

(@) Subject to paragraph (b) below, the exercise by
the Directors during the Relevant Period of all
the powers of the Company to purchase issued
shares of HK$0.10 each in the capital of the
Company, subject to and in accordance with
the applicable laws and the requirements of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited as
amended from time to time be and is hereby
generally and unconditionally approved;

(b) the aggregate nominal amount of shares to
be purchased pursuant to the approval in
paragraph (a) above shall not exceed 10% of the
aggregate nominal amount of the share capital
of the Company in issue on the date of this
Resolution, and the said approval shall be limited
accordingly; and

ANNUAL REPORT 2009 £ &

BEEERER ([ARA)EFITR_ZETNF
NAZ+NB(EHR) LF+—KREREEE
TS TITEISIE —EEER CEMN) BIEEFA
RARRRBERE AR Y EIER:

1. HFEHE_ZTTEAF=-A=+—"HLHFE
ZREBECHBREREETG RS RAZBED

HE -

2. BERBE_TTZNF=A=+HLHFE
ZAREB B

3. BMERER UREEEIETEZZMH

4. ENMRERHAE UREEESETHH

Z
2

5. ERFHEREZEREYLMIFEL (BRESE
A TIRBRAEBRER:

(@) ERRBROBRZBRGIT &k
HRTESE—REREN  EF
BERZEDNBEBAR M
ERARES LR (BT
BRI ZHEALHEERR 2 BER
T REBHRTERARFZ—
RN ABREARFEHITR
AP FREECN0E T ZRG

(b) REEX(ERZHIEMERZ
PR EEAERR - A TEBBARE
RBBRHZEHBITRATEER
#Z10% @ M Lt BEAE TRA R Ut
BEERG &



B.

(c)

for the purpose of this Resolution, “Relevant
Period” means the period from the date of
passing of this Resolution until whichever is the
earlier of:

(i)  the conclusion of the next Annual General
Meeting of the Company;

(i)  the revocation or variation of the authority
given under this Resolution by Ordinary
Resolution of the shareholders in general
meeting; and

(iii)  the expiration of the period within which
the next Annual General Meeting of the
Company is required by the Bye-laws of
the Company or the laws of Bermuda to be
held.”.

“THAT

(a)

subject to sub-paragraph (c) of this Resolution,
the exercise by the Directors during the Relevant
Period (as hereinafter defined) of all the powers
of the Company to allot, issue or otherwise deal
with additional shares of the Company and to
make or grant offers, agreements and options
which might require the exercise of such powers
be and is hereby generally and unconditionally
approved;

the approval in sub-paragraph (a) of this
Resolution shall authorise the Directors during
the Relevant Period to make or grant offers,
agreements and options which might require
the exercise of such power after the end of the
Relevant Period;
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the aggregate nominal amount of share
capital allotted or agreed conditionally or
unconditionally to be allotted (whether pursuant
to an option or otherwise) by the Directors
pursuant to the approval in sub-paragraph (a) of
this Resolution, otherwise than pursuant to:

(i)  a Rights Issue (as hereinafter defined);

(i)  the exercise of any option scheme or similar
arrangement for the time being adopted
for the grant or issue to officers and/or
employees of the Company and/or any of
its subsidiaries of shares or rights to acquire
shares of the Company; and

(iii) any scrip dividend or similar arrangement
providing for the allotment of shares in
lieu of the whole or part of a dividend on
shares of the Company in accordance with
the Bye-laws of the Company;

shall not exceed 20% of the aggregate nominal
amount of the share capital of the Company
in issue at the date of the passing of this
Resolution, and the said approval shall be limited
accordingly; and

for the purpose of this Resolution, “Relevant
Period” means the period from the passing of
this Resolution until whichever is the earlier of:

(i)  the conclusion of the next Annual General
Meeting of the Company;

(i) the revocation or variation of the authority
given under this Resolution by Ordinary
Resolution of the shareholders in general
meeting; and

ANNUAL REPORT 2009 £ &

EEREBEIRERQ@DBRZH
EM%&HﬁﬁM#&ﬁﬂﬁm
B (TweELREBRESEMD
TR ZBEAEERRE  ERIE
THITT A BEITERIN

i) EEFR(EERLTX):

(i) TTEEERFRMZBERE
ElRBUZH KAAR
a &/ S E AR ] Bt /B A A
ZBER /HEERLH
BT KBEA R AR
DM K&

(i) WIFEARAZ A MARIE
R AR AR R
ZEEBRE MRS ZEM
AR B s Bl 22 Bt

TMEBRBRTRBERERBREH
ARBIBETRAMELEZ
20% -+ Mk alu Bt IR AR FE X2 LR
il &

BARZEMS ' [BHEEH]
MERRAZRBBEHZ TS
E—BHREEAE 2 A IE 2 5
Ml -

i) AR2ATEERRBFAS
RE R

(i) ARABRELHZENERH
BREBRRASRAE
RBERTURBEKEIT 2
H: &



(iii) the expiration of the period within which
the next Annual General Meeting of the
Company is required by the Bye-laws of
the Company or the laws of Bermuda to be

held.”;

“Rights Issue” means an offer of shares in
the Company open for a period fixed by the
Directors to holders of shares of the Company
whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on a fixed record
date in proportion to their then holdings of
such shares (subject to such exclusions or
other arrangements as the Directors may
deem necessary or expedient in relation to
fractional entitlements or having regards to any
restrictions or obligations under the laws of, or
the requirements of any recognised body or any
stock exchange, in any territory outside Hong
Kong)."”.

C.  "THAT conditional upon the passing of the Ordinary

Resolutions no. 5A and 5B set out above, the

general mandate granted to the Directors pursuant

to resolution no. 5B be and is hereby extended by

the addition thereto of an amount representing

the aggregate nominal amount of the share capital

repurchased by the Company under the authority

granted in resolution no. 5A, provided that such

amount shall not exceed 10% of the aggregate

nominal amount of the share capital of the Company

in issue at the date of the passing of this Resolution.”.

6. To transact any other business.

By Order of the Board
Tak Sing Alliance Holdings Limited

Ng Yan Kwong

Company Secretary

Hong Kong, 29 July 2009
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Notes:

The Register of Members will be closed from Tuesday, 25 August
2009 to Friday, 28 August 2009 (both days inclusive), during which
period no transfer of shares will be registered.

A member entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting is entitled to
appoint one or more proxies to attend and vote on his/her behalf.
A proxy need not be a Member of the Company. If more than one
proxy is so appointed, the appointment shall specify the number
and class of shares in respect of which each such proxy is so
appointed.

To be valid, a form of proxy and the power of attorney or other
authority, if any, under which it is signed, or a notarially certified
copy of such power of attorney or authority, must be lodged with
the Company’s Share Registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited
at 26/F., Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong not less
than 48 hours before the time appointed for holding the Meeting.

An explanatory statement containing further details regarding
Resolution No. 5 above will be sent to shareholders shortly together
with the 2009 annual report.

ANNUAL REPORT 2009 £ &

ARARAEH-_ZTZNFNA-TAR(EH)
E-ZZAFNA-TNR(EHST) (BEMW
REEEN)EERERNHBFELFE-

REEREELRRGIRNE EREZRER 19
BERZR A ERREFE TRERRE-F
ERRBARARARR - HEERZRBEB—BX
ZRF AZREELANABLURZRRAREK
Betn 8B RAER

1%2%2?&%% BRERBZREELEMBREX
(ﬁﬂﬁ)ﬁkéiii? EEEIREXHEHAEA
FAZ BRI B BRBAN KNS E RITHRH
HU48/J\%*@M&@é%zﬁﬁﬁﬁm%ﬁﬁﬁilﬁ
FLO2EARNFERELZBNBPERE 2=
BEREBAERAR HREX-

ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁéi}m%ﬂﬁa&%%ﬁqﬂEi‘\EZ‘E)EEEﬂX#F
BREPAERN _ZZNFFHR - HFTER
o






	封面
	目錄
	財務概要
	公司資料
	主席報告
	董事及高級管理人員簡歷
	企業管治報告
	業務回顧
	財務回顧
	董事會報告書
	獨立核數師報告
	綜合收益表
	綜合資產負俵表
	綜合權益變動表
	綜合現金流轉表
	資產負債表
	財務報告附註
	主要物業概要
	股東週年大會通告
	封底

